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in Hong Kong
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OUR SERVICE OFFERINGS

FAM 0 IR 75 ok 25

We stand out in the senior care sector with our unique and ever-expanding range of

facilities, services and professional care offerings that fulfill the various needs of

seniors at different stages of life.

RESIDENTIAL
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BN L8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Pine Care
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Pine Care Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023”).

OVERVIEW

FY2023 continues to be a challenging year across many industries, including
our own. | am pleased to report that our business continued to demonstrate a
great degree of agility and resilience during the atypical times in FY2023.

FY2023 was still a challenging year for the Group financially which recorded a
loss of HK$27.8 million due to the unfavourable impact brought forward by the
COVID-19 situation. Performance in relation to our operations and our
investments had been adversely affected, resulting in the impairment of
assets.

Despite all the hardships and the challenges posed by the COVID-19 situation,
we remained committed to delivering quality healthcare services and placing
the well-being of our residents at the forefront. With our perseverance, | am
pleased to report that our core business of our 8 EA1 ™ residential care
homes for the elderly (“RCHES”) remains strong with an average occupancy
rate of 88.9% for FY2023 as compared to 92.7% for the year ended 31 March
2022 (“FY2022”), while the occupancy rate of our Silverage Collection,
comprising Pine Care Place in Yoho Mall, Yuen Long; and Pine Care Point in
Shek Kip Mei, also recorded a double-digit increment of 12.4 percentage
points, reaching an average occupancy of 71.9% for FY2023.

Excluding the effect of non-recurring adjustments and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 16 Leases, our core EBITDA for FY2023
amounted to HK$47.8 million as compared to HK$53.7 million in FY2022, in
which the decrement was mainly attributed to loss incurred in Pine Residence,
our new flagship of our Silverage Collection under its initial ramp up period.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Forging into the Future

This year was a year of transformation for the Group, with our honour to
introduce Chime Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries (“Chinachem Group”)
as the new controlling shareholder as well as various new members to the
Board, all having profound experience, expertise and extensive network in the
property development, asset management and hospitality sectors. We will
leverage our resources and expertise to optimise the value of Pine Care
Group.

| look forward to working with the Board and management team to develop
and forge the healthcare and elderly care business based on our common
belief in being “people-centric”. Apart from promoting quality senior care
services, we also strive to provide age-friendly and green facilities in the
establishments, as well as to offer community services for the elderly and to
make a meaningful impact while contributing to the well-being of Hong Kong.
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SOLIDIFY OUR REPUTATION FOR QUALITY

We are making great strides in the Silverage Collection. Pine Care Point, our
second foray in the upscale segment, had ramped up and solidified its
reputation for quality, especially in areas of dementia care, cognitive training,
rehabilitation and skilled nursing care services.

We believe that the demand for quality senior care services is still seriously
underserved in Hong Kong. We are perfectly positioned to capitalise on this
opportunity with the provision of more specialised senior care services at our
Silverage Collection.

PINE RESIDENCE — A NEW FLAGSHIP OF
SILVERAGE COLLECTION ON HONG KONG ISLAND
On the expansion front, our Pine Residence situates at 1 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay with a total floor area of approximately 35,400 square feet has
become the Group’s third venture into the upscale market segment, following
the previous launch of Pine Care Place in Yoho Mall, Yuen Long, New
Territories and Pine Care Point in Nam Cheong Street, Shek Kip Mei, Kowloon.
Pine Residence is the new flagship of our Silverage Collection, which is
equipped with a wide range of services compatible with RCSV standards M,
covering affordable upscale and upscale residential care. Medical and
professional nursing support are delivered by a multidisciplinary and
collaborative team including nurses, care givers, social workers, occupational
therapists and physiotherapists.

Pine Residence enjoys a prime location on Hong Kong Island, within a
10-minute drive to five of Hong Kong’s leading private and public hospitals. It
is staffed by health care professionals using a variety of advanced gerontology
methods and technologies to ensure the finest standard of geriatric care and
well-being for the residents.

The establishment of Pine Residence marks our commitment to investing in
quality senior care services. We believe it will bring a positive impact on the
Group’s branding, as well as our reputation in providing the finest and most
comprehensive care for the residents. Pine Residence has become operational
since December 2022.
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Notes:

“Residential Care Service Voucher” or “RCSV” Scheme for the Elderly (the “Scheme”),
adopting the “money-following-the-user” principle, provides an additional choice for
elderly persons in need of residential care services. Elderly persons can freely choose and
switch among RCHEs under the Scheme according to their needs. The Scheme allows
voucher holders to make a top-up payment of up to 150% of the prevailing voucher value
to purchase enhanced or value-added services. RCHEs participating in the Scheme have
to meet the requirements specified by SWD on space standard, staffing and track record.

“Enhanced Bought Place Scheme” or “EBPS”: the scheme under which the Social
Welfare Department (the “SWD”) of the HKSAR Government has purchased residential
care places (beds) from private homes for the elderly since 1998, with a view to upgrading
the service standard of these homes through enhanced service requirements in terms of
staffing and space standards. This also helps to increase the supply of subsidised places
so as to reduce elderly’s waiting time for subsidised care and attention home places.
Elderly homes under the EBPS are split into two categories, namely EA1 and EA2, with
different space standards and staffing requirements.

“EA1”: one of the two categories under the EBPS. EA1 homes have higher requirements
in terms of staffing and per capita net floor area as compared to EA2 homes. As required
under the EBPS, the staffing requirement for an EA1 home with 40 places is 21.5,
calculated on the basis of eight working hours per staff per day, including relief staff, and
its per capita net floor area are 9.5 square metres.

Ageing-in-Place Care and Community Care

Going forward, we will be exploring the Continuing Care Retirement
Community (“CCRC”) concept, which is becoming increasingly widespread in
Mainland China, North America and Europe. As compared with conventional
elderly care service concepts, CCRC is a sustainable community of elderly
vitality where an array of services such as elderly care homes, nursing homes
and day care centres are provided alongside apartments for senior citizens,
allowing retirees to enjoy a variety of social, entertainment and care services to
enhance their quality of life and well-being.

We would also take steps in expanding our elite services to ageing-in-place
senior care services, community care development initiatives and
implementing the aforesaid CCRC concepts based on our established hubs
as well as the existing properties of Chinachem Group to encompass the
various needs of seniors at different stages of life through our care-giving
journey.

We recognise the market’s constant desire for choice. We will remain agile in
our business plans and service offerings with the aim of providing a wider
range of choices to the senior care market to promote the quality of senior
care that caters for both the existing and emerging markets.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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OUR SINCEREST THANKS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers,
bankers and business partners for their continued trust and support. In
particular, | would also like to express my deepest and most sincere gratitude
to all our staff members throughout the Group for their passion,
professionalism and diligence in caring for our residents round the clock and
contributing to the Group.

Without their commitment and unwavering dedication, we could never have
achieved the success we have, nor established such a high reputation for
excellence in the senior care sector.

With our expansion plans in place and a team that is second to none, we are
truly excited about the opportunities and achievements that are still to come.
Choi Wun Hing Donald

Chairman and Non-executive Director

21 June 2023

)

RANERZREFSRIBR - TP RORXKEH
BH-BEARNEERZST - RATRERIZELE R
SEERETEZREHERARATEBRERE
BOTHR RS - EERFD - BUARIRIARRE

P EER TR BERRMEDMERED
Yy ARERE#EBTERT S MEENER o

BRER A E B RAT B R EF OB - BfIER
RSB R FRED

EERIFNTEF
PN

202366 H21H

B AR A R A
2023 & 3§




~

-

P

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BELJE W wi L T

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The Group’s business in Hong Kong mainly comprises eight EA1 RCHEs and
two upscale RCHEs in Silverage Collection, namely Pine Care Place in Yuen
Long, New Territories and Pine Care Point in Shek Kip Mei, Kowloon. In
December 2022, Pine Residence, our new flagship of Silverage Collection in
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Island, has become operational.

The Group’s revenue was mainly generated from (i) rendering senior care
services including the provision of residence, professional nursing and care
taking services, nutritional management, medical services, psychological and
social care, and individual care plans; and (i) sale of senior care related goods
in Hong Kong.

Amid the temporary influence posed by the unexpected outbreak of the fifth
wave of COVID-19 on the elderly population and the occupancy rate of
RCHEs, with the increasing health awareness and demand of senior care
services due to the ageing population in Hong Kong, the Group believes that
the demand for quality senior care services would continue to grow.

Total revenue of the Group remained stable at HK$265.3 million for FY2023 as
compared to HK$267.7 million in FY2022, mainly contributed by the
satisfactory growth in revenue and occupancy rate of Pine Care Point, which
helped offset the decrease in revenue from other RCHEs of the Group.

Respective revenue is shown below:
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FY2023 FY2022 Change
2023 I EE 2022 I F & &

HK$’000 HK$°000

Fi&xT FHIT
8 EA1 RCHEs NER— R ER 211,838 218,766 -3.2%
Silverage Collection HE e & 53,431 45,547 17.3%
Others HAit - 3,436 N/A 5@
265,269 267,749 -0.9%

Average occupancy rate of our eight EA1 RCHEs decreased to 88.9% for
FY2023 as compared to 92.7% for FY2022 primarily due to the adverse
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in the decrease of revenue
by HK$6.9 million to HK$211.8 million in FY2023.

Silverage Collection comprises Pine Care Place in Yoho Mall, Yuen Long; Pine
Care Point in Shek Kip Mei; and the newly operated Pine Residence in Causeway
Bay. Average occupancy rate of Pine Care Place and Pine Care Point increased
by 12.4 percentage points to 71.9% for FY2023 as compared to 59.5% for
FY2022, together with the launch of Pine Residence, which resulted in the
increase of revenue to HK$53.4 million in FY2023 from HK$45.5 million for
Fy2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLLE W i L T

For the Group’s investment in a joint venture, Patina Wellness Limited (“Patina
Wellness”), in which the Group holds 51% of its equity interest, an impairment
loss was recognised in FY2023.

The landlord of the building named “Patina” (the “Premises”) and the Group
(through Patina Wellness) executed a deed of termination on 29 July 2022 to
record their agreement to terminate the tenancy agreement in respect of the
leasing of the Premises. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 29 July 2022 and 10 August 2022.

Impairment of amount due from a joint venture of HK$5.4 million has been
recognised during FY2023.

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” for prospects of
the core business and new projects of the Group.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

Although the Group’s revenue for FY2023 remained stable amid the
challenges posed by the COVID-19 situation, our Core EBITDA (the key senior
care services business performance indicator) decreased to HK$47.8 million
(FY2022: HK$53.7 million). Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
operating loss of Pine Residence during its initial ramp up period. Core
EBITDA remained stable excluding the impact of Pine Residence as compared
to FY2022.

The increase in recorded loss to HK$27.8 million in FY2023 as compared to
the loss of HK$24.0 million recorded for FY2022 was mainly attributed to the
increase in finance costs of HK$12.2 million to HK$22.7 million for FY2023
and the non-recurring fair value loss on financial assets through profit or loss
of HK$15.2 million recognised in FY2023, partially offset by the non-recurring
subsidies of HK$7.9 million received by the Group under the Employment
Support Scheme of the Hong Kong SAR Government and the absence of
share of loss of a joint venture in FY2023 which amounted to HK$13.3 million
in FY2022.
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The reconciliation of Core EBITDA and EBITDA to loss for the year were as
follows. Decrement mainly due to loss incurred in Pine Residence.

Loss for the year
Finance costs
Income tax expenses
Depreciation
Amortisation

EBITDA
Share of interests and depreciation of a joint
venture, and effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
Other income and gains
Excluding:
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 on
property rental and related
expenses on subsidiaries

Adjusted by:
Non-recurring government grant
of Employment Support Scheme
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit of loss
Impairment of amount due from a joint venture
Non-recurring legal and professional fee on
mandatory unconditional cash offers
Impairment of assets classified as held for sale
Share option expenses
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal
of a subsidiary

Core EBITDA
Core EBITDA to Revenue

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Notes:
“EBITDA” represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

“Core EBITDA” represents EBITDA before share of depreciation and interest of a joint
venture, other income and gains, government grant for Employment Support Scheme,
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment of
assets of PRC operation, impairment of amount due from a joint venture, non-recurring
legal and professional fee, share option expenses and release of exchange reserve upon
disposal of a subsidiary, excluding the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 on property rental
and related expenses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Please refer to the preceding sections for the review of the Group’s results
and business. This section deals with other key financial data.

Depreciation

Depreciation represents depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment which comprise right-of-use assets, leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and other equipment and motor vehicles. Depreciation
increased by approximately 11.3% to HK$63.7 million for FY2023 from
HK$57.2 million in FY2022 mainly due to the depreciation of right-of-use
assets of Pine Residence.

Staff costs, multidisciplinary fees and related expenses
Staff costs remained as the largest component of our operating expenses.
The Group is dedicated to improve our service quality despite the unfavourable
impact exerted by the COVID-19 pandemic, especially on the healthcare
industry. Our gross staff costs, before netting off with government grants of
HK$10.9 million for hiring specialised professionals for our senior residents
with dementia and infirmary and HK$7.9 million under the Employment
Support Scheme (FY2022: HK$12.2 million for dementia and infirmary and nil
under the Employment Support Scheme), increased by approximately 3.7% to
HK$134.7 million for FY2023. It was mainly attributable to general salary
increment as a result of the tight manpower situation in the healthcare industry
during FY2023.

Multidisciplinary fees and related expenses mainly consist of medical and
professional fees incurred for engaging external visiting medical officers,
dietitians and pharmacists, and additional manpower of physiotherapists, care
workers and health workers through employment agencies. The expenses
decreased by approximately 17.9% to HK$12.6 million in FY2023 from
HK$15.3 million in FY2022, primarily due to the reduction of manpower
recruited through employment agencies. More care workers have been
employed by the Group directly, providing higher stability and quality of our
workforce.
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Property rental and related expenses

Our property rental and related expenses primarily represent government rent
and rates and building management fees in respect of our properties. Property
rental and related expenses remained stable at HK$9.4 million in FY2023 as
compared to HK$9.5 million in FY2022.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses in FY2023 mainly consisted of (i) legal and
professional fees; (i) insurance expenses; (iii) advertising and marketing
expenses; (iv) corporate expenses; and (v) various operating expenses. It
decreased by approximately 8.7% which was mainly due to lower advertising
and marketing expenses incurred for FY2023.

Impairment of amount due from a joint venture

On 29 July 2022, a deed of termination to record the agreement to terminate
the tenancy agreement of the joint venture was executed. The Group does not
expect the amount due from a joint venture will be repaid with the cessation of
its operation and an impairment of HK$5.4 million has been made in FY2023.

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

For the investment in unlisted equity securities, the Group considered the
chance of recovering the investment in the foreseeable future is remote based
on the latest development of the underlying company, hence fair value loss of
HK$15.5 million was made during the year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represent interest expenses on bank loans and
interest elements of lease payments. The finance costs increased significantly
to HK$22.7 million in FY2023 from HK$10.5 million in FY2022, due to the
surge in interest rates during the year.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense generally represents Hong Kong profits tax of 16.5%
on estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. The income tax
expense decreased to HK$3.1 million in FY2023 from HK$6.3 million in
FY2022, which was primarily attributable to lower assessable profits.

Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company approximated to HK$27.8 million in FY2023 as compared to
loss of HK$20.6 million in FY2022.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Net assets

Our net assets amounted to HK$160.6 million and HK$183.5 million as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively.

For illustrative purposes, by including the revaluation surplus of the land and
buildings of the Group of HK$852.3 million, being the premium of the total
valuation of HK$1,451.3 million, as appraised by an independent valuer
engaged by the Company in respect of the valuation of the land and buildings
of the Group performed as at 31 March 2023, over the carrying amount of the
land and buildings of the Group of HK$599.0 million as at 31 March 2023, the
adjusted consolidated net assets of the Group would have been HK$1,012.9
million as at 31 March 2023.

lllustrative Adjusted Consolidated Net Assets i BAMHRARGESEETE

Net assets BEFE

llustrative revaluation surplus of the land and AEE L RIEFH AN
buildings of the Group (Note) sHAa% (M)

Adjusted consolidated net assets KRGS EESFE

Note:

The land and buildings of the Group are occupied and used by the Group to perform its
ordinary business and have been classified as property, plant and equipment and stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. To better illustrate the
latest market value of the net assets at the date of the Statement of Financial Position, the
illustrative revaluation surplus was presented to facilitate a better understanding of the
users of the financial statements.
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lilustrative Revaluation Surplus AN EGRG
Total valuation of the land and buildings of the Group”
Carrying amount of the land and buildings of

owned assets of the Group
Revaluation surplus of the land and buildings of the Group
A appraised by an independent valuer.

Current ratio

As at 31 March 2023, our cash and bank balances amounted to HK$23.4
million (as at 31 March 2022: HK$29.1 million) and were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars; and our net current liabilities were HK$184.8 million (net
current liabilities as at 31 March 2022: HK$155.3 million). The current ratio,
being current assets over current liabilities, remained at approximately 0.2
times as at 31 March 2023 (as at 31 March 2022: 0.2 times).

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings and loan from a fellow subsidiary, net of cash and cash
equivalents) over total assets (representing current assets and non-current
assets). As at 31 March 2023, our gearing ratio was 52.9% as compared with
the gearing ratio of 50.9% as at 31 March 2022. The increase was mainly
attributable to increase in relation to debt financing for Pine Residence in
FY2023.
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Maturity profile

The graph below shows the debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31 March

2023 and 2022.

Maturity Profile zigER

FHER
T B B R A5 5 8 70 2023 F )2 20224 3 A 31 B W
BEIEER

Debt Maturity Profile at end of FY2023 and FY2022

20238 BN BB [k 2022 B B FF B R Y & A& B H 1B R
Gross Debt Amount (HK$ million) @ &&%8 (§&#T)

FY2023 202381 BLEE

78.4Note) (i) 409 388.5
FY2022 2022Bt R EEE
118.4MNote) (i) (2600 337.5

e Within one year or on demand ) In the 3rd to 5th years
—FRHEERER REEIFEHSF

e In the 2nd year @ More than 5years
RE25F E2iES

Note : Included revolving loans of HK$16.85 million (FY2022: HK$39.95 miillion).

As at 31 March 2023, our interest-bearing bank borrowings amounted to
HK$589.6 million, among which, assuming the aforesaid term loan would be
repayable according to the repayment schedule, HK$78.4 million, HK$49.1
million, HK$388.5 million, and HK$73.6 million were repayable within one year
or on demand, in the second year, in the third to fifth years (both years
inclusive), and beyond five years respectively. As at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022, all of our interest-bearing bank borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and the majority of our interest-bearing bank borrowings
were secured by the land and buildings of the Group. For further details in
respect of the effective interest rate of our interest-bearing bank borrowings,
please refer to note 27 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

Loan from a fellow subsidiary amounted to HK$20.0 million would be
repayable within one year or on demand.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during
FY2023. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves.
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91.7 583.6
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Total capital expenditure during FY2023 was HK$39.3 million (FY2022:
HK$40.2 million), mainly for renovation works of Pine Residence and our care
and attention homes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements contained in this
annual report, there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures undertaken by the Group during FY2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
During FY2023, the Group did not have any significant investments held.

COMMITMENT
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any commitments.

EETAERERE -
E NN E

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, land and buildings and construction in progress with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$599.0 million (31 March 2022: HK$617.3
million), and investment in an insurance contract with carrying amount of
HK$3.5 million (as at 31 March 2022: HK$3.4 million) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save for the above, the Group
had no other pledge of assets as at 31 March 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the business projects disclosed under the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement”, the Group did not have any specific future plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2023. The Group will
fund the said business projects through internally generated funds and
available banking facilities.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to the Group’s
bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the
best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The
Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

As at 31 March 2023, if the interest rates on borrowings had been 75 basis
points higher/lower, which was considered reasonably possible by
management, with all other variables held constant, the profit after tax for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$3.7 million (FY2022: HK$3.7 million) as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of bank loans. In addition, banking facilities
have been put in place for contingency purposes.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an on-going basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets mainly comprising cash
and bank balances and due from a joint venture has a maximum exposure
that equals to the carrying amounts of these instrument. In relation to
concentration of credit risk, the Group has one external customer which
accounts for approximately 94.7% (2022: 82.3%) of total trade receivables.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk, and hence the
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 488 full-time and part-time
employees (as at 31 March 2022: 504 employees). Our staff costs (without
deducting government grants) were HK$134.7 million in FY2023 (FY2022:
HK$130.0 million).

The Group strives to ensure that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive, and employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis,
together with reference to the profitability of the Group, prevailing remuneration
benchmarks in the industry, and market conditions, within the general
framework of the Group’s remuneration system.

In addition, the Group also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.

The remuneration of the Directors is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board, according to the relevant directors’ experience,
responsibility, workload, the time devoted to the Group, the Group’s operating
results and comparable market statistics.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

From 31 March 2023 to the date of this annual report, save as disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements contained in this annual report, there was
no important event affecting the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald

Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald, JP, aged 66, was appointed as a non-executive
director, the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in
October 2022. Mr. Choi is currently the Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of Chinachem Group. He is responsible for managing Chinachem
Group’s operation and overseeing the corporate development and business
strategies of Chinachem Group. Mr. Choi is also a director of Chime
Corporation Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Choi holds various degrees and has worked globally as an architect and
developer for more than 30 years and believes passionately in the power of
design to empower society. Very active across a number of business,
community, professional, and academic areas, he is, or had served as,
amongst other roles, President of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects (2021-
2022), President of the Hong Kong Institute of Urban Design (2020-2022), and
Chief Curator for the Hong Kong Exhibition at the 17th Venice Biennale. Mr.
Choi is also a Trustee of Rhode Island School of Design, Board Member of
Business Environment Council, Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks
Corporation and Hong Kong Green Building Council, Building Committee
Member of the CUHK Medical Centre, Board Chairperson of Construction
Innovation and Technology Application Centre, and the Honorary Advisor of
the Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre.

Mr. Choi is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Urban Design. He is also a member of various
architectural institutions from other jurisdictions, including the Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada, the Royal Australian Institute of Architects,
the Royal Institute of British Architects, and the Architect Architectural Institute
of British Columbia and has PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification.

Mr. Wong Hung Han

Mr. Wong Hung Han, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company in October 2022. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Wong is currently the Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of Chinachem Group. He joined Chinachem Group in 2013
as Head of Internal Audit and was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer
since 2018. He has direct managerial responsibilities over property services,
human resources, legal, company secretarial, workplace services, insurance,
internal controls and central procurement functions of the Chinachem Group.
He also oversees Chinachem Group’s risk management and crisis
management. Mr. Wong is a director of Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited and
Chime Corporation Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr.
Wong is currently the non-executive Director of ENM Holdings Limited (stock
code: 128, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Wong holds a Master of Science in Real Estate degree from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master of Business Administration degree from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor of Science
(Computer and Information Sciences) degree from the National University of
Singapore.

Mr. Tsang Tin For

Mr. Tsang Tin For, aged 61, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company in October 2022. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tsang is currently the Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of Chinachem Group. He is responsible for managing the finance,
investment and treasury functions of Chinachem Group. Mr. Tsang is also a
director of Chime Corporation Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Tsang has over 30 years of experience in finance and risk management,
and has held senior positions in different industries including real estate groups
in Hong Kong. Prior to joining Chinachem Group, he was the director of
corporate audit of Hang Lung Group, the general manager of the financial
control department of MTR Corporation Limited, and an executive Director of
Hysan Development Company Limited.

Mr. Tsang holds a Master of Arts degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Engineering Science from the University of Oxford. Mr. Tsang is a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of The
Association of Corporate Treasurers and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein

Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in October 2022. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu is currently the Chief Investment Officer
of CCG Investments Limited and the Director of Business Transformation and
Innovation of Chinachem Group. He is responsible for formulating and
executing investment and business transformation strategies to enhance
Chinachem Group’s existing businesses and operations, as well as to identify
new business models and revenue streams for future growth.

Mr. Wu has over 25 years of experience in investment and innovation. Prior to
joining Chinachem Group, Mr. Wu had worked at various multinational
companies and/or consulting firms, including china.com Corporation Limited,
Avanade Hong Kong Limited and Link Asset Management Limited.

Mr. Wu holds a Bachelor of Mathematics (Joint Honours in Management
Accounting Option/Computer Science — Co-operative Program) degree from
The University of Waterloo. He is also the Vice President of Smart City
Consortium, a member of the expert review panel of the Logistics and Supply
Chain MultiTech R&D Centre Limited, and a member of the Enterprise Support
Scheme assessment panel under the Innovation and Technology Fund of The
Innovation, Technology and Industry Bureau.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

IREREERBREFHERSELEM - T
BABRTREIRE T B0 LB KBE 2 (5
HHREBRE) BLEBM -

BEERREE

ERAELE 615 R2022F 10 AEZEAAR
FPEITES - WINARRARETHBRARMNES -
SEEBRAEREENTEFTREREVHLH - &
 EEREREENNE BERRERE - 24
ENARNREEREFEL2AERAFNES -

LEANT B RARER S EREABI0FLER I
EREBETRTE(REEESE) BESRBAL -
RIMAEREE R - REEEREENETHE -
BEHBERARNE BRI HALERFEEE
BRAFHHNITES -

BLAEEREFEREXBELIBM R TIENEXE
B8 - BELERBEGIMARERGE  ©
EUBERLEE 8 MERE REA L EIFER AT

gg8-

BHIZERR A

MEBAKE 535, 0 R2022F 10 AEEZ T AAR
FPEITES - ®INARARETHBRARMNES -
HAERAERERAERAGIERILELHLER
SEEBEARAFNAE - FEEFHTERATRE
REBEARE  UEEEREERENEKRE
B ARAARARERAZHEBEEEARKAR
IR e

RS ERNR A BT A 25 FAEER  TENIA
FERMEBA AL EERSHBRCER HE
AN BEREREBEBR AT - Avanade Hong
Kong Limited BB EEEIEGRAAF] ©

SR EBHERNBHBEN (TR FE#
BAKBERN — BMAERE) - MAAE S MR
BIEE  DRRHEERS TRIHAEDOERFER
PR B RAIFHE R TEREFT MR ESE
TREERFIFEZEGNNKE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

o BN A PR R R

Ms. Hui Wai Man

Ms. Hui Wai Man, aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in October 2022. Ms. Hui is currently the Director of Chief Executive
Officer Office of Chinachem Group. She is responsible for leading and driving
all stakeholders to implement business strategies and execute new initiatives
and major projects of Chinachem Group.

Ms. Hui has over 20 years of experience in accounting and corporate advisory.
Prior to joining Chinachem Group, she had worked at the Hong Kong and
Shanghai offices of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited and specialised in
advisory practice.

Ms. Hui holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance degree from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Yip Keung

Mr. Chan Yip Keung, aged 40, joined the Group as the chief financial officer
in April 2015. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 30 April
2016 and was designated as an executive director of the Company on 7
September 2016. Mr. Chan was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group in October 2020 and responsible for leading, planning and
managing business development and operations of the Group. He was
appointed by Chinachem Group as the Director of Elderly Care Services in
November 2022.

Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in financial and capital
management, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, business
analysis and development. He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration (Professional Accountancy) from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 2005 and a degree of Master of Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September 2017.
He has been a member and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2009 and March 2018 respectively; and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute since December 2017. Mr. Chan is an
independent non-executive director of OrbusNeich Medical Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 6929, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 23 December 2022).

He worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers from September 2005 to October
2011 with his last position being manager, assurance, institutional group. Prior
to joining the Group, from November 2011 to April 2015, Mr. Chan was the
finance manager of Mapletree Hong Kong Management Limited under
Temasek of Singapore, specialised in real estate investment trusts sector.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony MH, JP, aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 23 March
2020. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yuen graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Bachelor of Business Administration in 1977. He was awarded The Ten
Outstanding Young Persons (+ A& H F4F) in 1992. He is a seasoned
executive in the financial and insurance fields in which he held senior executive
positions in a number of major international and local companies.

Mr. Yuen is currently a Director of the CUHK Medical Centre Ltd. He was an
independent non-executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 6161), a company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange,
for the period from 14 April 2015 to 7 January 2020.

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 19 October 2020.

Mr. Lam graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in December 1981. Mr. Lam
was awarded The Ten Outstanding Young Persons (+A£EH 5 £F) in 1996.
Mr. Lam has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since February 1998 and a certified internal auditor of the
Institute of Internal Auditors since March 2009.

He had been an Accounting Officer in The Treasury of HKSAR Government
since July 1986 and retired in April 2017. He also served as an independent
non-executive director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code:
2293, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from June
2014 to January 2019. Mr. Lam is a co-founder of Hong Kong Rehabilitation
Power, and he served as the president of its council of management from April
1995 to December 2013. He also co-founded Empowering Life Network
Limited, a charitable organisation aiming to serve deprived youths, in 2013.
Mr. Lam was a member of the Rehabilitation Advisory Committee of the
HKSAR Government from January 2016 to December 2021.
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Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kam Pui, BBS, JP, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company
with effect from 19 October 2020. He has extensive experience in human
resources management and administration with local and international
renowned organisations. He has been a council member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management since June 2000 and latterly
served as its president from July 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Wong graduated
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 1996. He subsequently obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in November 2013.

He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the HKSAR Government in
2015. Mr. Wong has taken up responsibilities with governmental bodies of the
HKSAR and has been serving as an adviser for various matters concerning the
local community, including human resources, education, labour, welfare,
commerce and economic development matters, to name a few: chairman of
Cross-Industry Training Advisory Committee on Human Resource
Management, member of Committee on Self-financing Post-Secondary
Education, ordinary member of Travel Industry Authority, executive committee
member of Hong Kong Housing Society, a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute and a board member of
Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board. In October 2020, Mr. Wong was
awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star in recognition of his dedicated and meritorious
public service. As a member of the Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries and Conditions of Service, he provided invaluable advice on
civil service pay and related matters. He also serves the education sector with
enthusiasm, and has made significant contribution to the development of
post-secondary education and curriculum development.

Mr. Wong is the founder and has been a director of RESOLUTIONS HR &
Business Consultancy Company Limited, a private company principally
engaged in the provision of business and human resources solutions as well
as consultancy services, since March 2015. He served as a non-executive
director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from September
2014 to June 2018. Mr. Wong has been an independent non-executive
director of the Medialink Group Limited (stock code: 2230, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since April 2019. In August 2020,
he was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as a Part-time HR
Advisor for the new campus development at Dongguan.
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Mr. Wong Kit Loong

Mr. Wong Kit Loong, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company with
effect from 19 October 2020. He is a property development management
professional with over 30 years’ experience and extensive network in the
property development management and housing sectors. He had served as
the chief executive officer and executive director of the Hong Kong Housing
Society from April 2009 to March 2020.

Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in General Business
Management from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1978. He is also a
graduate of the Advanced Management Program of Harvard Business School.
He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Housing and Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors.

Mr. Wong has been actively involved in various public and community
services. He is currently a member of the Governing Council of Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and a member of Land and Development Advisory
Committee. He has also been appointed as a member of The Town Planning
Board with effect from 1 April 2022. Mr. Wong has served the Steering
Committee on Qualifications Framework Fund under Education Bureau until
September 2020. He was also a member of Task Force on Land Supply, the
chairman of the Apprenticeship Training Board of Vocational Training Council,
a member of Land, Rehousing and Compensation Committee of Urban
Renewal Authority, a member of the Property Management Industry Training
Advisory Committee under Education Bureau, the Chairman of Chartered
Institute of Housing, Asian Pacific Branch, and a member of Hong Kong
Housing Manager Registration Board.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chu Lai King, aged 70, is the head of human resources of the Group.
She joined the Group in July 1989 as home manager. Ms. Chu is responsible
for recruitment and human resources matters of the Group.

Ms. Chu obtained a Diploma in Gerontology from School of Professional and
Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong in August 2005.

Ms. Yam Hau Kam, aged 56, is one of the nursing directors of the Group.
She joined the Group in February 1990 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Yam is
responsible for the quality control of the senior care services of the Group.

Ms. Yam has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for United Christian Hospital from February 1989 to
October 1989. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open
University of Hong Kong in June 2006 and completed the Assessors Training
Course (2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology in November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation
Scheme.

Ms. Pun Shuk Kan Pisa, aged 58, is one of the nursing directors of the
Group. She joined the Group in January 1998 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Pun is
responsible for the quality control of the senior care services of the Group.
Since January 2023, Ms. Pun has been responsible for the business
development and management of ageing-in-place and senior living initiatives
of the Group.

Ms. Pun has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for Sik Sik Yuen Elderly Service from June 1993 to August
1997. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open University of
Hong Kong in June 2006. Ms. Pun completed the Assessors Training Course
(2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology in
November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme and
completed the Advance Diploma Programme in Dementia Care from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing
in April 2021.
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Mr. Lo Sze Hung, aged 39, joined the Company on 22 February 2021 as the
Chief Financial Officer to oversee the Company’s accounting and finance
matters and internal control affairs. Mr. Lo has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, finance and business advisory work. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lo worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong, from September
2006 to June 2015, with his last position as senior manager. He also worked
at Hutchison Port Holdings Group from June 2015 to July 2017, as the group
finance manager; and at Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock code:
8086), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from July 2017 to
February 2019, with his last position as the group chief financial officer and
company secretary. Mr. Lo was the assistant general manager, of the finance
department, of HKIA Services Holdings Limited (a subsidiary under Airport
Authority Hong Kong) from February 2019 to February 2021. Mr. Lo obtained
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration (Professional Accountancy)
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006. He has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.
Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director of South Manganese
Investment Limited (Stock Code: 1091), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 31 October 2022.

Ms. Ho Pui Lam, aged 36, is the marketing and corporate communications
director of the Group. She joined the Group in 2018 as the marketing
manager. Ms. Ho is responsible for leading multimedia marketing initiatives
and go-to-market business development strategy as well as managing the
marketing and customer service team of the Group. Ms. Ho obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Arts (Communication and Media Management) from the
University of South Australia in 2010. She is a seasoned executive in digital,
content and integrated marketing with over 10 years solid experience in the
E-commerce and global digital advertising industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance in
maintaining its corporate transparency and accountability. The Board
formulates appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board considers that during the year ended 31 March 2023, except for
the code provision F.2.2, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are
summarised below.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Company was founded in 1989, our vision and mission is embodied in
our motto “Respecting the Elderly as Family” (fz£1n%i). We promote a
respectful environment for our residents where our staffs show the same level
of respect to the elderly as they would to their own family.

Throughout the years, we are committed to provide the elderly a warm, safe,
and comfortable environment with services delivered by a team of caring
professionals. Guided by our values of Respect and Caring, Professional
Services and Excellence of Quality, we strive to provide the “Warm Feeling of
Home” to elderly.

RESPECT & CARE

BEANBE

WARM
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With our unwavering dedication to quality and focus on innovation, we aimed
at setting a new standard in Hong Kong’s senior care industry and strive to
make a meaningful impact on society.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries have been made to all the
directors and all directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”), governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant
employees in advance.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of the
Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decision and
performances in the attainment of the objectives of ensuring effective
functioning and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. All the
directors carry out their duties in good faith, take decisions objectively and act
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The
Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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The Board has power to make its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations. In order to ensure that independent views and input are available
to the Board, any director may request for independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

The senior management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the
Board for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to the entering into of any significant
transactions by the above-mentioned officers. The Board has the full support
of the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Board Composition
As at 31 March 2023, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive director

BITES

Non-executive directors

FHUTES

BEEGRAARAMEERZHERRRE  B1EH

ERERMABRKRER BERBEREE  NHE
ZRERER RS  BEARS (LERMEESME

BROZH)  WBER BEENZEUAREMER
MBREEEH -

ERESYTERISHEAEBER  TARSLQ
AMENSREEENERRRYE  EURRES
SRF KA EBENTRIISEET - BHERE
FENASEYBMLER  ENEFSRIAE
2R EMEEEANEERL TEHABYIEE
BR - MERBARBAE

o

EFRSOMAKENAREEREE ASREE
EBERAENNBE - ERIROITORE L THESE
HESiRe - ERSABERI M EAEAR S -
VAEEEREEGHE  SREREE2HIIFES
ERITEREA -

EEEMNAEK
MR2023F3A31H  EFSMERNT :

Independent non-executive directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Hung Han

Mr. Chan Yip Keung
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Tsang Tin For

Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein

Ms. Hui Wai Man

BRWE (L/E)

BN bt

BB L

FRERSE

FFEHA L

PR SEAE
(778 EL)

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai

Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kit Loong

MERLE
EIRM A
L
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The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors). On 7 October 2022,
Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald, Mr. Wong Hung Han, Mr. Tsang Tin For, Mr. Wu
Tat Ming Damein and Ms. Hui Wai Man were appointed as non-executive
directors of the Company, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”).
After that, the Board comprised 14 members, of which 4 were executive
directors, 6 were non-executive directors and 4 were independent non-
executive directors. As a result, the number of independent non-executive
directors has fallen below one-third of the Board as required under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. Subsequently on 28 October 2022, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing,
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing and Mr. Cheng Wai Ching resigned as executive directors
of the Company, and Dr. Tang Yiu Pong resigned as a non-executive director
of the Company. Accordingly, Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules was then be re-
complied with. Other than the aforesaid period from 7 October 2022 to 28
October 2022, during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board has met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules which requires the
Company to have a minimum of three independent non-executive directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them (i.e. Mr.
Lam Cheung Wai) possessing appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for specific terms. Pursuant to their respective letters of appointment, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles.

The members of the Board have skills and experience appropriate for the
business requirements and objectives of the Group. The executive director is
responsible for the business and functional division of the Group. The non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) bring
different business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board and they are invited to serve on the Board committees
of the Company. Through participation in Board meetings, and taking the lead
in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests, the independent
non-executive directors have made contributions to the effective direction of
the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of both the Group and the shareholders.

The Company values diversity and inclusion at both Board and workforce
level, making every effort to attract and retain calibre. There is currently 1
female director, representing 10% of the Board. The total gender diversity of
the Company’s workforce (including senior management) as of 31 March
2023 is approximately 85.2% female:14.8% male.
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Given the nature of the Group’s business and the senior care industry that the
Group operates in, equality of gender shall be difficult to achieve within the
Group. The Board is also of the view that selection of candidates should be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, skills, professional knowledge and experience,
and length of service. While the Group understands the importance of diversity
in terms of gender and will, as far as practicable, take gender diversity into
consideration, the ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution which
would be brought by the selected candidates.

The Board may increase the proportion of female members to the Board over
time as and when suitable candidates are identified. More details on the
workforce diversity are set out in the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2023 in this annual report.

The biographical details of the existing directors of the Company are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this
annual report. Save as disclosed, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) between any of the
directors of the Company.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is a key element to good
corporate governance. The Board has put in place the following mechanism to
ensure independent views and input are available to the Board.

v Four out of the ten Board members are independent non-executive
directors, which exceeds the requirements in relation to the number of
independent non-executive directors under the Listing Rules.

v None of the independent non-executive director has served the
Company for more than nine years.

v The Audit Committee comprises independent non-executive directors
only. Independent non-executive directors form the majority of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

v Independent non-executive directors receive fixed fee for their role as
members of the Board and Board Committee(s).

Independent non-executive directors are encouraged to actively participate in
the Board and Board Committee(s) meetings. In facilitating constructive
discussions, independent non-executive directors may request for external
independent professional advice to assist and discharge their responsibilities
at the expense of the Company. Formal and informal channels are in place for
independent non-executive directors to express their views openly and
outspokenly, including the meeting sessions with the Chairman of the Board
and the external auditor of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for the annual assessment of the
independence of all independent non-executive directors. The Company has
received written annual confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive directors of their independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, and considered all independent non-executive directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanism during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgment of views.

The Chairman provides leadership for and management of the Board. He
takes the primary responsibility to ensure that the Board works effectively,
performs its responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in a
timely manner. The Chairman is also responsible for facilitating the effective
contribution of non-executive directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive directors. During the year under review,
the Chairman has met with the non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors present.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business in accordance with the strategy, policies
and programs approved by the Board, and realization of the objectives set by
the Board into statements of vision, goals and the corresponding strategies,
plans and budgets as well as their effective implementation. He is also
responsible for providing reports and advice to the Board on the performance
of the Group’s business. The Chief Executive Officer would be well supported
by the management, who provides relevant information and recommendations
to facilitate informed decision making.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment and removal of directors are laid
down in the Company’s existing Articles. According to the Articles, one-third
of the directors for the time being (if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting (the “AGM”) provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM.
In addition, any new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/her
appointment, and any director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM. The director
appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election at the
relevant general meeting.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director shall receive formal induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional
development for directors are arranged whenever necessary. In addition,
reading materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable
to the Group are provided to directors from time to time for their studying and
reference.

The directors of the Company are required to submit to the Company details
of the training they received in each financial year for the Company’s
maintenance of proper training records of the directors. According to the
training records currently maintained by the Company, during the year ended
31 March 2023, the directors of the Company have complied with the code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on participation in continuous professional
training as follows:

ZEREEES
ESRERBRZRFBRENARFRTHAA -
RIBAY - EREIN =Dz —EF(HARALIF=
MBS AINSBIIERNPR=ZDZ —MABRBE)
AREEBRRBFASG ([RRBFAE]) LHER
F HESRERAZLE=_FHERTE R RE
EENAERNEHRRBEF RGERBEE - thsh
EAREFSZENARRRERONERTHE
ERZERNERERRAG /L MEMRESS
ZEMARBEZENEZAHNEE TERRESF
RERLE - LHBESZENESTTEERRARE
PRERKRE LERE(E -

EEMBIIRSEER
BEHNEANES BN EEREEREIEXAR
Bl ARREEAEEOES RESRREEY
MTR O ARBHR ETRARABEERETH
BIEREBERRREH

REEENTHERERLREERENRIERE
AR TBEBETSRFEE  AEETRENE
B - ARASEHENARERREZTLIHRLE
ERR- M BEFTRERUEFEANAER
TR E R AR AR AT BERRERNE
MBIREER  AREEHRLSH -

ARNFEREREVRFERNARARRARRIEEER
RIFAIES - WSARRRGFEENEE FIHE -
RIEARA BAIRTEIEIRE  AARESHE
220233 A31 HIEFEDEFEEATRISFA
BEXECIAK  RABESMEEZTEE) B
NN

B A R A
2023 & 3§



~

40

-

P

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o Jegleh e

Name of Directors

Type of training

EEEH EZIER
Non-executive Directors: FHITESE

Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald? 2RI e I 1l
Mr. Wong Hung Han? FolBk e Ll
Mr. Tsang Tin For@ BRERRSE A L
Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein® HRIERR S e Ll
Ms. Hui Wai Man® FrEg e I
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong® ilh e Il
Executive Directors: HiTESE -

Mr. Chan Yip Keung PREESR A& Al
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing® B RS 5 AP Ll
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing® TR ER S AP Ll
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching® BB 4 I S AP (Al
Independent Non-executive Directors: HIIFHITESE -

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony FriEnE I 1l
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai MER %% I
Mr. Wong Kam Pui =iRH A Ll
Mr. Wong Kit Loong =LA Ll
I: represents the attendance of seminars/conferences and/or forums; II: represents the |- P HERNE @8k g | BEEEERAA

reading of materials provided by the Company or external parties, which are related to
regulatory development/updates, directors’ duties, corporate governance or other
relevant topics.

Notes:
a. Appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 7 October 2022.

b. Resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022.

Meetings

The Board schedules regular Board meetings in advance to give directors the
opportunity to participate actively, either in person or through electronic means
of communication which enable them to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously. Directors are consulted for their views
regarding inclusion of specific matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings and the draft agenda is circulated to directors for their comments.
Special Board meetings are convened as and when needed. All directors are
properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. These Board
meetings, together with the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
meetings, provide effective means for the Board and Board Committees to
perform their work and discharge their duties.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had held 4 Board
meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting,

1 Nomination Committee meeting and the 2022 AGM. Details of individual

directors’ attendance at these meetings are set out in the following table:

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE - RAFRIT4RES

P gN—- N = = 0= A A A
e% SANEZZELLH

AR EEES

FOIRREERESGE  AR202FRRAF K
g BREERREGANHFEFBANTE

Audit Remuneration Nomination 2022

Board Committee Committee Committee Annual

Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  General Meeting
ENZEE yHzse REZEE 2022%

ESEn Ezeed a3 g3 26 RERAFAE

Non-executive Directors: FHTEE

Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald®* BRES fee 2/2 N/ATiE B - - -

Mr. Wong Hung Han® FalBsEe 2/2 N/ATE A N/ATEF N/ATE R -

Mr. Tsang Tin For® BRI A 2/2 N/AT NATER NATER -

Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein® TER LA 2/2 N/ATEH NATER NATER -

Ms. Hui Wai Man¢ FEHTLe 2/2 NATER N/ATE N/ATER -

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong® HRAELe 2/2 N/ATE A N/ATER N/ATER o

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. Chan Yip Keung BREREE 4/4 N/ATEF NATER NATER 11

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing® ¢ HEA g gL 2/2 N/AZTNE il il 0/1

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing® BRELED 2/2 N/AT A N/ATER N/ATER o

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching® Bl 2/2 N/ATE A N/ATER N/ATER 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHNTEE

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony iR 4/4 3/3 il 11 11

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai WEREE 4/4 3/3 11 11 1/1

Mr. Wong Kam Pui HIRTRAE 4/4 3/3 NATER NATER 1/1

Mr. Wong Kit Loong BREEE 4/4 33 NATER NATER 11

Notes: FifsT -

a. Appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 7 October 2022.  a. BEERTRAFESE - H2022F 10 A7 BBER -
Subsequent to their appointments, 2 Board meetings were held during the year HEEZTE  REBEFERNRIT2ONESSSH
under review.

b. Resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022. Priorto  b. BIIADNRIESE B2022F 10288 #EK - B
their resignation, 2 Board meetings and the 2022 Annual General Meeting were BEBER  REEFEANRRIT2RAEESLR
held during the year under review. K 2022 FRRBFARE ©

c. Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald was appointed as the member of the Remuneration  c. BRESEEETATNEE SR ERIEREES
Committee and the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 28 FE H2022F 1028 ABAM - HEZ (T4 -
October 2022. Subsequent to his appointment, no Remuneration Committee REBEFEATERTHFNZESeREMIEREE
meeting and Nomination Committee meeting was held during the year under TEE -
review.

d. Mr. Tang Yiu Sing ceased as the member of the Remuneration Committee and ~ d. HRALETEREIFMNEEGRKERREEZES

the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 28 October 2022.
Prior to his resignation. 1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination
Committee meeting were held during the year under review.

FFE B2022F 10 A28 HAR A3k o HEHT AT 1
BEFENCRTIATHEEESHR1AIREE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. Al
the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises a total of 3 members, being
one non-executive director, namely Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
(chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Lam Cheung Wai.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has met the Listing
Rules requirements of having the majority of the Remuneration Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, as well as having the
Committee chaired by an independent non-executive director.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure, and the remuneration packages of directors and members of senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted). The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
the Board.

The Company’s remuneration policy also sets to ensure the directors are
appropriately remunerated which their remuneration packages are determined
based on their skills and knowledge, experience, responsibility, workload, the
time devoted to the Group and comparable market statistics. The emoluments
of the executive director are also determined having regard to the performance
of the individual, the Group’s operating results and the prevailing market
condition during that year. The independent non-executive directors receive
fixed fees for their roles as members of the Board and the Board
Committee(s). None of such fees are based on the performance of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee has held
1 meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”). The Remuneration Committee
performed the following major works: (i) reviewed the existing remuneration
policy and structure of the Company; (i) reviewed the remuneration packages
of directors and senior management of the Company; (iii) considered the
bonus payment of executive directors and senior management of the
Company; (iv) noted the change in composition of the Remuneration
Committee; (v) updated the Terms of Reference for compliance with the
Listing Rules; and (vi) made relevant recommendations to the Board.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March
2023 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
FENEE ()

BHZE2023F3 A1 HILFE  HMEE®EHE1T1
REFE(FZEgRENERCHIR LEXTEE]
—BA)  FMEZEG#ITTATERIME ()M
TARRRIMIRB FHNECR REE : ((BHAQFE
ERERNEREOFTEFE (i) ZBAARDFAT
EERSREEBIMIEL  (WAEHFNEZESA
RREVES)  WEFTREBEUNGA TR RV
MEFSELAEEBEE -

RIBECEERTAISTRMESCEEA LK - #E2023
FIASALFESACEEKERBEEZ HNF
EEHMWEY T

Number of
individual(s)
N

500,001-1,000,000
1,000,001-1,500,000
1,5600,001-2,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of 3 members, being the
Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald (chairman of the
Committee), and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen
Tak Tim Anthony and Mr. Lam Cheung Wai.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has met the Listing
Rules requirement of having a majority of the Nomination Committee members
being independent non-executive directors, and having the Committee chaired
by the Chairman of the Board.

500,001%1,000,000
1,000,001%1,500,000 2
1,500,001 22,000,000
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; identify qualified and suitable individuals to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive of the Company.

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy. Such policy, devising
the criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation, provides
guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors. The
Board believes that the defined selection process is good for corporate
governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level, and enhancing Board effectiveness and diversity as well as in
compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited to internal
promotion, re-designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agents. In selecting candidates for directorship of the
Company, the Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her
duties and responsibilities. Each candidate shall be ranked by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and his/her reference check.
The Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship.

For re-election of a retiring director, the Nomination Committee will determine
whether the director continues to bring benefit to the Board based on the prior
contributions of the director, and to meet the selection criteria set out in the
Director Nomination Policy. For appointment and nomination of an
independent non-executive director, the satisfaction of the independence
requirement under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules is also required.
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The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Company is
committed to attracting and retaining candidate(s) for the Board with a
combination of competencies from the widest possible pool of available
talents; and to assess regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where
applicable, the senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on achieving diversity
objectives, if any. A Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company,
pursuant to which the Board and the Nomination Committee are responsible
for reviewing and assessing the Board composition under diversified
perspectives (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience) and for ensuring that changes to the
Board’s composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to
the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be reviewed annually
to ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of
the Board.

The Nomination Committee and the Board are satisfied with the reviewed on
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board diversity policy for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination Committee has held 1
meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph headed “Meetings”). The Nomination Committee
performed the following major works: (i) reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;
(i) assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive directors;
(i) recommended the re-election of the retiring directors at the 2022 AGM; (iv)
reviewed the Board diversity policy; (v) noted the change in composition of the
Nomination Committee; and (vi) made recommendation to the change of
directors of the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the year ended 31 March
2023.

The Audit Committee currently comprises a total of 4 members, being all the
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Cheung Wai, Mr. Wong Kam Pui
and Mr. Wong Kit Loong. Mr. Lam Cheung Wai possesses the appropriate
professional qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial information
and reports of the Group, and considering any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditor before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms of
appointment of the external auditor and making relevant recommendation to
the Board; and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee has performed
the following major works: (i) reviewed and approved the audit plan of the
Company’s external auditor, including the nature and scope of audit, audit
methodology, remuneration and terms of engagement in respect of the audit
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022; (i) considered
major audit findings from the auditor; (jii) reviewed and considered the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
related annual results announcement and annual report; (iv) reviewed the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
internal audit function of the Group; (v) considered the change of the
Company’s auditor; (vi) considered the re-appointment of auditor at the 2022
AGM; (vii) reviewed the interim financial statements of the Group and related
results announcement and report of the Company for the six months ended
30 September 2022; and (viii) made relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each
Committee member are set out in the above paragraph headed “Meetings”)
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The external auditor has attended the above meetings and discussed with the
Audit Committee members on relevant audit planning and financial reporting
matters. Besides, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023. The
management has provided such explanation and information to the Board as
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for approval.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and position of the Group put
forward to the Board for approval.

As set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report, as at 31 March 2023, the Group reported consolidated net current
liabilities of HK$184.8 million, which mainly included lease liabilities, loan from
a fellow subsidiary, interest-bearing bank borrowings which included revolving
bank loan facilities and a bank loan that is not contractually due within the next
twelve months from 31 March 2023 but classified as current liability due to the
bank’s overriding rights to demand repayment.

The directors have given careful consideration of the liquidity and performance
of the Group, and capital expenditure plans and the available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group has sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concem.

After taking into account of the projection of the Group’s cash flows from
operations, the reasonably possible changes to the cash flow assumptions in
the cash flow projections for the twelve months ending 31 March 2024, the
successful roll over of the revolving bank loan facilities with similar terms and
that the loan will be paid according to the contractual repayment schedule
notwithstanding the rights to demand clause in these facilities; the availability of
new banking facilities and unutilised credit facilities of the Group which may be
drawn as and when needed; the ability of the Group to comply with the bank
loan covenants in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2023; and the
confirmation from Chime Corporation Limited, the ultimate holding company of
the Group’s major shareholders, on its intention to provide financial support, for
the continuing operations of the Group (as detailed in note 2.1 to the financial
statements), the directors considered that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the coming
twelve months from 31 March 2023 and continue as going concern.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023 on a going concern basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have been
designed to protect assets from misappropriation and unauthorised
transactions and to manage operational risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Company'’s shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems the relevant risks of which include,
amongst others, material risk relating to environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) matters, and makes relevant recommendations.

Management, in coordination with department heads and operation teams,
regularly assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, ranked these risks
(including ESG risks) according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact
on the Group, provided treatment plans, and monitored the risk management
progress, and reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on any findings
and measures to address the variances and identified risks. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the proliferation and continuance of the COVID-19
pandemic in Hong Kong continued to pose challenges, especially in the area
of infectious control in the Company’s care and attention homes, in which the
Company has implemented stringent preventive measures to ensure that
highest standard of hygiene protection and disinfection procedures have been
maintained. Such internal audit and assessment function aims to examine key
issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material controls, identify
deficiencies and ineffectiveness in the design and implementation of internal
controls, and propose recommendations for improvement. The Audit
Committee and the Board would review the business process and operations
reported by internal audit/management, including action plans to address the
identified control weaknesses, if any, as well as receiving status updates and
monitoring the implementation of recommended process.
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The Company has procedures and internal controls measures for the
Company’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited. The Company has maintained a list of the authorised personnel,
including its directors, management and employees with access to inside
information (the “List of Authorised Personnel”) relating directly or indirectly to
the Company. The Board has reviewed the List of Authorized Personnel on a
regular basis to see if changes are required. Authorized personnel of the
Company must take reasonable care to safeguard the confidentiality of all
inside information in their possession or control. Moreover, all employees of
the Company are required to sign the employment contract with confidentiality
agreement to ensure that they are obliged not to divulge or disclose any inside
information to any outsiders. In case of discovery of leakage of the inside
information, the Board would be notified immediately, and subsequent
remedial measures would be taken.

In addition, employee of the Company with a good faith belief that an event of
price sensitive nature exists or may exist should report to his/her immediate
supervisor/department head who is responsible for reporting the event to the
management. Management would evaluate the situation and make
recommendation to the Chairman on whether or not the issue should be
escalated to the Board. The department head is responsible for ensuring that
all events of price sensitive nature are properly reported to management who
would ensure that the event is investigated in a timely manner.

The Group is committed to high standards of openness, probity and
accountability. The Company has established Whistleblowing Policy setting
out procedures to facilitate employees and stakeholders to raise, in confidence
and anonymity, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company. Any report would be directed
to working committee when appropriate. The working committee comprising
the directors and senior management and head of Human Resources, is
responsible for evaluating every report received and decide if a full investigation
is necessary, and reporting the issue, the result of investigation and the
corrective action taken to the Audit Committee to ensure the Audit Committee
notices the issue.

ARRHEARAES  FAME SRABTEENE
HEERERERTEN ERENEERYAMH
EHEENIEF kA BRE IR - BEEIEFE B
IAREAR B AR 25 1 E 3 A R R T I R N AR B
B ARAREHF—NEREASLE  BEH
B EFEEMER REUSHEARFHEER
MEAERONEER((ERBABRE) - #EES
EEHENERRABLE UETREFHIEHE
B o RRBMEREABLARDAEEZHENE I
VARIE EL 8 SR I BV P A A REE SRR I - it
Sh RRARIZREEBHAZZRES ERRKRE R
# o UEREEREE T RINURBESREEAR
BHE - MBERARELERE  BUABNES
g WREURERRIEG -

BN AAREBMAEBREF AR FAER
BUREM BRHEEBXE HHEEAER A
BEBIE HFAEAREREREEEREES
o BREMTEBER  THRTEEEME LIRE
FgnIEELEE SR EARERRMAE
REREFIRAEEEFHZERS  MERES
EREEHEEGMEN -

FEEBNNSEENAFN  AEERBEMN -
ARRFCHIERRBEK - RIIEFAEREE RFHD
EURZRELTAEHARARRPBEE®R - A
e HEMEER R AL EEBERNEL -
EHRESEEE R REIGEEN TELZES -
FHTHEZEeHES sREEERANERE
TEAK BEMGEMEENSHRSRATRE
FEETEEAS  YAERZEQERHE - 7
ERERNARBAM R  URREZZEGH
BAMMEE -

(A Yl A
2023 & 3§

49



~

50

-

P

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o Jegleh e

In June 2022, the Group has, based on its current practices and procedures,
formalised the Anti-corruption Policy in adherent to the Group’s commitment
to conducting business honestly, ethically and with integrity. The Anti-
corruption policy provides guidance and procedures to assist employees and
stakeholders in recognising circumstance which may lead to or give the
appearance of being involved in corruption or unethical business conduct, so
as to avoid such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to promptly report or
seek guidance where necessary.

An independent risk assessment and internal control review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems has
been performed by an external consulting firm, which performed as an internal
audit function during the year. The Audit Committee and the Board would
review the reports by external consulting firm of any control issues identified in
the course of their work, and discussing with auditors the scope of their
respective review and findings. Such risk assessment and internal control
review aims to examine key issues in relation to the accounting practices and
all material controls, identify deficiencies and ineffective parts in the design and
implementation of internal controls, and propose recommendations for
improvement.

In addition, in terms of operational risks, the Company has implemented
standardised management and operational procedures across our care and
attention homes, which cover areas that are required under the RCHE Code
of Practice, Residential Care Homes (Elderly Persons) Ordinance (Chapter 459
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary legislation, the Service Quality
Standards issued by the Social Welfare Department, ISO 9001 quality
management system and the ISQua standards accredited by the Hong Kong
Association of Gerontology.

The Company has established a Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee
(“QAMC”) to oversee the quality of the operations of the senior care services.
The composition of the QAMC includes the management team, employees,
residents, families of residents and parties independent of the Company. The
QAMC is responsible for conducting surprise audits and on-site inspections at
our care and attention homes and subsequent to such audits, providing
objective feedback and recommendation to the Company to manage relevant
operational risks and improve operational processes.

The Company has participated in the accreditation program under the
Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology. Such accreditation programme promotes best practices in the
RCHE industry and conduct assessment annually. Accreditation under this
scheme ensures that the Company’s care and attention homes have, among
others, established effective governance; provided a safe, hygienic and
comfortable environment, facilities and quality services; and established a set
of planning, supervision and service improvement processes which enhance
the Company’s control over operational risks.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board, in conjunction with the
Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including the process for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance; the adequacy of resources on internal audit and the function
relating to its ESG performance and reporting, operational and compliance
controls; and financial reporting function; as well as staff qualifications,
experience, training programmes and related resources. The Board
considered that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2023 was effective and adequate, the Board also
considered the resources, qualifications/experience of staff of the Group’s
internal audit, accounting, financial reporting and business support functions
are adequate and no significant areas of concern has been identified.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Lo Sze Hung, who fulfils the
qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules. Biographical details
of Mr. Lo are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” of this annual report. During the year ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Lo
has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the existing external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s existing
external auditor, in respect of their services for the year ended 31 March 2023

are analyzed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditor
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Fee paid/payable

SNEZ BT IR ALY AR TS R e ENER
(HK$’000)
(F&T)
Audit service — audit fee for the year ended 31 March 2023 ZE RIS — B E2023F3A31HIEFEZ

ZEER 1,395

Non-audit service — agreed-upon procedures in respect of IEEPRTS — BREPEEENNITR TR
interim results 380
TOTAL A 1,775

B EEEMARA Y

2023 & 3§



~

-

P

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

52

o Jegleh e

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enables shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.

The Board has adopted a shareholders communication policy (the
“Shareholder Communication Policy”) since listing, with the objective of
ensuring timely, transparent and accurate communications between the
shareholders and the Company. In June 2023, the Board has reviewed the
Shareholder Communication Policy to ensure its implementation and
effectiveness. During the year ended 31 March 2023, with the below
communication channels in place and remaining in force for shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company and for
the Company to solicit and understand the views of shareholders and
investors, the Board is of the view that the Shareholder Communication Policy
has been effectively implemented.

The Company maintains a website at www.pinecaregroup.com as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
corporate governance and other information are available for public access.

Press releases and newsletters issued by the Company from time to time are
also available to facilitate communication between the Company,
shareholders, investors, and residents and families.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:

Address: G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street,
Tsz Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: investorrelations@pinecaregroup.com
Tel: (852) 2813 8102
Fax: (852) 3020 8779

Enquiries and requests will be dealt with by the Company in an informative
and timely manner.
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Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Sufficient notices of the general
meetings, related circulars and proxy forms are provided to the shareholders
of the Company within a prescribed time in the accordance with the Articles
and the Listing Rules. Board members, chairman of the Board committees or
their delegates, and senior staff will be present to answer questions raised by
the shareholders at general meetings of the Company. In addition, the
Company will invite representatives of the auditor to attend its annual general
meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Company should attend the annual general meetings of the Company. The
then Chairman of the Company was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 August 2022 due to other business
engagement. To ensure smooth communication, the Chairman had arranged
for the Chief Executive Officer and other directors to attend the meeting and
communicate with shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including but
not limited to the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide their full names,
contact details and identification, in the originally signed written requisition,
notice or statement (as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required by law.

With respect to the shareholders’ right in proposing persons for election as
directors of the Company, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 January
2017, the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company was adopted with effect from 15 February 2017 (the “Existing
M&A”). During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no change in the
Existing M&A. The Existing M&A is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

On 21 June 2023, the Board proposed to amend the Existing M&A for the
purposes of, among others, (i) bringing the Existing M&A in line with the latest
requirements of the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands; (i) providing flexibility for the Company to convene and hold general
meetings in physical form, electronic form or hybrid form; and (i) making
certain consequential housekeeping amendments (the “Proposed
Amendments”).

In view of the Proposed Amendments, the Board proposes to adopt a new set
of memorandum of association and articles of association (“New M&A”)
reflecting the Proposed Amendments, in substitution for, and to the exclusion
of the Existing M&A.

The proposed adoption of the New M&A is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company by way of a special resolution at the forthcoming
AGM to be held on 22 August 2023. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 21 June 2023 and circular dated 21 July 2023 for
further details of the Proposed Amendments and the 2023 AGM.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
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PURPOSE HH

The Group is here to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”). This ESG Report aims to outline
the Group’s sustainability approaches, strategies, and performance.

AEEBUERARE L REA(RE HekEr)WmE ((RE - HeRERWME]))  ARE HEREAMEEARELS
BRI RE RS - R RKRR -
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REPORTING SCOPE AND PERIOD R4 #i[E & Hi RS

The Group identifies the reporting scope of the ESG Report by considering the financial threshold and materiality level of the Group’s ESG
impact. The Group’s revenue was mainly generated from (i) rendering senior care services including the provision of residence, professional
nursing and care taking services, nutritional management, medical services, psychological and social care, and individual care plans; and (i)
sale of senior care related goods in Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023”), the landlord of premises of Patina
Wellness and the Group executed a deed of termination to record the agreement to terminate the tenancy agreement, pursuant to the deed
of termination, vacant possession of the premises of Patina Wellness was delivered to the landlord on 16 December 2022. Hence, this ESG
Report covers the ESG key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of Patina Wellness for the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December 2022 only
and the 10 care and attention homes of the Group as set out below in Hong Kong for the entire FY2023.

AEEEREARRR HSREAMENREHERZER T VBIFIELAETERE HSREAFENEEZRE - AEENKREEER
EREB(IRHEREERRG - 2ERHEATE  SXLELBRRY 28588 BERE  OBRESBIEUREAEETE ()
SHE LI EME R - NEE2023F3 A31 HIEHBFE ([2023 M BFE ) « (B AW EM T RALEETLIERE - s A
ERENHTE > BELKLE  IWEEEYENTERMEECN2022F 12 B16 BRMNGME - At - ARE - @ R EARERER
BEAN2022F 4 A1 HE 2022512 A31 BRI R 5 10E#E L EZ R N2 (E2023 M FEHIRE « &8 REABREBIEE ([FH
SREETUIEIR]) ©

Pine Care (Tak Fung) Elderly Centre Pine Care (Lee Foo) Elderly Centre
e (2 8)#ZHh o i (F'F) EZ O

New Pine Care Centre Pine Care (Po Tak) Elderly Centre
FTIREEZ O e (R18) EZH O

Pinecrest Elderly Centre Pine Care Chun King Elderly Centre
FAREEZ H L MR EREEZT L

Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre Pine Care Place

R (BF)@EEh o NFi

Pine Care Hong Fai Elderly Centre Pine Care Point

AR FRIBEE F O Fi\fie et

On the other hand, the Group expanded its upscale marketing segment with the launch of a new flagship of the Silverage Collection, Pine
Residence in Causeway Bay towards the end of the FY2023. The Group will continue to assess the major ESG aspects of different
businesses and extend the scope of disclosures when and where applicable, including information regarding Pine Residence’s performance
and developments in the upcoming financial year.
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REPORTING STANDARDS #H& %A

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange.
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION # & RiR

The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our internal statistical reports, internal policies and other internal documents.
The Board hereby confirms that no false or misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

The Group has established internal control systems and a formal review process to ensure that any information presented in this ESG Report
is as accurate and reliable as possible.
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BOARD APPROVAL E==i#t&

The ESG Report was reviewed and approved by the Board on 21 June 2023.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES # &R Al

This ESG Report is compiled by adopting the following major reporting principles according to the ESG Reporting Guide, namely materiality,

quantitative, balance and consistency as set out below:
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Reporting Principles
&R

Definition

E&

Our Response

HMaE e

Materiality
BEM

The ESG issues covered in this ESG Report should
be significantly important to stakeholders.

ARE HEREAMSMBENRE HE8R
ERRBRAHRNEEX

Through materiality assessment, the Group has
identified ESG topics that are material to various
stakeholders and its business. For details of the
assessment processes and results, please refer to
the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment”.

BRB R NEBBP LD E REEY
fMEEANRE HERELRESE - AUEEN
DIHBRERER - F2H [FhE2AIRE
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Quantitative

E1t

The ESG Report should disclose ESG KPIs in a
measurable way.

RIRE - LE REAMSEIAT R 20077 A KE
RE - de RERMBENIER -

The standards and methodologies used in the
calculation of relevant data in the ESG Report, as
well as the applicable assumptions in this
ESG Report were disclosed. The KPIs were
supplemented by explanatory notes to establish
benchmarks where feasible.

BEANGTEARRE 4@ RERREHEEER
EVRER A ME R R - BREREIRHF
MR TE - MERATIER TR A -

Balance

The ESG Report should fairly present the
information of the Group to reflect a
comprehensive picture of the sustainability
performance of the Group.

RIRIE - LB REAMS RO IR EAREE N
S5 URBMAKEEBOAFEARRRST -

The Group has identified and disclosed the ESG
issues with significant impact on the Group’s
business, including the achievements and
challenges faced by the Group, in this ESG
Report.

FEEERRENEEBEEAZEORIE 4
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Consistency

—Bk

Preparation of the ESG Report should be based
on consistent methodologies over time.

REARE  HEREAMENTAREBEMR
A&

Except for the change in reporting scope, the
statistical methodologies of this ESG Report are
substantially consistent with the ones adopted for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022”) for the
purpose of meaningful comparison. If there are
any changes that may affect the comparison with
the last report, the Group will make explanatory
notes to the corresponding section accordingly.
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ACCESS TO THIS REPORT ZA#H&EE H

This ESG Report has been prepared in both English and Chinese. In case of discrepancy, the English version shall prevail. This ESG Report
is incorporated in the Group’s annual report which is available on Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

AR HERELAWMEHATERA - EMRAHBRRE - MARIRARE - ARE - HEREGRER/LAEEFERS &7
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FEEDBACK =R X &&

Every opinion from the Group’s stakeholders is of the utmost important to the Group. If you have any opinions or suggestions to this ESG
Report or the Group’s sustainability performance, you are welcomed to email to info@pinecaregroup.com.
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ABOUT PINE CARE
R A i

Pine Care Group was founded in 1989 with the aim to set a new standard in Hong Kong’s senior care industry. With our unwavering
dedication to quality and focus on innovation, Pine Care has grown from just senior care and attention home operator into a market leader
today, and has become one of the most respected brands in the senior care industry. In 2017, we also became the first senior care operator
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

As a leader in the senior care sector and a prestigious brand, we offer professional senior care services covering operations of residential
care home, integrated senior wellness hub, daycare services, as well as provision of multidisciplinary services and management consultation

services for wellness centre.
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THE WARM FEELING OF HOME # F B2 xR

As we enter our golden years, we all want the same thing — a warm, safe, and
comfortable environment where we can enjoy the services from a team of caring
professionals. With this in mind, Pine Care Group strives to provide a home-like
environment to our residents, emphasizing on understanding each resident’s
individual needs and fostering friendships among residents and staff. With
comprehensive personal care and professional nursing services, the seniors can
enjoy a safe, private and respected ageing life.
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RESPECTING THE ELDERLY AS FAMILY #3203

We strongly believe that respect is of paramount importance. As a result, our corporate culture is embodied in the Company’s motto
of “respecting the elderly as family”, as our staff show the same level of respect to the elderly as they would to their own family. We
also place great emphasis on periodic staff training, clear and specific working guidelines and a safe and healthy working
environment, allowing our staff to develop the team spirit to the fullest. The performance of our staff is regularly assessed to
continuously improve our service quality. We believe that our team is the guarantee of service quality.
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CORE VALUES #UMEBE

Respect

Respecting the elderly residents the way we would to our families

Competence
Attracting the best people possible and having the best system in place to help them reach their full potential

Priority

Putting the best interests of the elderly residents above all else
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS #IEN =

THE HONG KONG ASSOCIATION OF GERONTOLOGY
FREFRE

o Award for Recognizing Full Participation of Elderly Service Organizations in Accreditation
ZERSBERGEESEE
Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme — Excellent Grade (Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre, Pine Care Hong Fai Elderly
Centre and Pine Care Place)
BERERETETE — SHTERGGRER (BF) EZFH O - RERFIFEEZFR O RIDETER)
o Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme — Good Grade (7 of our care and attention homes)
BERERETETE — RIFFTERDIGET 7R ER)
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THE ELDERLY SERVICES ASSOCIATION OF HONG KONG AND HONG KONG EMPLOYMENT
DEVELOPMENT SERVICE

FERERBRERTERRRREEE

. The Sixth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Excellent Staff (Front-line sector)
BEREREZRBHEIE TER — BF58 T (ARAEHR)

o The Sixth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Excellent Staff (Professional sector)
FRETEZRBHREETER — BF8T (FXA7)

o The Sixth Excellent Senior Care Staff Election — Excellent Participation Award

BRERERBHELETER — 2 p2HEE
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THE HONG KONG COUNCIL OF SOCIAL SERVICE

FEEREHE
o 5 Years + Caring Company
5FPlusE SRR B 1=

JOCKEY CLUB AGE-FRIENDLY CITY
REEREHT

. City Partnership Scheme Sticker — 2-year Partner

(29 - RERE]BH — 268
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UKAS
MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS
068

ISO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 2352
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BREREHT

Jockey Club Age-friendly City
2022

o)

7 c
Age-friendVy

..IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

\d
INEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEnns®

MANDATORY PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES AUTHORITY
HEANARSHNEER

° Good MPF Employer Award
BEitEE

ISO QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
ISO REEERK
° ISO 9001: 2015 Quality management

ISO 9001: 2015 ME EE Z 4t
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SIGNATURE PROJECTS — SILVERAGE COLLECTION EXIER — & « BE

o
PINE CARE PLACE i fa et

S\ SEA A A Pn\r CaRE PLACE
)ﬁL\ < %/E&E‘ &5 M og

Conveniently situated in Yoho Mall I, Yuen Long, Pine Care Place is a senior care home designed to combine a luxurious, home-like

environment with our innovative approach to long-term senior care services. With an area of over 33,000 square feet, Pine Care
Place offers 68 beds, averaging close to 500 square feet per resident, making us one of the most spacious senior care homes in
Hong Kong. In addition to the quality ambience, our service emphasizes individualized care, catering to each resident’s specific

needs.

R HEFERIPATTEA Yoho Mall | » (BB - EA—HRELXERS  RERTE R ORE  BealFox  BRERHE
ZRIE RIS o B MO (G %81 33,000 F 5 R - 1RHE 68 EEALL - AHHEIBELS00F LR - BHEABZE Fﬁr%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁz%ﬁ*%z— ®
RTITEEEFENEEERR  MREBTEERANEFEERN  TEREEUREMT °

ENRICHING THE LIVES OF THE SENIOR EER &4 &

An extensive range of amenities is available to maintain the physical and mental health of our residents, including physiotherapy
room and sensory therapy room. Pine Care Place also offers individualized nursing care and rehabilitation programs to help the
senior to carry out appropriate training. Pine Care Place’s leisure facilities include a video and karaoke room, liorary and computer
corner, games room, indoor garden, beauty salon, coffee bar, dining room, spa and meditation room. Senior residents can enjoy
their stay and form companionships with neighbors both indoors and outdoors.

MBI B IRFT R E 5O - Tmﬁi‘“ﬁﬁymﬂs WYBEEE  BREREES  BEAEAEEAINERETR  ABHRELE
TTELIEFIAR - thHh - BB EREE /éJEﬁJ Efz FJ% CE - Rfrok ~ BIEE - B - MER - EREE - BEZE - U
BEE - B REE - ROEE E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ BHEER S ERTEHARLEE -
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PINE CARE POINT
T

Pine Care Point
A L

FLAGSHIP IN KOWLOON DISTRICT
ARERERS

Conveniently situated in Shek Kip Mei, Pine Care Point, with an area of over 43,000 square feet, offers 103 beds in various room
configurations. While the majority of the rooms are offered as single rooms or single suites, 2-person to 4-person rooms are also
available.

It provides a thematic space on each of its floors, namely Community Space, Culture and Arts Space, as well as Elderly Vitality
Space. Each floor is fitted with numerous facilities, with services and activities designed to provide the appropriate care for our
residents who are in need of various rehabilitation and skilled nursing care services.

AR BEEF A N AR - BETRA 43,000 F AR - RE103EERL - RETRAFE - ERRIBMASEAFEREAER - I 78
BEAFEMOABA]fHIEE -
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PINE RESIDENCE

<y
ME

FLAGSHIP IN HONG KONG ISLAND #EEifERS

Located at Leighton Road, this latest addition to the Group’s portfolio lies in the heart of Causeway Bay close to top-grade facilities
and with easy access to the MTR station and hospitals. Pine Residence has a floor area of around 35,400 sq. ft. which provides
ample space for 188 residents to meet others, while also enjoying their own privacy. The residence offers a variety of premium care
services and experiences, allowing residents to customize their options to meet their personal preferences.

URBEE  AAKESHNEEES  ERAEENT O  #ETARRE - D REATELE R B - MO FRZERE
#)73385,400F 7K » B188EBRRIEHARNEHZ AR EEY  ARLEXACHLE - ZcSRHSBEEEERGNE
B BEEEEFEGITEAAMCER - 2REITRANLRIEER -
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
FA B v 55 45 5% J s gt

Guided by our core principle of “respecting the elderly as family”, we are committed to managing the operations of our care and attention
homes in a responsible manner. We are devoted to integrating ESG considerations into our business. We believe that sustainability
encompasses not only our environmental performance and contribution to the wider community, but also underpins our core business
practices and our relationships with residents, shareholders, employees, and suppliers.

The Group embraces sustainable development in pursuit of our mission — “creating a warm and pleasant silver age for the elderly” based
on the four priority areas: (i) Pine Care Silverage; (i) Pine Care Green; (i) Pine Care Smart; and (iv) Pine Care Caring. We support the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“UNSDGs”), which aim to end poverty, protect the planet and ensure that all people enjoy peace
and prosperity by 2030, through working on our priority areas.

RERMER]OBRLDER  HPEHEAREEN IR TR AE T2 EZRENEE  UBERAESRR - MBI HRE -
HeRERTEBARMNER - BHPUEE  THEERRTHATRAMANRERRBAAREEROER - TMEKZ T ENER - S1F%0
FEER AR Bl R - IR - BT ERRORIE -

AEMRERRER]NRE RS EIAEHEE : ()[REBE] - ()REREE] - ()RS X v MREREE | B RHEER -
RSN ERBARASEZERBIRE(TUNSDGs ) #EEBINBHMHETEHE - N2030FAIERRNA AT BMEMERNRE -
REMIRFER B R -

T B 2 AR WA R AW

2023 3R

69



Maintaining quality senior GooDHEATH
. AND WELL-BEING
care services

BREEEEEEEERE —W’

Goal B

To provide high quality senior care services to create the
warm feeling of home for our residents

RESERLZERRELRRY  ARETIARHR

Pine Care
Silverage

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

o

Leveraging innovation

: Pine
for enhanced silver age Care
S|EAIR - RARE Smart
EEEER AR BE
Goal B1Z

To adopt smart solutions to cater
to the needs of our residents in
support of their physical, mental
and social well-being

KBTI ERBERMOE R
F o REMMNS - DR ZE

Pine Care
Caring

REREE

DECENT WORK AND GOOD HEALTH QUALITY
SUSTAINABLE CITIES
ECONOMIC GROWTH 11 AND COMMUNITIES AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION

af Il v~ ) i

Fostering a caring culture for our
employees and community

EBEEXL - WEET - BREEEH

Goal B
Our Employees HFIWET :

To cultivate a corporate culture that embraces talent
development, employee well-being and family-friendly
practices

BESHEETER BIXENKERSNEEX
Our Community EfHitE:
To proactively engage in community contributions

[ES N )
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1 RESPONSIBLE 1 CLIMATE
CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION

ACTION

Embracing a greener
future

BB ERE

Goal B2

To pursue a sustainable operation
pattern to combat climate change
and protect our planet

1L - (RFEH K



SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE mAI#&#RREER

Being accountable for the long-term stable growth of Pine Care Group, the Group not only places emphasis on the economic performance,

but also commits to enhancing its ESG governance. The Group believes that an effective ESG governance structure is a cornerstone of our
sustainable growth and long-term success.

FEEAMREZEENRERTERAE AU ARBEMEERLQERR - TEORAERE - e RERAE - AEBREERMNER
5Bt gREREB A RHES R RREARDNER

The Board EEE

The Board retains the ultimate responsibility for the oversight of the Group’s ESG strategy, management, performance and reporting. The
members of the Board possess the appropriate skills, experience, knowledge and perspectives necessary to oversee the Group’s ESG
matters. The Board must hold at least one meeting each year to () set out the ESG management approach, strategy, and priorities; (i)
examine and approve the Group’s ESG objectives, targets and goals, and the related policies and frameworks; and (i) review the Group’s
performance periodically against ESG-related goals and targets. The Board is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and approving disclosures in the ESG reports.

ERGRERFTEBRNRE HERERKRE BE KAMMEAESRKECT EFNEAREREAKERE HEREREEMN
FHEERE £ MBANEY BEFeUEASFELAMREGE  ROBERE HEREREETH - R RER  (VRRR
HAEAEERE HERELRARLERMBRIER  Ri)EHRERE HERELREHRERRIAEEANKE - EESTARRRA
SERRERNRANEERRTIEULBRIRE HEREAMENRESSE -

The Working Group T{E#

The ESG Working Group (the “Working Group”) is composed of core members from various departments of the Group, which facilitates the
Board’s oversight of ESG matters. The key responsibilities of the Working Group are (i) collecting and analysing ESG data, (i) monitoring and
evaluating the Group’s ESG performance, (jii) reviewing the progress made against the Group’s ESG-related targets, (iv) ensuring compliance
with ESG-related laws and regulations, (v) assisting in conducting materiality assessment; and (vi) preparing ESG reports. The Working
Group arranges meetings annually to evaluate the effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and formulates appropriate solutions to
improve the overall ESG performance of the Group. The Working Group also assists in assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities, ensuring the implementation and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems. The Working Group reports
the Group’s ESG-related matters and makes recommendations to the Board periodically.

THEE( TR AR ESBAIROKEER  BHEFSERRE HEREREE THREIZRESFBORERIMERE 1
SRERBUE (N ERRFEAREERE - B RERRE () FCERARBERE  HEREAERNEE  (VMERETRE - 4LE
RERBBZERIER  VRBETERMNNE  RV)RERE HEehEARS TESFHRTERE  FERTBEREEEFNE
BRREURNESERAEAEERE I REGERRER - TIEENMBITERBRIAEERE e REARR RS - #R
RERERNEAMERERSGT AN - TEATHNEESERAEERE HeREMEHEERESRAESTSELEREE -
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Risk Management EREE

72

The Group considers risk management as an integral part of daily management and sound corporate governance. Risk management
mechanism assists the Group to evaluate and minimise risks that may prevent or endanger the achieving of its business objectives in a
dynamic business environment where economic, industry, regulatory and operating conditions continue to change. The Group assesses and
determines the ESG-related risks and opportunities and considers their implications. The Group also formulates ESG-related controls to
address significant ESG-related risks of which the controls are operated effectively at corresponding business levels. Coupled with sound
internal controls, it facilitates a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritizing, managing, and monitoring of the risks that the
Group faces in its operations. Details on the Group’s risk management approach can be found in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

FAEERAREERANFERERRFCEEANER —R - AREEEHIT B AEEFERBSRER R KDERENEH - 17
¥ OFRREERRTE BN BREFRFPEREBEENAR - AEBFGLETRRE 4o EREENRRERETRS
HE R - AEENBIERE 4§ REGHEBOEGIER  NWEAERRE He ke anBaR  maxSENEREERNETR
PBBELE - A TENREES  ZEFHERASERTE  Hh  Et  TERERAKEZERRETHENEAR - AEASERER
EWINENE  BE2RAFEMIoRE RS —f -

Sustainability Commitment AT 3 &

As an enterprise that upholds corporate social responsibility, the Group acknowledges the importance of reducing its impact on the
environment. To fulfil the Group’s commitment to corporate social responsibility and allow the Group’s stakeholders to better understand the
Group’s progress in improving its ESG performance, the Group has set environmental targets covering the aspects of resources
conservation, emission reduction and waste management. These targets help the Group to response to the global vision of carbon neutrality
and enhance corporate reputation. To achieve these targets, the Group actively implements the principle of sustainable development and
adopts relevant measures at operational levels. The Board has delegated the Working Group to collect relevant ESG data, analyze and
review the Group’s performance, and evaluate the Group’s progress towards the targets.

During FY2023, the Board and the Working Group reviewed the targets previously introduced by the Group. The Group confirmed that
progress has been made towards achieving its targets on greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, energy efficiency, water consumption and
waste management, meanwhile, expecting positive progress in the coming years by enhancing sustainability in its operations. On the other
hand, the Working Group will revise the action plans if the progress does not meet expectations or if business operations change, to ensure
the Group meet its targets.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to deepen the integration of ESG concepts into its business strategy and management system and
operate its business more responsibly and sustainably in order to create sustainable value for shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.

ERBTREEHERANTGE  ARERAREEHRENZENERN - BETARBEUCEH SETNAEREAEEANFNEE
FAAREENRERE HEREARANBRE  ARERIRERE  REERHLH A REYER - ZZBERHAEEADERIR
PR MBS R REER - REKER  AREBEERTUREZRFERINELEEMRAABERE - EFT 2R TEERSEMR
MRE HEREREE DM RERASENRRE LA EEERBFEHEE -

R2023MBEE EEERTFHECEMAKRELANRHNWER - ARERRAEERLAZRB (DRERE ) F0 - 8ERME - Ak
HREMEMEESTENBERIEACIGER R BHBEREEHEBNAREN  ERKEFISEBER - S—T@E - WREE
REMRHNEG2EREE THREBERTTHE URRAREERERR -

RERK  AEBBESRMEEBEREREERAGTRARR HaREAMMANER  YATAEERIHENTREEES - B
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT & & 28

Stakeholder engagement is an integral part of our sustainable development journey. We have identified customers (residents), employees,
government and regulatory authorities, investors, suppliers and contractors and the community as our major stakeholder groups. Engaging
with stakeholders allows us to better shape our business strategy to respond to their needs, anticipate risks and strengthen key
relationships. We maintain close communication with stakeholders through various formal and informal channels in our daily operations.

The material issues of their concerns and regular communication channels are as follows:

FOE2EHRMANIHEEREZLERER - RMEMNEFF R) - 81
ERBFANEIERNDE - B E2 LB RMFREEL KR - AR EOFINFER -

BEREFEANRERFNERSETHE -

WENBEEFRAREMRRENERRENT

BUR K EE#E  REE  HEMIASHNURLE
BRI IRETEE - RPN AR EEFERS

Stakeholders Material Issues Communication Channels
BHE ERERE BBERE
Customers (Residents) e Service quality and customer safety e Customer hotline
2E(RR) BREEERREFPLE BRER
e Complaint handling e Grievance mechanism
R BRIE FR S A
e Customer privacy protection e Feedback surveys
B RLRBRE BR#AL
e Customer right
B RER
Employees e Health and safety e Training and employee activities
E&8 BEREZE B K e BEED
e Career development and promotion e Grievance mechanism
opportunities FR I
EXRRELEAKRE

e Remuneration and benefits protection
o R B RIRE

Government and

e Legal compliance

e Compliance with government policies

regulatory authorities HPEE BTBUN R
BT R ESE S e Senior care industry development e Response to inquiries from government and

LTETHEERE departments

Bl fE BT ARPIE 7
e Fulfilment of social responsibility
BITHEEE
Investors e Performance growth and return on investment e Convene of regular shareholder meetings
REE FERERIIREER EHEHKREARS
e |nformation disclosure e Publication of financial and ESG reports
B HIEIM B RIRE - g RELWmE
e Business operation risks

R EERR
Suppliers and ¢ Responsible purchasing e Supplier comparison matrix
contractors BERE i 7 L BB
HpER KA e Integrity o Regular communication

EAE TEHEE
Community e Support community engagement e Cooperation with social enterprise
fLE@ XFit R HMEhEAE

e Promote public health
iR B AR A R A

2023 3R 73



ofoaro

P

74

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEM Gk

During FY2023, the Group has conducted a stakeholder survey to collect opinions from stakeholders towards the Group’s ESG issues. The
procedures of the materiality assessment are as follows:

R2023BFE - REBETRNERE  WERFHEHAREIRE 1@ REAFENER - AREEUMENRFNOT

Step
z

a7
Step
g
Step
b
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Materiality Matrix 22 |4 Bk

HiISHENEEY

Importance to Stakeholders

Importance to the Group

The materiality assessment results are shown in the above materiality matrix. The 7 issues on the top right-hand corner indicate the issues

@

\/

HEASENERY

that our stakeholders are most concerned with and will be disclosed in this ESG Report in details.

EENTRERBN DRSS ENER - 20 A EARME 7 EZE AL

EREME -

Material Issues & X:&E

VAN

RO RN ERRBINEE  BRARE e RERR

Disclosed Sections i &= &

Occupational health and safety

BifERa L e

Staff development and training
B TR MIE

Health and safety of residents
REREZ S

Customer rights

ekl

Complaint handling and customer satisfaction
RFREREPMEE

Customer data and privacy protection
BERER RALRRE

Legal compliance
&R

Caring for Employees’ Wellbeing
REETIRE

Promoting Career Development

SRR

Guaranteeing Senior Health and Safety
RERERERRALS

Listening and Adopting Opinions
RERKMNER

Protecting Privacy

IREEFLER

Corporate Governance
hEER

Pine Care Silverage
N

Pine Care Green
RRAR B

Pine Care Caring
IR

B AR A R A
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Other issues Efh%5E

Air emissions

JEE R BERL

Waste management

BEmE R

GHG emissions and energy management
BEREI MM ERETE

Water management

KERER

Climate change risk

Rz LR

Green procurement

Environmental risk in supply chains
HEERRIEE R

Staff welfare

BT

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
FEKE - T RIER

Labour practices

ERIED

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

@ Responsible sourcing
BEIRE

@ Product and service assurance and quality
EmKkRERENREER
Intellectual property rights management
HBERETE

@ Marketing, advertising and promotion
1786 - B MR

@ Anti-corruption
Vg

@ Community investment
fERE

Technology and innovation
el T
@ Economic performance
g Eﬁﬁ}ﬁ
Information disclosure
BRIRER
@ Governance and risk management
E. /l:l ME@



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ERER

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY EEH =

Upholding good business ethics and integrity is considered as the cornerstone of the Group’s continuous development. As such, we have
outlined our requirements in the Employee Handbook, Employees’ Code of Conduct and other policies, stating that our employees are
strictly prohibited from offering bribes, accepting bribery or transfer of benefits, as well as listing the procedures for reporting conflict of
interest and handling benefits. We have also established whistleblowing channels. Employees or other related parties can report any
suspected incidents to our Audit Committee or company secretary. We would follow our standardized whistleblowing system to refer the
incidents to the working committee. The members of which comprise of the Group’s director, head of Finance and head of Human
Resources Department to evaluate the incidents and perform follow-up actions. The working committee would report the details,
investigation results and follow-up actions of such incidents to the Audit Committee to maintain the Group’s business ethics and integrity, as
well as protect the rights of the Group and its stakeholders.

We would provide trainings related to anti-corruption to our employees from time to time to enhance their relevant knowledge. We have
provided online anti-corruption training to employees during FY2023 about knowledge of anti-bribery and handling conflict of interest. As
such, the directors and staff of the Group have received a total of 498 hours (FY2022: a total of 513 hours) of anti-corruption training on anti-
corruption-related legislations, corporate integrity governance and ethics.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees, and was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,
corruption and money laundering, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.

ERRENBRERNAERARERNMERNEEEN - Bt RMIERETIFM  BELETISHRFIAEHEEL AR TE
ZEITRR - RIS A - W RN EERLERAREERE - RATMREFWRE  ETREMBEA T RAEENEZ
ZEGRAAMERREMEREZR - AMSHRBENBRRE RS AFEENES  UBAERANEREEMAERNTHEERZS
SHERBERR ZTHEZEGNEAERTESERERTE - HEERNBETE  MEKAEERSOHEERIAEERE -
VAT RN S 8 T 45 4 A B &S -

HAETEHRME TR RESHEBIEI - BRI MAARME - RPN 2023 T BFEREERFBAERESHEI - M8 THRH L
AR N B TE N s AR A o HUtt - NEEMBEERE THETTT A K408/ (2022 IR FE : 513/ ) MR B - ARRERE
VSHRRDED - BEMEE R RBRE -

R2028MRFE - AEEHEFREMNEHEASEKEESRESTANSEMEZERM - AU TAEAEHIERERE MR - #GF
SRR EE 2 BRDER LA D (BIFETRNE B LERERREA)) 891 R -
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PARTNERSHIP B41#1/E

Our suppliers mainly provide us with medical supplies and consumables, food and nutrient products, kitchen supplies, housewares,

78

stationery as well as repair and maintenance services. During FY2023, we worked with 21 (FY2022: 20) major suppliers, all of which were
local suppliers in Hong Kong.

Since some of the supplies, including food and nutrient products, medical supplies and consumables have a direct impact on our residents,
we are highly concerned about the quality of such supplies. We have established purchasing and supplier evaluation policy to assess new
and existing suppliers. To select prospective suppliers, well-regulated, fair and open tendering and evaluation procedures have been
established. Assessment criteria include quality of supplies, service quality, after-sales services, qualifications etc. During FY2023, the
aforementioned supplier engagement practices have been imposed on all suppliers.

The Group endeavours to support local economies and prioritizes the procurement from local and regional suppliers to lower the carbon
footprint during transportation. The Group also endeavours to engage service providers who incorporate ESG issues into their business
development and gives priority to suppliers that use environmentally preferable products and services in the selection process.

Apart from focusing on suppliers’ product and service quality, we are also devoted to promoting the positive development of the supply
chain. We are active in incorporating sustainability principles, including environmental protection, legal compliance, labour rights and anti-
corruption etc. into our supplier evaluation system, in the hope of advocating our suppliers to take up their corporate social responsibilities.
To minimize potential environmental and social risks in the supply chain, the performance of the suppliers is evaluated periodically and
monitored by the Group to ensure their compliance with relevant standards. Should their operations or product supplied fall below the
agreed standard, the cooperation may be terminated.

RENEERETEARFETRESREEEARLERR RRLEERAR BEAS XM XEARSURREREGHESRY -
2028 AREFE » AT —HE21 (2022 TFE : 20) REBHEREIE - 2H AT B HER -

RS HERERNER  BFAR £BHARUNERRRERREERAFEETE  BAMUHERELRAER - HMICH
ERBRE P EEHESE - M EHER - RBEEAERER  RMCHEARF  ALRARBRELFERR - SHCERIBREH
EmE - REEER  SRRE  BE% - R2028HHFE - RAOAMERERET LAHERTRRER -

REEBNZHAMEBERELE RO RSB RERRBER AR ERBIETHNIREH - ARETLEZEHRE HERELER
BAEBERORBIEHE LETRBIEPELZ BERRRER IR HES -

BTRDEHERNERRRBES  BHATBOEDHEENERER - RAERMAIHERRILE  BERERE /568K  ER
B RESEFRAHEEFZEG - BREBAEENTE )  HBHRERRTEELERT - RREREHERBEREILER
%o AEBERFAGERERHERRE  BREEBTAAMRE - WHEFNELSIARBNER T IHERE - AEBATEEERK
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PINE CARE SILVERAGE
PREk 5

Throughout the years, Pine Care has been striving its best to maintain the highest standards of senior care services in order to uphold its
leading position in the industry in Hong Kong and promote its principle of “respecting the elderly as family”, allowing every resident to enjoy
their twilight years. In the meantime, we are in stringent compliance with applicable laws and regulations as well as industry standards, which
include but not limited to the RCHE Code of Practice, Residential Care Home (Elderly Persons) and its subsidiary legislation, the Service
Quality, Standards issued by the Social Welfare Department, the International Society for Quality in Health Care (ISQua) standards accredited
by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology, the Fire Services Ordinance, the Dangerous Goods Ordinance and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance etc.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to products and
services responsibility, health and safety, advertising and privacy matters, including but not limited to Residential Care Home (Elderly
Persons) Ordinance (RCH(EP)O), the Fire Services Ordinance, the Dangerous Goods Ordinance and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
of Hong Kong.

MERZFRBNEFSEENREEERY - WESERBBETENESMN - REESE [HMEXR] ORE - FEUEREAR
ZWF - ARRMABROBTERERRROIMTERE  BRETRNLEREB TR (CRELRGD) REKBEN - HeafZE
BHNRBERRE  FEEFReRUNBRBRERRERHSRE - CEED - (RGP RCBEABR (FLE) 1) -

K028 RFE - AREY TAFEEIMEANZRBUMEHERMBRENEEERZE RS  BHRMLBEEZERZRRMOER -
BRARGEFBETRREBNCLZREDD) - CER RGN - BRI RBEAE R (FLER) 6551 -

MAINTAINING QUALITY SENIOR CARE SERVICES ## 58 EZREZERY

Providing quality and caring services is considered as the cornerstone of our business. Most of our care and attention homes have already
obtained the ISO9001: 2015 Quality Management System Certificate. With regards to its requirement, we customize the Individual Care Plan
(“ICP”) for every resident. When a new resident is admitted to our care and attention homes, our nurses, social workers and physiotherapists
would evaluate his/her conditions, including but not limited to the medical history, fall risk, sensitivity, psychological condition etc., allowing
us to have a thorough understanding of the resident’s background and needs. We formulate the ICPs in a comprehensive and scientific way
according to various international and industry recognized standards to ensure all our residents’ needs are met. We would evaluate and
update each ICP every 6 months with regards to resident’s current physical and mental condition and needs.

Throughout his/her stay, a resident will receive well-rounded care and nursing services from our internal and external professionals, including
registered nurses, care workers, health workers, social workers, physiotherapists, occupational therapists, speech therapists, nutritionist,
Chinese medicine practitioners and doctors. We have implemented comprehensive quality management systems within all care and
attention homes for our employees and professionals to follow so as to maintain high quality services.

RESEEMHONRBEEMEBOED - RMIAL S REHERBISO001 : 2015 HEERRBERE - REAER - HMAT
iR E S TEER B EA RS - EEFMRAALER  BMASRH#ELT £ TRYIPAFMFEENRR - BEETRABE - KER
B BEUE - DIEMRE  ABRMZETHESSREER - HMERETAOEEMITERARE - UEEMBE(a )7 N bER &
MEAEIER B BRHEEMA—DFE - RAISFFEFELAREAEEN S BHRABTEERETOEEMOERARTE -

BRRAER - BN ARIMNENEEE - BEEMEL - B8 - RIEE - T - VISR - BEAEN - FEaEM -
EEM - PREBESARAERET IR - RMAEXMERESHELEMNESERER  MESETNEMEZASRERSE
EHRTS ©
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To ensure our quality as well as health and safety management system has been well implemented and maintained, we have set up targets
for our care and attention homes and require our employees to maintain high quality care services. Measurable criteria of such targets
include accident rate, satisfaction rate of residents and families, number of medicine mishandling cases etc. We would review the
performance of each care and attention home annually to evaluate whether they have met the targets and identify ideas for improvement.
During FY20283, all care and attention homes have met the targets.

Besides, the Group has set up the Independent Quality Assurance Committee (the “IQA Committee”) consisting of elderly residents, family
members, staff members, senior management, and independent personnel who are unconnected to Pine Care Group in any way. The
responsibility of the IQA Committee is to further enhance our level of quality by providing a fresh perspective on our operations, and offering
unbiased opinions and suggestions. Each committee member is required to conduct unscheduled visits to our operations annually and to
submit a report to the senior management with their findings and suggestions.

In consideration of our high quality and comprehensive care services, we have been accredited under the Residential Aged Care
Accreditation Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology. The Association would conduct a review on our care and attention
homes to ensure they have complied with its requirements. Measurable criteria of the review include but not limited to overall quality
management, nutrition, service attitude, risk management, food and environmental safety, handling of medication, handling of excretion,
feeding, data management, infection control, communication and emotions of residents etc. to ensure we have implemented effective
management system to provide a safe, hygienic and comfortable environment for our residents. Moreover, representatives from the Social
Welfare Department would pay regular visits to our care and attention homes to ensure our senior care services have met applicable industry
standards.

RERBRMARBNEFEZ2EERATRIG  RMASHESHESILZER  EXFETHFSERNERRY - BENAFHER
EREBMNLE - RARKEREE  ENEHHES - AMESFHEEHERSNRE  BRESERLFGEFTELCENLT - 1
2023 A E - A EHEEIBE -

Bt i ZEERY TRERBEEZE((BERBERZER])  Z8ehRERR 5B BT SAERERESTHEHE
MEREEEHVBEENBLALHEAR - BERBEFZZESEEREERIIBNRALELRES  UWE—FRIARBRE - &
ZEEREASFAERARESETRENS  THEFRREZFASREEEFRIBRE -

REFRERNZEMNEERT  RMALELEFRENBTERERSTEIENE S TRRTESWETHE - BREET
BHRE - FEWNAGIERESEENRY - REREEE 28 RBEE  RREE  RYERELE - HEWEE - PPHEE )
RENER  BREH OBBMEABERES  BREMIRESEREENEERRER  RERSRENZ2  HENFEE - itoh
HeENESERRARDES  BREMANLEEERBTETERE -
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GUARANTEEING SENIOR HEALTH AND
SAFETY REREZEREHZS

Ensuring the health and safety of every resident is undoubtedly our core
responsibility and our utmost duty in the daily operations. On top of our quality
management system, we have formulated a series of policies in terms of health
and safety management, including but not limited to nutrition and dietary, food
safety and hygiene, medication, emergency handling, environmental safety
etc. The following table outlines our key measures to care for the residents:

RERANRERZ2EASRMNBEFTEENEEMEERE  RIEHXM
MEEEERE  RMANEZHEABRRNZE2EENEE  BRETRR
BEMER RURENELE EWERE - BIERE BRERE2E - UTH
IR APIR A A R B R Bt -

Personal care

8 5 B

Each care and attention home has sufficient manpower, including home managers, nurses, physiotherapists,
health workers, care workers and assistants that meet the minimum requirements at all times, so as to ensure
all residents can receive personal care.

B S EE AR RER —EHAFLY - EhEEEE
VAREIR P e RIS 15 B 5 TR A -

L YIRAER - RIZE  EIBEFENEE -

Nutrition and
dietary
EERER

Each care and attention home would prepare its own meal plan on a quarterly basis. The meal plan is reviewed
and approved by our nutritionists to ensure it meets residents’ dietary requirements. We also adjust meal
arrangement for residents who have special dining needs, including those who suffer from diabetes, kidney
diseases and high blood pressure.

BEREEFSHITES EEFTERLBMNEYN  BRECRENEETE - AMEREFIRERE
Mtk - BEBERERR BRI NESHAZLERER -

Food safety and

Food and Environmental Hygiene Policy has been formulated to manage the personal hygiene of kitchen staff,

KF BB ARBHEE

hygiene environmental hygiene of kitchen, purchase, storage and handling requirements of ingredients, delivery and
BMEE NEE disposal of meals, and handling of cutleries to ensure food safety.
HERYPREHERR  BEREHFFEINEARGE BHENRBESE  EMHRE  RBFERER - 28
KAREE  RARESE  UEREWZZE -
Medication A detailed medication management system has been formulated for instructing our nurses and workers on
Y eI storing, dispensing and disposing of medicine. Multi-way match is conducted by our employees when dispensing
medicine to residents to ensure it is dispensed at the right time, in the correct dosage and to the right person. As
some medicine is required to be stored in refrigerator, we check its temperature from time to time to ensure it is
functioning well. We conduct safety inspection regularly to guarantee medicine is handled properly.
HIEFMANEYEERS  HEELRETIRT LEREEEY BMNWETDREEYBSETEHZ
¥ MREYRESH HEREREBRER BHRDBOENTLENSE  RMeTHRESERERE
REIERY - RIS THETEN L 2 ER - URREVR L ERIE -
Emergency Guidelines on Emergency and Serious Incident Handling Procedures has been formulated to standardize the
handling procedures on handling emergency cases such as fire, gas leakage, flooding, poisoning, theft etc. to minimize
SR the negative impact imposed on our residents.
HEBESMBRERWEEREFES] Al EREESER AT [EEER -
L2 FF - URIR S R K BT E -
Environmental Conduct environmental safety inspection in our care and attention homes on a daily basis to identify and address
safety any safety hazards. We also conduct fire drill regularly.
BHR S

BEREMORSETRREZ2KE  BHINMBEMELZZRE - WA EHB®ITNERS -

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the disclosure of the number of sold or delivered products that should be recalled for safety and
health reasons is not applicable.

ERALENEBILE AR ERREAMmMES QMBS RNEMNEE HRREER L E -
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ENHANCING SAFETY MEASURES IN CARE AND
ATTENTION HOMES FOR THE SAKE OF RESIDENTS
WITH FALL RISKS

MmeRbe & & eiait - RE S B EIE R &

We understand that residents with impaired physical mobility or cognitive impairment are at risk of falling and wandering. We pay
special attention to these residents and have implemented a series of measures to minimize such risks to guarantee their safety.

HMABHATHNERBERAERNER A KEREENRR - HAFHBEZEFER - X HlE — R P BEOREAL I
BEMEERR  REMMANZE -

Examples of measures to prevent wandering:

bip i yiiintl
e Notify our staff when magnetic induction buzzer sensors e |nstall hidden sensors at exits
identifies high-risk residents A A DR B i ke R

1 )RR B 1 06 23 5 Rl B = R\ B B A s B3 NS B
e Install facial recognition anti-wandering system in upscale

e Install coded locks on exits care and attention homes that can sense and locate high-
AHA O ZEE IS risk residents’ locations and notify responsible staff
TR = i e 25 2 S T AR Bl B 2 RE R - R A s Bl e
e Attach sensor chips on high-risk residents’ clothing ERAREROLE - WANREET

NENEN AT N
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Examples of measures to prevent fall:
By LE Bk e )

e FEvaluate fall risk of all residents regularly and understand
their physical condition

FHEFTE RO EIR R - T AR IR & AR

e Arrange daily exercise for relevant residents to enhance
their muscle strength and balance

5k B BB SR b R BIRL N A0F &

Sy

“IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Install infrared bed-exit detectors at beds of residents
with higher fall risk which can sense their motion when
they leave the bed and notify responsible staff
immediately

A= B (3 L B B A ) PR 38 22 3 B AR AT MR BE PR (ROBIZS
EZGR TREgRIRBMEEST

..IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
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MINIMIZING THE RISK OF SPREAD OF VIRUS
RIERSEERR

Although the coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic gradually stabilized, we understand that our residents, especially those who suffer
from chronic illnesses and require frequent follow-up visits to clinics may still face a higher risk of getting infected. The Group is highly
concerned about the control of the pandemic and has implemented a number of stringent measures with reference to guidelines issued
by Social Welfare Department to enhance personal and environmental hygiene in care and attention homes to minimize risk of spread
of virus:

BEFLERRER (HEERBSHEDEBEBELMBRE - EXRER — FHIRREEEARLFERLNEADAEEAR
BHRRRR  AEEBADHERSERE  YRETSRMNBERNES RS BRSHEEERE - NREARREFLE
B & B B (E R R = &

Conduct frequent sanitization

pE:AST D b

Maintain social distancing
TR¥FHL BB

Suspended all physical family visits during the peak of the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic according to government
guidelines

KRBFES - R ERNEEREES EREEMAR
[BIRED

Install plastic boards at reception areas

REFFEE IR ZR

Arrange designated wheelchairs for outward medical
consultation and sanitize those wheelchairs with bleach
upon return
ZHIMNEBZ R LB EREE®A - WEB & LZH
UNEEL T

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Set up designated areas for residents and accompanying
staff to take off protective clothing after returning from
clinics

OB RERER NI EDBRER R B IREDEM
RRERS

Arrange residents to conduct COVID-19 test and
measure body temperature regularly

ZHE A E T A B R S A T B IR

Encourage residents to have meals in their rooms and
avoid gatherings

SEEAZEREFARE  ROBSE

Install smartphones for residents to have video calls with
their families when physical visits are not allowed

B AL E 5 R e R AE R B A IR 5 ) R (R B At AR AR
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ENSURING EMOTIONAL WELL-BEING AND FAMILY CONNECTIONS FOR OUR
RESIDENTS DURING COVID-19
BARRKEFESRESHHBNEEREREXANBRE

Over the past three years, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has presented numerous challenges for care and attention homes. Despite
strict adherence to regulations issued by the Social Welfare Department, heightened epidemic prevention measures, and compliance with
visitation guidelines, residents have reported to be experiencing anxiety and fatigue as a result of the pandemic. Moreover, the inability to
have face-to-face visits with their family members has resulted in a significant impact on the emotional well-being of residents.

To address these concerns, we have implemented various measures within our care and attention homes. Electronic devices have been
installed in each home to facilitate video calls between residents and their families. Our social workers provide regular support and assistance
to both residents and their families. Additionally, compassionate visits have been arranged for those with special needs. Within the facilities,
quarantine mobile cabins and other amenities have been added, allowing residents and their families to meet while maintaining necessary
epidemic prevention protocols. These measures have been implemented to ensure the emotional well-being of our residents and to promote
communication and connection between residents and their loved ones.

EBRE=ZFh  FENFLUERRSREBRESER T ZELE - BEAEHCRBETHSENZEMEOMRE - IR ZEE - I
BFREES  RRIERBSHMAIRIERMEE - ) KABERSRIERANBEERELETEAVE -

REFFEERE  RMCERSERZEER RAUIASERSLEETRE  DERAERARGEE - ROOHETERRRAIM
IR AREIERGB)  UbHh  REBAERKRE ENR AL PHRIMIR - RIE7THE - RIULI TBE 7R EMEMRE - E8F
PiZigsl TAFRAEMMNKARE - BB AERERNBHERE - WIRERKERAZHNBRMBE -

LISTENING AND ADOPTING OPINIONS RERFEMER

Being a service-centric enterprise, we always listen to and adopt opinions from residents and their families so that we could continue to
improve our service and strive for excellence. The IQA Committee gathers representatives from residents and their families to communicate
with our management team and raise opinions in terms of our daily operations and services. Their valuable opinions are crucial for us to
understand residents’ needs and expectations. We have also established a number of channels to gather opinions from our residents,
families, employees and other parties, which includes:

ERARBARNDE  BHAFARBEFAEARARBNER  ERAOGUFENZRY - BaskiE - LimBERGEERZES
MERAMRBAXKERFNERERELBBTREYAEECENRBNER BHRMTREANFTENRE - HATFRILT —F
FIRREBEWERR KB EISANER 8%

e Residents’ families consultation sessions e (Case study meetings
BARRERAE (EES-4

e Telephone/email/mail e (Opinion box
BiE BB BERME

e FEvaluation survey e Notice board
BRHEE BEFRIR

e Staff meetings e Daily communications
BEEE HEEE

* Management evaluation meetings

ERERNEE
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5__—,

Any opinion or complaint collected from the above channels will be taken
seriously and timely. During FY2023, the Group did not receive any material
products and service-related complaints. In addition, we conduct satisfaction
survey each year by inviting residents and families to rate on various aspects in
terms of our senior care services. Such aspects include employees’ attitude,
accommodation, nursing services, activities, meals etc. During FY2023,
residents’ satisfaction rate and families’ satisfaction rate both reached over
90%, and reached our service targets.

BFE RS TREMBRENE B RMIRF - R2028FMFE - AEELE
B G RER MRS ERES o 1o - BPISFRERERIEREE
THEBERE AR EEERBOBHETTS  BHEETEE &
B EERSEEY BERE - R2028MBFE  RRRREBHWEES
ZEEEBIBO0% - FERMIRFE R -

..IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
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PROTECTING PRIVACY RFEEFLEE

The daily operations of our care and attention homes involve a large amount of privacy data of the residents, such as their names, phone
numbers, addresses, identity card numbers, photos, medical record, employment history etc. We understand that we need to take up our
responsibility to ensure the privacy of such data and prevent data leakage to protect our residents. We strictly prohibit the employees from
disclosing any of residents’ personal data and other confidential information to third parties without prior consent. We have set up the
Residents’ Personal Privacy and Dignity Policy, guaranteeing that we would collect and handle their personal data in a legal and fair way. For
hardcopy documents recording residents’ personal data, we put them in locked cabinets with key only kept by responsible personnel and
home manager. As for soft-copy documents, we have set password and access right limit in the computers.

In terms of advertising and promotion, we may use photos and videos starring our residents for promotional purpose. In order to safeguard
residents’ rights, we can use such materials only if they agree and sign the consent form.

Due to our business nature, intellectual property is not considered as a material issue of the Group. Product labelling is also not applicable to
the Group.

B AR EES S RAERANELER  BRBRELES EF i HHERE  BH  BE - BRLES - RMFEHMAA
BERERLERNEMT DHEEAFEHERRARERMNRER - AMBEZETERAERENBER TAE =T RERANEAENK
Hitpm &R - D RIGEREALEREEEE - EREMAGUENR T NREMR M PN EAER - RIS HERD
BEREABR A7 AN B LT - MRARBHE TRREERE  TEREFROXHFFREMILRELTE M HER -

HEYESERESE HMSERAERREANRAREREEEZA - #MSEEAREREZRBERAAER - UREMPINF A -

ERBMNEBUE - ARERISIAKBNEAZE  MERRRITVERRAEER -
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COLLABORATION WITH OTHER
ORGANIZATIONS EEH#ESE

We actively collaborated with other organizations to provide diverse
services for our residents. One example of such collaboration during
FY2023 was with cultural and artistic institutions, like the Jolly Seedly
Center, which provided music therapy services for residents. Through
these sessions, residents were able to participate in singing and playing
musical instruments, which improved their emotional well-being and
cognitive abilities. This collaboration also provided residents with
exposure to different forms of art and culture, which enriched their lives
and enhanced their overall sense of happiness and fulfilment.

Another collaboration during FY2023 was with charitable foundations, like Diamond Cab
(HK) Ltd., which provided recreational activities for residents. These activities helped
residents to enjoy a change of scenery and participate in different outdoor and indoor
activities. This collaboration also provided opportunities for residents to socialize and
interact with others, which helped to reduce feelings of loneliness and isolation.

Religious institutions, like the Evangelical Free Church of Lam Tin Church,
also collaborated with us to provide spiritual and emotional support for
residents. Through events like volunteer visits and sharing of religious
stories or music, residents were able to connect with others and find
comfort and peace in their faith. This collaboration also provided
residents with a sense of community and belonging, which improved
their overall mental health and well-being.

HEGEEOEESE  REERREHZ TR - R2023WHEFE -
H—IBAED]F EX e R BT (I 2 L) &1 - Bt
RESLMERY - BBELFD  BiRENS BRSNS - W
RePNIBEERENRMES - RREAETEREZBTRE AN
BITRXAE - BEMPIEEE - B 60 B 48 = 1R R R 7 -

R20BHBEFES—BAEREZEES S  fIEN (FB)BRAR RERRHRELEY ZFEHEIEAEZXASNEL
W2EARNPIRENEE - LREEE AR EH THRXMNES NS - BB B AN o

FREEE  MEBHFBESEARSE  TEAMAE  ARREHEBREEE BBZTRIRDZTREMERTELEEY
REEHEMARTIE - WEHSKEFBERMT - LREENBERRFEEERFER - RITEEE IR EERABL -

Finally, community groups and volunteers, like the “Winnie Volunteer Team,”
has collaborated with us to provide various services and support for residents.
These services ranged from haircuts to companionship visits, and greatly
enhanced the quality of life for residents. This collaboration also provided
opportunities for residents to receive care and support from the community,
which helped to improve their overall sense of well-being and happiness.

&% 1 EEEMEFEE - 20 [Winnie Volunteer Team | B2 FI4 1E - BBz
RIBMEBRISMI IS - BERGEBEIBYED  AKEATRAEN
EEEE - RRAENARAREESHEBERISNEE - 5BRA
BERHEEEN R FERK -
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PINE CARE SMART
B B

Senior care industry in Hong Kong has long been a traditional industry that highly relies on physical labour. As a leader in the industry, Pine
Care Group strives its best to promote the development of the industry and has devoted abundant resources into revolution and innovation
by developing and introducing high-tech systems to improve our services as well as management on residents’ health and safety to enhance
our overall service quality. In the foreseeable future, it is envisioned that more advanced gerontechnology will be introduced to the industry,
and it is our mission to promote the concept of “Senior Care with Technology”, leading the industry to the age of intelligence.

EZTERBAR —ERSERNKELSHNNTE  BEERSTENRERE  REEZRERSHESHTEAMNER - RN TP ERK
EREF - ABVUSIAZESHRAR  BLRERBES  ARINERAEENZ2EIE  BRMABEREE RS ATE R - Ff
BEHMAREETESSESIBALTR TR  BRBMBANER B e i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ TERERERIFR -

ENCOMPASS INTELLIGENT SYSTEM E&EZR&

Pine Care Group has developed the Encompass Intelligent System (“Encompass”), which records the residents’ data, nursing details, check-
ups, drug records and social worker follow-up cases. Staff in different departments can access and make use of the elderly resident’s past
and present records and assessments to devise the most appropriate care plan for them. In the event of an emergency, a detailed health
report of the elderly residents can also be generated to medical staff to provide the most suitable treatment scheme. Apart from that, the
system can also largely reduce paper consumption which helps to reduce waste at source.

Encompass enables monitoring of each unique care-giving journey with our individual care plans that are responsive to specific needs and
preferences of our senior residents. It serves as the Group’s reliable nursing care and operating system since its first launch in early 2000.

MABR 7 Z 5 B B 2% Encompass & 88 Z 4t ([ Encompass ]) * EEkfi R B R - BIEFE - B - &Wittr - L TREMARS - TREMH
BTIARARERABERRESCHELTE  ARAFCHRAENERENE E22BR T ABEABRERERAMFRERER
S LGETTRIBIIAAE o BRILUASN » RRINAKIR D HFRARIR - 1ETRSEREE -

EncompassiZ B MESMEE —E _MEEBKE LERERART  BERERAWMENTZRZI - 52000 F 713 AR AR -
Encompass —E AN EBIFTE B ERE REERS -

DIGITAL CARING CHART OF ACTIVITIES OF DAILY LIVING
ES b AR REETEEER

The Group is committed to taking care of its residents and is devoted to every detail. To complement Encompass, the Group develops the
Digital Caring Chart of Activities of Daily Living which outlines the daily needs of each resident, as well as assuring they are provided with
adequate personal hygiene care, assistive equipment, diet care, excretory function care, infection control and special care.

The digital caring chart is placed at residents’ bedsides, allowing quick access to information for the staff so as to provide intense and
elderly-oriented nursing care service.

Richer colour classification and clearer font with updated graphic design in line with current healthcare facilities and services are used to
make it visually easier for caregivers to read to enhance efficiency. Stand-alone file can be stored for inspection individually and it is easier to
operate in which our caregivers can devote more time in taking care of each of our senior residents.

REEZHMERBRAMT TESEMS - AREMZBBCATEELEERR R Encompass (7T - #IZRH I Skt
RABLEERS  BRADBHEREAGE - BEEHEDRE  BHRANER - BORRKNOIEDEE - RERRKRZBRRS
BE A S (A Bl R R

AEBCAREELEEEREENGAARE - B TAERERER - MR EE BANELEE R -

EMEBAES R BEMMTERENRNEARGCTER KA BAEERELRYE  EREEEXZHE MRS - Z5
T?%if%%ﬁh%b&ﬁﬁxﬁﬂ%h% NERSEE  ARREETRHEZHRENRESURERK -
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DIGITAL CATERING &E#&Ea 2l

The Group has designed an online order form to facilitate individualised catering and daily refreshment for the senior residents. Our residents

can take their time to select their refreshment online with ease every day. Additionally, this move also reduces the amount of paper required
as compared to traditional order forms.

REEC RRERKRERIELATBRS - (REEAMCRR - AT SRERES DRERE o WBETRERITBRBEARIEE -

CARING ROBOT EEE# A

Considering the challenges faced by residents who are confined indoors due to the pandemic and unable to receive visits from their families,
the Group has introduced a caring robot (the “Robot”) to facilitate virtual visits between residents and their families. The Robot also takes up
day-care duties for our staff by following and assisting them during patrolling. Controlled by the centralized Encompass, patrolling can also
be conducted following a predetermined schedule, allowing more frequent check-ups on our residents. Using the artificial intelligence and
automatic dialogue system, the Robot is also capable of automatically playing short videos and music, as well as intelligently responding to
and joking with our residents.

BET  RERERER  REEERABE - RIVEFERNRE - AEED I ABEERBA(HEBRA D RBBREBFFERAER -
PR BRBE S 75 8h B THARB & - #B) 8 THETT A B RRA TIF » f£7F R Encompassi25] T » B TAZIEELE S ERETHUR - EZTH
BERAR - BBA TR RBBHAERS  BRATRA EDFRER RS URGHEEREE  #AX -

FACIAL RECOGNITION ANTI-WANDERING
SYSTEM TE & & 5l Bh 2 E R 5

We have introduced an intelligent anti-wandering system which utilises high
quality facial recognition technology, and CCTV system to monitor all the
entrances and exits of our care and attention homes, such that our
caregivers could easily locate these residents and take immediate actions
to assist them. This system is capable of preventing residents from
wandering and causing accidents to ease their families’ worries.

HMBIATEENEERS  MASHERRAEE - KAMBRERR
# ERRERELAD BREEERFERRENMLE - LMK
REENTHRHESE - FRA AR EREEAHMAMBELERIN &
RBEBERD

INFRARED BED-EXIT DETECTORS
EAKLIMRBER AR 2R

In order to better monitor the physical condition of its residents, Pine Care
Group has installed a wide-angle infrared bed-exit detector next to each bed.
The detectors observe the activity, position and temperature of the resident
and triggers an alarm if any abnormality is detected; allowing the caregiver to
provide quicker support and immediate assistance.

REAMEERERROFEMRRN - NRELZEBEARBALEE AN
BEAKIEBIRS - (RAIRR AR RE ZREMED WEMRE - WEERETE
REGRIEER - A BERE N R RIR AN 158) -

MOTION SENSORS Ej&E R fERS

To ensure the safety of residents when using the bathroom alone, Pine Care Group has installed motion sensors in the bathroom of some
care and attention homes. In case of an elderly losing consciousness when bathing, the sensors will immediately notify the caregiver to allow
them to act faster and provide timely support.

REREEFHEEMAERNZE  NEREZEEFINSNRSNAETARESERES - WRENDHRALENE - BESRGA
FHBAEIE S @ FOMERETHIL REFRAG -
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PINE CARE GREEN
Ao i o £

Pine Care Group is dedicated to pursuing a sustainable future, in the hope of bringing a greener and better environment for our next
generations. Due to our business nature, we do not have material impact on the environment and natural resources, nor material emissions.
Nevertheless, we are highly concerned about the emissions and use of resources in our daily operations, and have formulated a series of
environmental policies and measures, guiding the employees in our care and attention homes to implement environmental protection
measures at all times, and striving for minimizing the carbon emissions of the Group.

During FY2023, we were not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including but not limited to the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354), the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 354C) and the Waste Disposal (Clinical Waste)
(General) Regulation (Cap. 3540) of Hong Kong.

MEREEEEBNEMAFHEEROARR  BERAT —RBRELE  BRFHOIRIE - EREANEBLE  HAHERERRAER
WREAZE  TNEEERYN - ARt RAD+ ORI R B 2EMELNIIRMEREFRER - WHERERBRRBRER - 15
BEEEETEIRAZERRER  BRABNRIEA LB NN -

R2028MBEFE - RMUTMBABBERIBREREBH - RKELHOYS EERBZEENNELSNERZ LRI ES R
ERERNERTE  BRERERBIBETRICEYMR B KD (BBENEISIE)  (EMRE (L2EY) (—R) RO (FBE
P15 354C &) R(BEMRE (BEREY) (—R) RPN (EBENIEI540EF) o

WASTE MANAGEMENT RBEYE®E
Hazardous Waste HEEEEY)

The hazardous wastes generated by each care and attention home of the Group in daily operations were mainly medical waste and chemical
waste. We have formulated guidelines for handling waste, guiding employees in care and attention homes to properly separate, store and
handle waste to avoid improperly handled waste imposing adverse impact on the environment. We have appointed chemical and medical
waste recycler to collect and handle such waste. For chemical waste such as drug waste, we also appoint qualified waste disposal and
recycling companies to handle such waste. If any infectious waste is generated, we would also handle it properly and immediately.

During FY2028, the Group maintained a similar level of total hazardous waste intensity when compared to FY2022.
ERERAESESELREEYN L E2ENSEEEEY - BMEHEEEYRIERS|  BEREBEZES,T  BENEREEEY
NEEEMETEREMERFERTFEE - RMETARATNEEREEEMRERRE KRB ERBEEY - ENEEENS
{L2EY  ZMTELETEERNENZERQWAREREBZEERY - MEPBERRNEY  HASESEZEFEDY -

12022 B F EARLL - R 2028 MIRFE - AEBWAEEMHEBEHFEENRFE -
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Non-hazardous Waste EEREZY]

The non-hazardous generated by the Group in daily operations were mainly general refuse such as food waste and paper waste. Committed
to minimizing waste, the Group has set a target to reduce its intensity of non-hazardous waste generated by the year ended 31 March 2027
(“FY2027”), using FY2022 as the baseline year. To achieve this target, we strive to reduce waste at source. Since our care and attention
homes purchase a large amount of ingredients for meal preparation on a daily basis, responsible staff adjust the purchase amount in view of
residents’ eating habits and portions to avoid wastage. We also encourage our staff to use reusable cutleries to reduce food packaging. In
addition, due to our business nature, we consume a large amount of paper in our daily operations. Therefore, we develop and adopt
Encompass to digitally record residents’ information such as medical records, nursing plans, living habits, emergency reports etc. Such
practice has largely reduced the reliance on paper consumption.

Apart from waste reduction at source, the Group emphasizes on relieving the burden on the landfill through waste separation and recycling.
Therefore, we have placed recycling bins in the care and attention homes to separate waste diapers from other refuse. In the meantime, the
Group also enhanced waste reduction and recycling promotion by posting posters or other promotional materials at prominent places of the
care and attention homes during FY2023.

During FY2023, the Group maintained a similar level of total non-hazardous waste intensity when compared to FY2022. The Group will
continue to monitor its performance, seek to reduce the amount of waste produced and review the progress made against its target in
coming years.

FEBAFLEEENERBEENTIERFRRERS —REY - ARERNRERLEY - BEILER - A0 W B FERELF -
REZ2027 53 A31 BIEFE (2027 WBFE D AR BZEEYEE - REXBR BMABNRERERE - ARREFRBERER
MENSAME  HHEETEREGANARBEND EFNERMERBNE - URERRE - RANZEE TEMAAERBHNERLR
PERRMEE - I EREMANEHUE - RMASH AT EETHERAERR - ALt - I RIRM Encompass BiH LDk
RER - WRE - RS AEREE  BRERIRES - BT ARRERFIE RRAKE -

BT HRORBRREE SN - ANEEBUVEREY D RO O SRR ER A BE - At - OIS HE CRAE SRR A DR R - 8
LRI - SR BP0 2023 B B E B & & IR BIRBL S M W EE M - MRS FREDIL -

H2022 P EFEAALL - M2023MBFE - ARENBEZENEEREHEFIBEKRT - AEERBBEERERE  ENRLEDEL
WRRREF R ELBIRNEE
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The waste disposal performance of the Group is outlined below:

AERE W EEMPERBURI T

Unit FY2023 FY2022
B 20230 EFE 202281 E
Non-hazardous waste EEFEZEY]
Paper tonnes 3.76 3.22
AR 145
Other general refuse tonnes 7.35 7.65
Hh—RREEY W
Total non-hazardous waste generated tonnes 11.11 10.87
BENEEEEYEE 7]
Intensity of non-hazardous waste generated tonnes/occupied 0.009 0.009
EENEESBEENEE RCHE places
Wi, BAERERBEN
Hazardous waste 5= EEY)
Medical waste tonnes 0.24 0.20
BEEY 7
Chemical waste tonnes 0.54 1.37
{LEEY Mg
Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 0.78 1.57
EENBEEEEYEE L]
Intensity of hazardous waste tonnes/occupied 0.001 0.001

EENBERRYBE

RCHE places

W, BAEREREMN

Note 1: During FY2023, the Group had a total of 1,194 (FY2022: 1,225) residential care homes for the elderly (‘RCHE”) places. This data is used for calculating other intensity data.

Bifat1 : R202301FE - KEEAF1,194 (20228/F/Z  1,225) (ALELEBL - BABBARGEAMZREER
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Sewage Discharges 357KHERK

Due to our business nature, we do not consume a significant volume of water, therefore our business activities did not generate a material
portion of discharge into water. As the sewage discharged by the Group is discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network, the amount
of sewage discharge is considered as the water consumed. The amount of water consumed and corresponding water-saving initiatives will
be described in the section headed “Water Management”.

ERRFNEBIEE - RALEERAEKER - AR MR AW EES REKREN - BRAREFRNSKRATBIGKEE -
TKBEE R RFEKE o FKE RERE RSN [ AKEE] —&fi -

ENERGY, AIR AND GHG EMISSIONS &R - BREAZERBHK

The energy consumption, air and GHG emissions of the Group can mainly be attributed to the purchase electricity and town gas used for
supporting the operations of our care and attention homes. The relevant data in FY2023 and FY2022 are outlined below:

REEWRRERE  BROBERBHRRE XHEE2EMNINEE N RER - 2023 MIERFE JA K 2022 B FE R BB BN T

Unit FY2023 FY2022

By 20235 BUFE 20228 BUF B
Air emissions EESRFER
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) kg 3.77 3.81
A& F=
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.02 0.01
matky F5=
Particulate Matters (PM) kg - 0.09
LI Rl F5=
GHG emissions &= R EHEK
Direct emissions (Scope 1) tonnes CO.e 50.11 58.26
HEBEWR (FE 1) mE—E b iRE =
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) tonnes CO.e 2,488.79 2,466.48
REIREIEEBERN (B0[E 2) mE— A b E S
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tonnes CO,e 2,538.90 2,524.74
BREREHR(EE1R2) Wo—EtEE
Intensity of GHG emissions tonnes CO.e/ 2.13 2.06
BERBHEREZE occupied RCHE places

HMo_S{tHRER

BAERERBN

iR B AR A R A
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Unit FY2023 FY2022

By 20235 BUFE 20228 BUF B
Energy consumption B5iRH 3%
Liquified petroleum gas (“LPG”) MWh - 88.09
BACRHR, KL
Towngas MWh 261.72 197.50
KR JKELBF
Direct energy consumption MWh 261.72 285.59
BEERRHE KB
Purchased electricity MWh 5,968.70 6,167.88
SNEE JKEL B
Indirect energy consumption MWh 5,968.70 6,167.88
R ERERUEE JK FL B
Total energy consumption MWh 6,230.42 6,453.47
BEEFUERE K FL B
Intensity of energy consumption MWh/occupied 5.22 5.27
RREERE RCHE places

KEE BAERERENL

Note 1:

Note 2:
Note 3:
Mz

HiaE2 -
HiaE3 -

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report 2014 (AR5), the “ESG Report 2022”
published by the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, the Sustainability Report 2022 published by the CLP Holdings Limited and the HK Electric Investments Sustainability
Report 2022 published by the HK Electric Investments.

The unit conversion method of energy consumption data is formulated based on the Energy Statistics Manual issued by International Energy Agency.
Due to the revision of the calculation method, there may be some discrepancies between the data reported and those stated in our ESG Report 2022.

BERBHRBFZ—EREELS] WA BEETRRERERHIANRERAFGERRTHEES VRO EREREATE  PEREBEIE)  BATHIE
HICINEFIRE - B RERIRE — W= BRFERMREIEIFIERIES]) - 20144FIPCCE B RFHE IR & I 2T FHE EREENARS) - B/EFERRHIR A A1 #H9(R% -
HERERRE2022)  HEEHFR N A6 (2022 A EERME) R BIE BN IREBIR A AITI# (2022 F A F5ERRHE)

BERBREBIIR 6 AR E 775 T IR IR BN AL )5 & P # A 2 CBE IR BE F 1)
HRMERTEHE % - FT#R e 9 BIE AT 2 £2 2021 FIR 1T - 1 B REVARE AL TR ©
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In order to promote efficient use of energy and minimize emissions in the Group’s operations, the Group has set targets to reduce intensities
of electricity consumption and GHG emissions by FY2027, using FY2022 as the baseline year. To achieve these targets, the Group strives

to optimize the use of energy in order to reduce our GHG emissions and thus our carbon footprint. As a result, we have implemented a
series of energy optimization measures in our care and attention homes to promote the concept of energy reduction:

RIBERRERAR R RBER P ANEBSEMEENRY - REBETLERER - L2022 BB EFE RERESF - 702027 BIERFE TR
BENERMEERBIINEE - REKAR  AEEHNZAER - LORREREIHEIRE o« Bl - HrHRBETRR - RkE
BT RIgERE(CIER °

* Require staff to turn on air-conditioning only if the room temperature reaches 25 degrees or above

ERE TEREZET26E SIA LR RS RAERR R 2 b B E SRR R D2 R

e Clean the air-conditioners regularly to optimize its performance to enhance energy efficiency
EHBERLRE  BREEFEBIE - EaR%E

* Prioritize to purchase energy-saving electrical appliances

BRI ERR

e Prefer the use of LED lights
B2 FILEDR A

* Place notices in the care and attention homes to remind our staff to turn off electricity appliances and conserve energy

RITERIET - 178 TR ERME - B408LR

Moreover, we have installed disinfection and deodorization machines and air disinfection machines, as well as encouraged planting potted
plants in care and attention homes to improve air quality. During FY2023, the Group also enhanced carbon reduction and energy
conservation promotion by posting posters or other promotional materials at prominent places of the care and attention homes.

During FY2023, the energy consumption intensity of the Group slightly decreased by 0.95% while the GHG emissions intensity of the Group
slightly increased by 3.40% compared to FY2022. The Group will continue to monitor its performance, seek to reduce the amount of energy
consumed and GHG emitted, and review the progress made against its target in coming years.

AN HPITERERET ZRESRIBME=RBEIE  THEBEEAR  URAZREER - R20BHHEFE - AEESFRES
BRMUERWEMEEMSEY - AISRIEEETRLIRAR

12022 I EAALL - 2023 IIRFE - AEEMEERBFEE EEM T - BKKI8/R0.95% » TR KB MR =P EEM L7 -
IR R B8.40% - AEEMEEERARER - FNRLRREREEERENNE  UNRREF R EBENEE

B AR A R A
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WATER MANAGEMENT AKE®RE

The Group consumes domestic water supplied by local supplier to support care and attention homes’ daily operations. We did not
encounter any problem in terms of water sourcing. Due to our business nature, water consumption is not considered as a material issue.
Nevertheless, we are still alert about our daily water consumption and strive to introduce appropriate measure to save water. We have also
set a target to reduce its intensity of water consumption by FY2027, using FY2022 as the baseline year. To achieve this target, we have
installed automatic faucets and throttles to minimize wastage of water. During FY2023, the Group also enhanced water conservation
promotion by posting posters or other promotional materials at prominent places of the care and attention homes.

During FY2023, the water consumption intensity of the Group slightly increased by 9.26% compared to FY2022. The Group will continue to
monitor its performance, seek to reduce the amount of water consumed, and review the progress made against its target in coming years.

The water consumption data during FY2023 and FY2022 are detailed as below:

REEEHFERNHEHRENDERKERSBEEEZM - JAERKBUER/KER LI EBRMERRE - ERRMNERIEE - B
ORI FFE AR - RFURARIRMNAERK RN ERESBEEEELOMAK - RITFCHIEBR - N2022MBHFRRELESF -
R2027 M EE AR A FREE - BEKBER > HAISLKEFKEBENHRBAZTER P RIORE - N2028MBFE - REE RN
EERMEREESREEGSTEYE - AIRHESHETLIMK

12022 BABRFEARLL + M 2023 T FE - AEBAKERREEM E9.06% - AEEBEBELERERIR &9 B/KEREEZ I
RAREBFRFTEBIZREE -

2023 MR E A I 2022 (A S E O RIOB BRI T ¢

Unit FY2023 FY2022

By 20238 B E 20228 E
Total water consumption m? 59,449.00 55,826.00
HFEKE I FK
Intensity of water consumption m3/occupied 49.79 45.57
FKEZE RCHE places

YK/ BEAEREREN

CLIMATE CHANGE RISKS K& %1t =k

To echo the growing worldwide concern on climate change, the Group is committed to identifying, managing and disclosing material
climate-related risks. Therefore, the Group has integrated climate-related risks into the Group’s enterprise risk management (‘ERM”) system.
The Group has underwent a risk assessment exercise in examining and evaluating its climate-related risks with regards to the
recommendations in the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”). With reference to TCFD’s recommendations and
based on the latest climate policies and market changes related to the regions and industries where it operates, the following physical and
transition risks were identified, and potential countermeasures were proposed and studied.

EHRERBIRGEEL BRI AEEBABH  EBRKRESARGHEBRR - Bit - AEEBRRAERRBAREENDE

FERERRSR - REBETRRE  RIERIEEREMHBETENMOEZR RS R AREERAR - RIEREEEMHBETEN
HNFALERARESEMEHR RITENRIMRIERE LT SEE  RADEN T EERENRR - WERMARATEYS
=,
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PHYSICAL RISKS Ef&E &

The Group is aware of various operational risks brought about by climate change, including extreme weather, such as high temperature,

heavy rain, storms, etc., as well as problems that may be caused by extreme weather, such as rising material prices and supply chain
disruptions. We particularly pay special attention to the safety of our employees by formulating relevant contingency plan. In the event of
abnormal weather, we will follow specific measures in the daily operations to ensure that everyone can work in a safe and healthy
environment.

As extreme heat may affect the health condition of our elderly residents, we will continue to monitor weather changes in order to prevent
them from suffering heatstroke. Meanwhile, the Group provides climate change-related nursing training courses and to staff to ensure they
know how to dress the elderly in response to weather changes to avoid over-cooling or overheating. We will also adjust the air-conditioning
system’s output capacity based on the weather to maintain a comfortable temperature in our care and attention homes.

FAEEIBIREZCHERNSELERAR  2FE2R  £#0  EEFWHRRAREHRRAETRNMEE - I EHER LR R
fERERET - HPILHIBEE TR 2 EHCHBEEE - MRARMARARE  RASKATEEPHTHTEGE  BR2BE TERERE
REMRFTE -

HREERA R ERERRNBENR  ROASKESERRE(L  BHIEERTZ - AR - ARERE TIRERIRECHEMEERIIR
B ERETHANAEERRECREAFR BB TBRH - BATBREXTARSRERBLE  RNES#SFERE -

TRANSITION RISKS E & & &

Compliance with new or existing laws and regulations could impact the Group’s operations. In particular, as the urgency for policy makers to
transition to a low-carbon economy heightens, the Group might be exposed to higher risks of claims and lawsuits regarding stricter climate-
related laws and regulations. In response to emerging expectations and regulations around businesses managing corporate carbon footprint,
the Group has implemented different energy-saving and GHG reduction initiatives, and set relevant target to reduce its carbon footprint. The
Group also regularly monitors existing and emerging trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate change and be prepared to alert the
management where necessary to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines and reputational risks due to delayed response.

Looking forward, the Group will continuously incorporate sustainability and industry best practices in its business operations to keep up with
increasingly stringent government regulations and the rising stakeholders’ interest in sustainability.

WA RRBERER A EALELE - LEBERGIEE S 2REE M - AREERIREREARKOER B RIS TR
HERERFANRRA RS - REHHAETECERENNPERARN - AEED BITSIHEDHILR SN R = RAE PGS L 5
E BB AR - AEETEHERRIEECABRA MTHEBE  BELRD] - WEER L RERRE IR E AR % R KB E
ML IRA - TNERE KR BER R -

REARN  AEBHEEMATERRETERERARERLEZD - B TUBERROBUTRI KR HEHAFERRNEE -
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PINE CARE CARING
AR Bt B &

Pine Care has always been a caring company and upheld the principle of “people-oriented” in the first place of our operations. We pay
special attention to providing a warm and supportive work atmosphere, together with rewarding remunerations and benefits, adequate
health and safety measures and career development opportunities to our employees. Besides, we are also dedicated to contributing to the
community as a gratitude of their long-term support to the Group. We have initiated various community programs throughout the years,
gathering our resources and manpower to support the needy in society.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to employment
(including compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity and anti-
discrimination), as well as labor standards, including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485) of Hong Kong.

EREEDLE  ME—ARF [MARA]NEREE - RMAQFEDRERENGEXE  BETRHEBSIMNHHET - RHNRE
REERMBERRES - I BRATBOLELRE - UEFEMABAEERAMBRNE - HAIZFRERZELRETY - BBR
FNERMANEDHE LERFENA -

K028 BFE - AEBEAXTAEAEFNERERER(RESHMEAE BRERET - THERE  BH FERE - ZERER)
AR R EEEREEZIROIINER  SFETRREB BRG] & E 485 ERBIERE S BIED) -
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EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW ETHE

As of 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 488 employees (As of 31 March 2022: 504 employees) who fell into the reporting scope. The
compositions of employees by gender, age group, employee category, employment type and geographical region are as follows:

HZE2023F3A31H » KEBHELISSZE T (EHE2022F3A31H : 504R B T)BREHENRN - B TIRMR - 4R - EIFEER -
EEERRIEHBIDAT

Totallf Composition by gender
workforce izt 51|55
ﬂalka E Female Male
4 8 8 E -4 B
(FY2022: 504) @@@@ 4 /I 6 qu 7 2
(2022871 5% : (FY2022: 422) (FY2022: 82)
FE: 504) ; (02281 B EF E: 422) (202281 FE: 82)
Composition by age group
HERD M
Aged 50 above Aged 31 to 50 Aged 30 or below
508l L 31E508 1 30T
Ge8e 220 95190 8478
AOOHS OO Ao
(FY2022: 222) (FY2022: 199) (FY2022: 83)
(202287 K (202287 X (2022871 K
FE: 222) FRE:199) F[Z: 83)

Composition by employee category
ZRREERR DM

Operation staff

EERT

476

(FY2022: 491)

Corporate staff
f£RET

12

(FY2022: 13)

(20228 R E:491) .. (20228 R 13)
Composition by ;0'%‘9'(0"9
geographical region
% b [& 5 (FY2022: 504)
RIBE D 488 (20228 B = 504)
o 3 2 WA R 2
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The turnover rate by gender, age group, employee category and geographical region are as follows:

IR - FiAAR - BEEES RSN E TREAEMT

‘ ?verall . Turnover rate by gender
© turnoverrate | i hp = T
ﬂgﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬂi E %Q| %J./\ Uwfkiﬂ—
: Female Male
28.7% @
° §126.4% 9941.7
(FY2022: 40.3%) 1% A%
(202281 ' (FY2022: 39.8%) (FY2022: 42.7%)
FE: 40.3%) (20228 B = 39.8%) (202281 X FF - 42.7%)

Turnover rate by age group HRFERARIE TRKE

Aged 50 above Aged 31 to 50 Aged 30 or below
508kl L 31E50LL S0EEELLTF
% 6643.7% aaldl:
a6 20.0% a8 % Ao %
(FY2022: 30.6%) (FY2022: 39.7%) (FY2022: 67.5%)
(2022871 Bt (2022871 X (202281 X
FFE: 30.6%) FRE: 39.7%) FE: 67.5%)

------
- ~s

Corporate staff
S&XERT

8.3%

(FY2022: 15.4%)

o Operation staff
: EERTI

29.2%

(FY2022: 40.9%)

(20228 L [ : 40.9%) Seee. (20228 L E: 15.4%)
Turnover rate by Hong Kong
geographical region
RHhE B T e & 2 7 (FY2022: 40.3%)
B S TR 9% (cocemtmER: 40.3%)

Note 1: The turnover rate is calculated by dividing the number of employees leaving employment during the reporting period by the number of existing employees at the end of the report-
ing period in the specified category.

Note 2: The turnover rate by category is calculated by dividing the number of employees in the specified category leaving employment during the reporting period by the number of exist-
ing employees in the specific category at the end of the reporting period.

Bat1 : B TRAFZBEHINEES TH ARG EEIRBE ARG RELE THEE -
Htiz2 - BIRFIR TRAF R EIRF R E AR FIRE B R T8 B B IA IR E AR IAFHEE T A E »
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RESPECTING EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS EE8 T ###

Being an equal opportunity employer, we always uphold the principle of equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination during each

human resources-related processes, including but not limited to recruitment, promotion, training and determination of remuneration and
benefits. The Group mainly recruit talents through internal transfer, recruitment advertisements, Labour Department and Employees
Retraining Board. We welcome all suitable candidates to join our family regardless their gender, age, family status or disability etc. We would
consider their knowledge, skills, abilities and other work-related factors. We do not allow any forms of workplace discrimination. If any
discrimination or harassment is identified against our employees or even residents, we would investigate into and follow up with the case
seriously. Confirmed cases will be followed by disciplinary action including reporting to police and/or termination of employment contract.

We would provide employees with competitive remuneration packages as a gratitude to their hard work. Their salaries are determined by
their professional qualifications, experiences, work performance, service years, job positions and market level. Apart from basic salaries, they
are also entitled with discretionary bonuses. The management will review employees’ remunerations to ensure they are competitive enough.
In addition, we also offer our employees with a number of welfare and benefits:

ERTEREREE  RARARBTIERS  ZUCRRERNRRBIBETHEADEREETIE - SEETRNAE - E7F - HIRH
EFHFMEEN - AEETEFEBNBHEL  BEES STEMEEBZIBEEAT - HMBULMESENAS AR - Tt
A FER O RERRTEARAE - HAISEBEME - RI5 - EOAREMBETERBMEE - BB EL —BSERE - MR
BEMBHETEZERANERSEE  RMSRERSWRE - WERBRETREES - ERER K LEFEALD -

BMRE TIREARSFNOFHEAMME TEMNHOE®R - ETHMBMMOFEER - K5 TERR  F&  BURTSKER
BIE o BR T EAFE - REOITEBARIBLLA - ERES W 8 THMGIZAERAZF N s - RATNAE TRE—RIWEH

HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES f&RHH

- Al

Rest Day Statutory and Annual Leave Marriage Leave
*E Public Holidays F£R/B ]
BER ST
) @ 7\
1

Maternal/ Work Injury Leave Jury Leave Compassionate
Paternal Leave TER BRESR Leave
ER HER 2

M e R A
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Smmms Smmme Smmms

Mandatory Insurance On-duty Meals

Provident Fund Tig EEER
WEe

AWARDS AND OTHER BENEFITS =2 5% H #4318

Smmme

Staff Rewards Staff Support Program
BRI RIEmata

Smmms

Apart from the above benefits and welfare, we are also highly concerned about employees’ sense of belonging and affiliation. As a result, we
have adopted different platforms, including meetings, suggestion box, hotline, email, staff performance appraisals and notice boards to
communicate with and collect opinions from employees so that we could improve our labour practices and strive for excellence. We also
organize various employee activities from time to time to gather our employees together. In FY2023, we held several activities for our
employees during the ease of pandemic control. For example, on 23 December 2022, a lunch gathering was held for our employees. The
Group organized the event as a way to celebrate Christmas and show appreciation for their hard work and dedication of its employees
throughout the year.

BRTUAENFBREF  BEMTATOEREINGEBEENBE - Al ZMEEBTRAYE  RIEgR BERA R B - 8TH
BETZE GBS EHE TERTKREMMONER  ERMEUREERETH  THES - RMOTS T THRRSEE TES - EMH
BE—E - R20230HFE @ HERBHIEERRESRMAS TR TEUEE - flan - BR2022F12 4238 » ARMHE T
THERE - AEBBRR OB ABNEREL - WEAHETI2FOFH TIERSRIBE -
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING BEEIZXE

Employees’ wellbeing is always of paramount importance for us. The Group is in strict compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health

Ordinance of Hong Kong and other applicable laws and regulators to provide adequate occupational health and safety measures as well as
mental support to ensure employees’ physical and mental wellbeing.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to occupational
health and safety, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The Group has established a sound Occupational Health and Safety Committee (the “OHS Committee”) and established the Code of
Occupational Health and Safety, as well as a series of well-rounded policies and measures to oversee occupational health and safety
management in a systematic way. The OHS Committee would identify, manage and review potential occupational health and safety risks,
and strive its best to introduce suitable measures to address these risks in order to minimize potential hazards imposed on our employees,
especially front-line workers who may be vulnerable to work injury and other risks in view of their daily routine.

During FY2023, we have recorded 2 work-related injury cases and the total lost days due to work injury were 117 (FY2022: recorded 5
work-related injury cases and the total lost day due to work injury was 84). The first case involves an employee who sustained a fractured
toe after being struck by a falling cabinet door while accessing an overhead storage unit. Another case involves an employee who suffered a
sprained ankle while holding recreational activities for residents. The employee was in the process of opening a valve when the machinery
malfunctioned, causing the injury. We have made compensations to the front-line employees involved and both cases are being investigated
by the Group to identify any potential hazards or safety concerns that may have contributed to the injuries. We would review and improve
our existing code to lower the occurrence of such work injuries in the future. In the meantime, we did not record any work fatalities in each
of the past three years including FY2023.

BMREEERETILE AREBNETERERLAN  BREEREL2LEERD RETRARHNBERERZ2HEHENAR
DIBIE - PARIEALFIH) 5O R -

R2028MBFE - AREWIBINEMERERBERFERZ2AMERLERNEN - BAERERERETRREBNRE
22 RARBEAED))

FEBDRIERNBERERL2ZES  UHECBRERE2IEFETADNERERRERERL2ER - BRERERLZE2ZE M
B EENEREENBREREIRZZAR  UBAEESENERE BRRERARHET  LEEZRTFEEAmMARS TEREMR
BREVRIAR B TPTER R EEGE -

2023 B E - MG R TIEMBAMN TESH - B LSRR THERBE@AR1TR(2022MERFE  H155R LIFHBN THSEH -
ATHBEATEABERAR8AR) - BERARS L —RREEBEEANREARGFREFREZNEFETNEREH - 5—FERSR—
FZEEERCABNFLEDRERIRE - BRSWER - EEEAITHREM  SERE - RMC AP ROARESELRE - MAE
EERMRERETAE AR TEERZENENEERRIL2ME - RMEBRFTAB(CRETE  FEEFRERVBHIE
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Highlights of occupational health and safety measures we have introduced in our care and attention homes can be separated into the
following aspects:
BN E EROBERRER L 2R EE 0 /AT 2[EHE

Environmental Safety e Conduct fire drill and firefighting equipment inspection at least once a year
RIRT R ROGFETNERBWREN ARE
Employees’ Personal Safety e Require workers to wear suitable clothing and shoes in different work areas
BTEAZZ BRTRAMINE TE L AERERET

e Require workers in kitchen to strictly follow relevant safety guide to handle equipment
carefully

EREERE TREETHEMZ 2R - FIECARERE
* Implement bathroom safety guide to remind workers to keep bathroom dry and clean
FIEAELLES - REE TRFAERIRF

* Arrange daily exercise for workers required
for manual work who may face a higher risk
of injury when taking care of residents
REZRNLSDHMERERRKGXE@MHE
aBIEARNE TG HED

e Provide lift-easy transfer belt and patient lifting
device to assist workers in lifting residents
with disability to reduce their physical effort
and risk of getting sprain

REZERITHNMEL KB TIREFRBS

[ . *
. . e L)
MBNB LR D E 88 h 558 RopE 5 R e pammmmmmmsmaen
Hygiene e Require workers to handle and dispose of residents’ blood, excrement and other
e secretions which may contain viruses and bacteria carefully while wearing appropriate

personal protective equipment

BERETEEREREERAF LS FMAEMRTNMA - BB REMD WY - I

mE & @ EAREEE
Personal Health e Appoint social workers to provide mental support to employees
AR L TAB TRELELIE
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APPLY STRINGENT PANDEMIC PREVENTION MEASURES
B iEGRE R

“lIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Under the pandemic, in view of our business nature, we
understand that our residents and employees face a relatively
high risk of infection. Therefore, we have formulated and
implemented stringent and thorough pandemic prevention

measures in line with the guide provided by Social Welfare
Department and Department of Health so as to minimize the risk
of virus spread within our care and attention homes. Such
measures include:

ERIEHE  EREMNEBLEE - HAINRARE TamER
SRR - EU R MR REL SR AE REEEHES 6
EXEHERERZENRER - BRERESRESERRRRE

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII-IIIIII..

&I o A EE
o Require employees to conduct COVID-19 test regularly o Require employees to wear personal protective
ESKE T FHIEE S A E AR R =R E =108 equipment when accompanying residents to clinic,
including masks, protective goggles, protective clothing
o Require employees to conduct body temperature and hats, and require them to take them off at
check and wear masks all the time clesliel lied alige iz iy sl
B A TSR AT AR RSO E ZRETRRARNELDBEERAANEEH -
FEOSE - #EE  REXRE - W ERMFIEFRER
, , , 5 E [ 15 B e
o Require employees to wear protective goggles while

helping residents shower and adjust the shower to
lower water splash

E5K B TR RS MEE B 51 FRIEEKE LA
2w 9 4

B AR A R A
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CARING FOR OUR STAFF:
CARE GIVER SUPPORT PROGRAM
RRBEBRE — BT HOXFaTE

We recognize that caring for our staff who care for the elderly is essential to providing high-quality care and promoting a positive and
supportive work culture at our care and attention homes. To prioritize the physical and mental well-being of our staff members, we
have recently launched the staff support program in January 2023. It was implemented based on our recognition of the importance
of caring for our staff who work tirelessly to support the residents.

Through the program, we have provided our staff with specialized training in mind-body techniques such as yoga, gigong,
acupressure massage, and therapeutic dance, all of which are designed to promote relaxation, reduce stress, and enhance overall
well-being.

Our social workers have also played a key role in the implementation of the program, receiving specialized training in various
techniques and facilitating the activities for our frontline workers. We encourage our staff to participate in these activities during their
lunch breaks, allowing them to take a much-needed break from their busy schedules and connect with their colleagues.

Since the launch of the program, we have observed a significant improvement in the well-being of our staff. Our staff who have
participated in the program have reported feeling more energized, focused, and positive. They have also expressed a greater sense
of camaraderie with their colleagues, as they are now able to share their work-related stress and feelings in a supportive and non-
judgmental environment.

Moving forward, we are committed to continuing the program and expanding it to meet the changing needs of our staff.

HMTR#D - BERARBERENS THAERMOERRZRIRMHED EE LR FTHJEHE)JE’JI{’EXﬂ:i%Ex REBEETIH
BOER - BPIR2023F 1 AHE T H O HAE - BRETRAUKRKNIIEESY - HFFLEEBSEAE THIERER
TE  BMEFEIIERIRES -

BT BFIABE TRHEAM S ORI EFEN - mmil - ]I - SRIRERGEER - BEMERR  MEE ) KA
BREHOKRHA -

BPETHEABIDECEEAE  YERIRERMOFEZI - BRAMEE TRITEQENESY  AEBFIENER - R
8 B THEF AR RS EELES) - FMFIEEZTH TERBRTEIBENNE - WHERFFRIHE -

BeEPEHELAK - BHMEEIETHF ORERENE - 2EZENE TH ETEAME SRR TELRIETLEN &
%&&;‘E%a@ o M FITRERRI R T RAFHIRE » B PIRESAAE SR IE R FERE A M R BRIE D 0 2 TR B A MR

BEAM - RFSNBERTHHBRERE  UREE
TABEEOTR -
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PROMOTING CAREER DEVELOPMENT ¥ EBERE

We understand that providing adequate career development and training opportunities to employees is vital to their personal development

as well as the Group’s development. Employees are granted with promotion opportunities in determination of their work performance, skills,
potentials, abilities, work attitude, years of service, efficiency, communication skills and conduct etc. We would conduct performance
appraisal on a yearly basis in which self-appraisal, peer appraisal and bottom-up appraisal will be performed to evaluate each employee in a
holistic approach.

In addition to promotion, we also place great emphasis on training. Internal and external training courses are arranged from time to time to
get employees well-equipped. We would also provide subsidies for advanced studies. For new-joiners especially front-line employees, in
particular nurses, health workers, care workers, kitchen workers and cleaning workers, we provide comprehensive orientation trainings to
ensure they are equipped with necessary work-related knowledge and skills before taking care of residents. Such trainings include infection
control, occupational health and safety, emergency cases handling, feeding, handling of medication, handling of wound, food safety and
hygiene etc. Employees are required to take regular examinations on the above training topics to ensure they are familiar with relevant
knowledge and skills.

We prepare a training calendar every year for better arrangement of the Group’s training courses. During FY2023, training topics offered
include but not limited to the followings:

HMAARERANBEZFRRBIREFHE TEANRNEEER BTERBETERR - Xt BE  &H - THERE F5 -
ME COBBEOMRTERGERE - RMBEFETERSE  BREEATR  AAFRETEF Z  U2EFRETRRE -

BT EA BT OERE - RASLHABRIMITIEE TRAREED - HMITSRHEEEE TEE - RO ABET -
LHAGETEL  REE  #EE  FEETINFRT  RHEEEAARIEI - MRMFIETTEE T AT REHE TIERH M EEE -
I ERF BERAES  BERRERLE  BREYWEE KRR EZVEE SHOERE RYRE2IFLS - BETHKEMA LATES
EITERR - R PIPEAR B B R o

BPISFEHIEE B RAMEL AR EENEIIRIE - R2028HHFEE @ BIIANBRFEETRR

* Medical management e Senior mental and social wellbeing

Gy REUE R R ERE
e Fall risk management e Nutrition and diet management

RN =g EENMERERE
e Use of restraint items e Taking care of residents with communication disorders

AR m REVBBEER K
e Hospice care e Rehabilitation exercises

A R BRES

A B AR AR A
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During FY2023, the Group has arranged in total approximately 7,835.0 hours of training courses with approximately 66.4% of employees
attending the training courses. The overall average training hours per employee was approximately 7.51 hours during FY2023. The training

ratio by gender and employee category is as follows:

R2028 T FE - AEELHA £497,835.0/ Ry
SR 497.51 /N o B TR MR MIEFEERIZEIH

-_———

.

89.9%
13.57

FIFRTE » K166.4% 8T
DEVERFILL RN

Female

771.3%

of employees trained
SIHETHL

Breakdown of
employees trained

R/ THME
Average training hours
IR

10.1%
0.82

T2 EBHIRIE o

K203 HFE  BREBIMEETEY

15 I %

Male

A7 .3%

of employees trained
SHEIFDL

Breakdown of
employees trained

Training ratio by employee category Z{E(ELE

-
.= S~

100%
12.74

-
.= S~

Operation staff
EERT

o/ .8%

of employees trained X
ZIETAEDLE

Breakdown of
employees trained

Rl R TR

Average training hours
AR # —

R/ THMEA
Average training hours
1L Al B B

ARl o FEH R B =

Corporate staff

TRRET

—%

of employees trained
ZHETAEDLE

Breakdown of
employees trained

RNR/THME
Average training hours

315 Al Y

Note 1: The percentage of employees trained by category is calculated by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified category during the
reporting period by the number of existing employees in the specified category at the end of the reporting period.

Note 2:  The breakdown of employees trained by category is calculated by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified category during the
reporting period by the total number of trained employees during the reporting period.

Note 3:  The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the training hours for employees in the specified category during the reporting period
by the number of existing employees in the specified category at the end of the reporting period.

Brat1 - IRPIR IR TIZI S AR ERFIZ IR TE BB BE AR EEFNEER THEHE -

Hiit2 : IRFIR IR THIRIZ R & BN ERFIR IR THA B A BREHAZINE THEEE -

Brat 3 : IR B TP1G R 5|05 BRI & I TSI 8 TR 8 A RS AR ER IR EE THAHE -
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COMPLYING WITH LABOUR STANDARDS E<F{EREE

The Group adopts zero tolerance attitude towards the recruitment of child and forced labour. Our employment practices are in compliance

with the relevant labour laws and regulations. During recruitment process, we verify employees’ identity documents to ensure they have met
the legal working age. Moreover, we have clearly outlined necessary employment terms on the employment contract and other human
resources policies, including working hours, work location, remuneration, job duties, shift arrangement, leave, dismissal procedures etc.
Front-line employees working in the care and attention homes would work on shift. We employ foreign workers through the Supplementary
Labour Scheme (“SLS”) of the Labour Department. We also perform stringent screening process on qualified candidates to ensure that all
our employees met the recruitment requirements in Hong Kong and have valid work permit so as to avoid forced labour.

Any case of child labour or forced labour, when discovered, will be investigated and acted upon and reported to the government authorities
promptly in accordance with applicable laws. Further, the Group will immediately terminate the employment contract and impose due
penalty on the erring employee.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations relevant to child and forced labour.

AREBEHHRRLE T LRHISHRN [T ZRRA - LANRMBEGEEHEBNSE TR - ERBERT  BRASXEETINSNHESR
XA RIS EEDAE TS © Mo - BRATRERES O REMA D ERSEIRARER R - SETIERE - TIEH - 5
B TiEEE - BV RY - BERRES - RENREIFEGNITE - BN BT RBASLT - HFBBES TERMMHTS TAE
BRBAST - BHAHAERNEREJTRROBEREFUERRETATENRBEE LUK AEARTERE - BEHRBH S -

HEIRE TR b8 TER  AEEMETAS RRIITEL KR RBEREPIMBTAFIRE o thoh - REEKKIDERE THER
BRI EESNEETTE -

R2028 B FE - AEEL NANEEEAEANEREBE TSRS TEERRIINER -
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SPREADING WARMTH TO COMMUNITY [t E&IE;2E

The Group is devoted to giving back to community and has initiated various community activities with the focus area of promoting public
health, gathering the Group’s resources and manpower for years.

REEZFR-ERNOERR - ARARFERBIHNE  BRAKENERMANRRZELRIES -

JOINT HEALTH CHECK AND PROMOTION CAMPAIGN AT CENTRAL MARKET
m /s gh E=
hRETHERBRERED
As a senior care service provider, Pine Care recognizes the significance of regular health screenings in the early detection and prevention of
various health problems. In line with our commitment to promoting healthy living in the community, we actively participated in the joint health

check and promotion campaign held at Central Market from 15 to 17 November 2022. The campaign, organized by the Hong Kong
Healthcare Foundation in collaboration with a medical group, aimed to promote health and well-being among the local community.

During the campaign, our team of healthcare professionals provided health screenings on a wide range of health issues, including dementia,
muscle loss, stroke risk, blood glucose and proteinuria for diabetics, and bone density. We were pleased to see a large number of people
participating in the screenings, which helped them become more aware of their health status.

EREERGHER - k&L T HIEHRFREHFHIRLAN SRR FERNENEEN - RETHRMAELEEERREE A -
HFER2ER2022F 11 A1I5BE17 AERREMEBTHNHABRLERLY - ZiPHEEREESE - SFRBAERN -
B ERE S i & AR M AR -

REBEHR - BRMIOBREXESZ RS ERERE (RERAERE - WARK - hEERR - EREHIEREDRAREERE) RHEE
BRE - HMRESEFIAETRLERRGE - HEMBMEMTRASWEERR -

ZOZZE%é
RRIRAS
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SEMINAR AND SHARING WITH PICTORIAL GARDEN EEEEMTERIES

Pine Care was invited to an onsite seminar and sharing session with the property management staff and residents of Pictorial Garden on 16
November 2022. The event was organized by CUHK Jockey Club Institute of Ageing (“loA”), and aimed to promote effective communication
with senior residents and residents with dementia. Pine Care shared its methodology and best practices in communicating with senior
residents and those with dementia, providing practical tips and advice to improve their quality of life and overall well-being.

We were honored to be invited to share our expertise with the property management staff and residents of Pictorial Garden. By exchanging
ideas and promoting better communication and care for the elderly, we hope to empower communities to better understand and care for
their elderly residents. The seminar and sharing session was a valuable platform for us to collaborate with (IoA) and other organizations to
promote better health and well-being for all.

IMEREZN2022F 11 A 16 AERDFERNDEERE I REFPETREMNERNSZE - WEDHBE BT XAREESGEFEMH
T (ToAD il - ERE(RERRERRBAETERERNBYWER - MREEZNDZTHERERBHAEREELZBBNTERREERR
REEAN/ DT NER  UREBMNEEERRBEREIL -

HAREFEBALDBEENNEEERE T REFPHDERMNBEXMND - BBIRBEMEERRENRIFBBREE - BMIF LR
HEEFHTRIBERERR - HHEERDZROSHMEIANEBABGAENEE TS  MMEERENRE LR -
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF

THE STOCK EXCHANGE
B TR BT - AL B ECE IE SN AR5

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Section/Declaration

BERBERE =5, BH

Governance Structure QOur Approach to Sustainability — Sustainability Governance
BRI BMOAHEEESH — IRERRESR

Reporting Principles Reporting Principle

HERE HERE

Reporting Boundary About this Report — Reporting Scope and Period

HEHE RS — mEEHE AR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EE - AR RERERUER

Section/Declaration Page Number
=5 BN =%

A. Environmental 1%

Aspect A1: Emissions BEA1 : HEH

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

— MR

BHERBERIOAERBHR - MKRTHNEES  BEEREEEEVHNELESH

(@) BE : &

(o) BFHETABEAZENBEEERBRDINER

KPI The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
RARAEERL HERUE £R S AR B HE PR
FEAZ A1

KPI Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
FASRIE X gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
HIZE A2 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B#E(EE1) RRAEE (HE2))RZEREEEME (AT H)
R(ER) mE (WA SES B - §ERBEAE)

Pine Care Green

P. 90-95

P. 90-93

P. 90-93

N S)
KPI Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
FASRIE RN appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
FE1ZE A1.3 facility). P. 90-93
FIEEBAEREEYEE (AEE) R (WER)ZE (WAE
ESBM - §ERESE)
KPI Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
FARER appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
B A1.4 facility). P. 90-93
FEEEZSFEEYRE (LEE) R (ER) ZE (AT
ES8A - §EREHE)
KPI Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to
FABEER achieve them. P. 90-95
EEA15 A FTET LBV BE N E B 1R R AESE L B IR BRI F 57
KPI Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
FASREE RN handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
512 A1.6 steps taken to achieve them. P. 90-95
IR EEERESEREMN L « RIEMFTE] S HREE B
18 R AE S L B S FTEREN R 2P 5 ©
B E AR A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs

Section/Declaration

Page Number

FEEHE - B - —WRIEERBRESIEER =5 BH Bif
Aspect A2: Use of Resources BHA2 : EREMA
General Disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials. P. 90-96
—RRHER
BRERER(BIEER  KEREMEMRD) B
KPI Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
RASRIE RN electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g.
FE1E A2.1 per unit of production volume, per facility). P. 94
BREAESERE R SHEEER(NE - [m) BFEZ (A
FETERFE) REE(MAGES SN - BERETE) ©
KPI Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Pine Care Green
FAREX production volume, per facility). R P. 96
E1F A2.2 BIEKERZE (WMABESEN BERMETE) -
KPI Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
FARER taken to achieve them. —
1E1F A2.3 FEILAT ] S B BE IR 3 A ik B AR R R IE R3S L B AZ AT ERER 8 ’
KPI Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
AR that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
1E1Z A2.4 taken to achieve them. P. 96

Hast SREGE R KIR LRI B EAIRRE - AR AT AT S e K e
B R R AEREL B R RER P8 -

KPI Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
RS AN and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
1512 A2.5 SR RATABEMERNAE (UBEAE) R (WER) §E£E

BEhfhE -

Not applicable to the Group’s business

TEBRAREE XD

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources [EHAS : BiER XRER

General Disclosure
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

—RRIEE
IEEITAHRBERARERENERZ EHBE ©

KPI Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
RABEAER environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
FE1Z A3.1 manage them.

HIET RS IRIBERRABERNEAFZERDKRERAE
FENTE -

Pine Care Green

MERARE

P. 90-96

P. 90-96
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section/Declaration Page Number
TEHE  BE - —RRERBRERER =5, B8 B

Aspect A4: Climate Change BHA4 : BiR&t

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. P. 96-97

—RE

BRRENEZERAREHETAEEXENERRGKABEENIEE -

Pine Care Green

IN-EEo )
KPI Description of the significant climate-related issues which
RASRIEE RN have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
FE1Z A4 .1 the actions taken to manage them. P. 96-97
B E R HETAEEZENSEARIGHBAEE
R FEE1TE) ©
B. Social #&
Employment and Labour Standards Ef§ % % T &5
Aspect B1: Employment EEB1 : {Ef&
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other benefits and Pine Gare Caring P. 98-102
welfare. Ak
— MR
UMk EE  BERES  ITERH RE - TEEe 2ok RERIAR
REMAFERB
(@ B3R &
(o) BFHBETABEAZENBMERLIROINER -
KPI Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
FASRIE RN geographical region. P. 99-100
FEIZ Bl IR EERDE - FRARN RS DNESES - .
Employee Overview
::. T Es
KPI Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and RIBR
AR E N geographical region. P. 99-100
EiZ B1.2 RIMER - FEAR KRS S HEBIRALLE o
iR B AR A R A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EE - AR RERERUER

Section/Declaration
=5 BH

Page Number
HiS

Aspect B2: Health and Safety EHB2 : @FHZ %

General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from P. 103-106
occupational hazards.
— R
BARBELZETHERERREREBEBEMFEER
(@ B &
(o) BFHBETABEAZENEBERLIROIOER - Caring for Employees’
Wellbeing
KPI Number and rate of work-related fatalities. HREES T2
RABRAE R ETEREMETH ABRLLE o P. 103-106
FEIZ B2.1
KPI Lost days due to work injury.
RABRAE R ETIBIERTHERE - P. 103-106
T B2.2
KPI Description of occupational health and safety measures
AR ER adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. b 103106
151% B2.3 LTI AN B R R B 21 - A RMEERIT RER T )
5 o
Aspect B3: Development and Training B B3 : %R &%
General Disclosure
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities. P. 107-108
— MR
HRREE BT TIERENAERRERER - HiFiES -
KPI The percentage of employees trained by gender and Promoting Career
FASRIEE RN employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Development
1612 B3.1 management). HEBBRER P.107-108
RMRRESHNESHZIEEB L (NERERE
HRERRE)
KPI The average training hours completed per employee by
RARAEN gender and employee category. P. 107-108
#E1Z B3.2 RUERIREEHMNE S - BREETHZIINTHRE
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section/Declaration Page Number
TEHE - EE - AR RERERUER =5 BN B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards EHEB4 : & T %8|
General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour. P.109
— MR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?#;lﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%lﬂ’\] : Complying with Labour
@gfﬂiﬁAﬁixw@ e RABIER Stenderds
KPI Description of measures to review employment practices to
AsEER avoid child and forced labour. P. 109
FE1Z B4.1 iR B E S EEA R R E T Kot ST -
KPI Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
B AR discovered. P 109
1EIZ B4.2 HLTE B R E AR B H R A RIS U BT ERER A 8 ©
Operating Practices & ZE &
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management BHEB5 : HEEERE
General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. b 78
— R '
EIRHIEGENIRIE KAt G ERBUE o
KPI Number of suppliers by geographical region.
RABRAE R i [m B D EEEE A - P.78
1% B5.1
KPI Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
FASREE N number of suppliers where the practices are being
1E1Z B5.2 implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored. P.78
A AEREREENES - AENTEREMmEEES  Partnership
B URBAEFIRATRERFE R
KPI Description of practices used to identify environmental and
FASRIE K social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
512 B5.3 implemented and monitored. P.78
H B B B R B R IR AT IR Mt 2 RV EH] - A
FABRRIT RER A ©
KPI Description of practices used to promote environmentally
RASEAE preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
E1E B5.4 and how they are implemented and monitored. P.78
M EBRGE R ER R R 2 AIRRER RRBGOED - AR
MEREMITRERGE °
iR B AR A R A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EE - AR RERERUER

Section/Declaration Page Number
=5 BN =%

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility EEB6 : Em=E{E

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

— AR

BRMMEHERNBREORERZS - Ed BREALBEEURER AR
(@) BUK : &

(o) BFEBEITAEEATENEBEERBRFIOER

Pine Silverage

P.79-87
N

KPI Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
RASREE RN recalls for safety and health reasons. Not applicable to the Group’s business
FE1% B6.1 EERCEXERAHPRL2EEFEAMARNKNES  NERAREAEEXES
Hg, ©
KPI Number of products and service-related complaints received i )
o . Pine Silverage
FAREE and how they are dealt with. s P. 85-86
. W s LER (R
$51Z B6.2 BRI @ B AR IR AR 8 B A R RS0 - T
KPI Description of practices relating to observing and protecting ) )
N ) ) Not applicable to the Group’s business
RARREN intellectual property rights. B 2 5
e . - N E AR
151Z B6.3 Wt SR A R R SO R RA VB 11 o :
KPI Description of quality assurance process and recall
RARREN procedures. p.79-87
$51Z B6.4 HuUE S AR 1B % O AR o o
Pine Silverage
ey \n/%
KPI Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, BT
FASRIE RN and how they are implemented and monitored. P. 86
$51% B6.5 FH B R B RHRIE ALK - A RARERIT RER % ©
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption BHEB7 : RE’5

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. P.77
— MR
BRI LR - 1R - BEERARER
(@) B &
(o) BTHBEITATERTZENEBEEZRAOINER -
KPI Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Ethics and Integrity
FASRIE K brought against the issuer or its employees during the s
112 B7.1 Reporting Year and the outcomes of the cases. P.77

RIBEFEAHBITASHESREIEFENETHAR

AV B KRR -
KPI Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
FAREX procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. -
EIZ B7.2 R E 5 ie R R RAZ Ty - ARMBAITRER X o ’
KPI Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
AR EN and staff. P.77
EIZ B7.3 R E SR B TRHEMRESE
Community &
Aspect B8: Community Investment [EEBS : #Ei&&
General Disclosure
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests. P 110-111
—MEE
AR R2ERBRBEENCARTZNEREZREDEE R EFZH
Re Spreading Warmth to

Community

KPI Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental [t [ e i B B
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$51% B8.1 ErEAERE(HE  REFH  BIHFK - @K it )

BE)-
KPI Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
RABRAE R EEIBEMBAER (NS EEFRE) o P. 110-111
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

The directors of Pine Care Group Limited present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, whilst its major
operating subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of senior care services.

The business review required under Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
under review using financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” (pages 10 to 13) and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” (pages 14 to 24) of this annual report, and a
description of the environmental policies and performance is set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 55 to 119 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

An analysis of the revenue and operating segment information during the
financial year is set out in note 6 and note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements respectively.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

A list of principal subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation and
particulars of their issued ordinary share capital and principal activities, is set
out in note 42 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for FY2023, and the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023 are set out in
the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 147 to 150 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company attaches great importance to returns to investors and maintain
the continuity and stability of its profit distribution policy. According to the
dividend policy adopted by the Company, the Board would consider the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company, as well as other factors
the Board may consider relevant, before declaring or recommending
dividends.
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DIVIDEND

As the business of the Group is expected to undergo rapid expansion and
development, adequate working capital is required to be reserved for its
projects development. As a result, the Directors do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for FY2023 (FY2022 final dividend: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2023 annual general
meeting of the Company (“2023 AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 17 August 2023 to Tuesday, 22
August 2023, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s),
should be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 16 August 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated financial position
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2023 is set out on
page 240 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

We treasure our relationship with the key stakeholders which comprise
customers, employees, bankers and suppliers, and we are able to maintain
our sound relationship and obtain continuous support from the key
stakeholders so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For FY2023, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 43.4%, while the sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer during the year under review were approximately
42.2%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
during the year under review were approximately 42.2%, while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier during the year under review were
approximately 12.9%.

Save for Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, the then substantial shareholder of the Company,
who was beneficially interested in 6.8% of the issued shares in the Group’s
third largest supplier, none of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in the
Group’s major suppliers or customers for FY2023.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year under review are
set out in note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Movements in the
reserves of the Group are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
March 2023 amounted to approximately HK$149.7 million (2022: HK$149.7
million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands where the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year under review amounted to
HK$3,000.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2023 are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year under review are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
under review or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted its Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2017 (which became unconditional on 15 February 2017). The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, but are not limited
to, (i) any employee or director of any member of the Group or of any company
in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, an equity interest (the
“Invested Entity”) (including any full-time or part-time employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive director); (i)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iii) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (iv) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity. The Company is aware that under
the new rule 17.03A of the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January
2023, participants of share schemes shall only comprise of employee
participants, related entity participants and service providers (as defined in the
Listing Rules). The Company will only grant the option(s) to eligible participants
in compliance with the new rule 17.03A and pursuant to the transitional
arrangements for share schemes existing as at 1 January 2023 as specified
by the Stock Exchange.
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The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant option(s) to eligible
participant(s) to subscribe for shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at an
exercise price and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the
date of offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee to the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the directors and
stated in the offer to a grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for
any minimum period nor achieve any performance targets before the exercise
of an option granted to him/her.

The vesting period of the option(s) granted under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the directors in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and to be stated in the offer to the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by the directors of the
Company to the grantee thereof, and in the absence of such determination,
from the date of acceptance of the offer of such option to the earlier of (i) the
date on which such option lapses under the relevant provisions of the Share
Option Scheme; and (i) the date falling 10 years from the offer date of such
option.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in accordance with the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant is subject to the shareholders’
approval in general meeting with the participant and the close associates of
such participant (or his/her/its associates if the participant is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.

Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares of the
Company in aggregate and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of offer) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
general meeting.
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The exercise price of share options is determined by the Board, but shall be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares of the Company on the date of offer of the option; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years commencing on
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted (i.e. until 22 January
2027).

The total number of shares which may be issued by the Company upon
exercise of all options granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 86,400,000 shares (the “General
Scheme Limit”), representing 10% of the shares in issue of the Company on
the date of listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on 15
February 2017. Subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and before
the termination of the Share Option Scheme, the General Scheme Limit can
be renewed with prior shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme (and any other share option scheme(s), if any, of the Group) must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company from time to time.

As at 31 March and 1 April 2022, the total number of shares that may be
issued by the Company upon exercise of all outstanding options already
granted under the Share Option Scheme was 19,100,000, representing 2.12%
of the total number of shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this
report. All these options lapsed on 28 October 2022 upon the close of the
Offer (as defined below in this report).

Accordingly, as at 31 March 2023 and the date of this report, the maximum
number of options that were available to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme was 86,400,000, representing approximately 9.57% of the total
number of shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this report.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Details of movements of the Company’s
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended
31 March 2023 are set out below.
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Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Date of grant asat Grant Exercised Cancelled during asat  Exercise period
Name or category (dd.mm.yyyy)  Exercise 1 April during during during the year 31 March  (dd.mm.yyyy —
of participants (Note 2) price 2022 the year the year the year (Note 5) 2023  dd.mm.yyyy) (Note 1)
REAH 20225 #2023 1T
(B.B.F) 4718 FREM 38318 (R.A.E-A.A.F)

SEEREAE (Ktzke) EE ERATHE FRRE FRITE FREH (Kt3E5) HATE (1)

Executive directors

HiTES

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Note 3) 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 900,000 - - 900,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

HiEaxs (Ws) 11087

Mr. Chan Yip Keung 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

REBEE 11087

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing (Note 3) 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

BRREE (H3) 11087

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching (Note 3) 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

Bemret (Fs) 110387

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 200,000 - - 200,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

ERtE 110 BT

Mr. Wong Kit Loong 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 200,000 - - 200,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

EHRERE 110 AT

Mr. Wong Kam Pui 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 200,000 - - 200,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

HEMEE 110 BT

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 200,000 - - 200,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

WEELE 110 AL

Sub-total for directors 7,700,000 - - 7,700,000 -

FE)it

Employees of the Group

rE@EES

In aggregate 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

A 11087

Consultants to the Company

ANRER

In aggregate 02.09.2021 HK$1.10 5,900,000 - - 5,900,000 - 01.03.2023-01.09.2031

aft 110387

TOTAL 19,100,000 - - 19,100,000 -

it

Notes: HsE -

1. The vesting period of the share options starts from the date of grant and ends on 1. BRENSEBHRE A REEZETE ARG
the date immediately before the commencement of the exercise period. #HILE -

2. The closing price of the Company’s shares on 1 September 2021 (being the 2 AR FIRAF R R #2021 9 A2 B % 4 B B 5
business day immediately before the date of grant of the share options on 2 AR 2B (2021 F9 A1 H)WIKM{ER1.0558 7T °
September 2021) was HK$1.05.

3. Mr. Tang Yiu Sing ceased to be the controlling shareholder of the Company on 30 3. SR A ST X 20224 9 A 30 B A AR AR
September 2022; and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Yeung Ka Wing and Mr. Cheng Wai RRHBEARLE  BRECERBEBTEDEH
Ching resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 28 October 2022. EARATESE - 52022410 28 AL -

4, The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be subject to 4. FRACER BB K ST R AR T A B TALR -
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in the AR BN E A B ifn A] T AR o
Company’s share capital.

5. Such share options lapsed automatically upon the close of the Offer (as defined 5. HEBREBREBOERRARE OB ILES

below in this report).
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year under review and up to the date
of this report were:

Non-executive directors

Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald (appointed on 7 October 2022)
Mr. Wong Hung Han (appointed on 7 October 2022)

Mr. Tsang Tin For (appointed on 7 October 2022)

Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein (appointed on 7 October 2022)
Ms. Hui Wai Man (appointed on 7 October 2022)

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong (resigned on 28 October 2022)

Executive directors

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (resigned on 28 October 2022)
Mr. Chan Yip Keung

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing (resigned on 28 October 2022)
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching (resigned on 28 October 2022)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony

Mr. Lam Cheung Wai

Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kit Loong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Lam Cheung Wai and Mr. Wong
Kam Pui shall retire by rotation at the 2023 AGM; whereas pursuant to Article
83 of the Articles, Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald, Mr. Wong Hung Han, Mr. Tsang
Tin For, Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein and Ms. Hui Wai Man shall hold office only
until the 2023 AGM. All of the above retiring directors are eligible for re-election
at the 2023 AGM.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

Brief biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 25 to 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has
a service contract with the Company that is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee of the Company considers and recommends to
the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
directors. The remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details of directors’
remuneration are set out in note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” in this report and note 37 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme operated by the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, neither at the end of nor
at any time during the year under review there subsisted any arrangement to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and the objects of or
one of the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (including those for provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders) has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year under review.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions (collectively the “CCTs”), details of which are set out
below in compliance with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

(A) Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement”) was
entered into between Patina Wellness Limited (“Patina Wellness”, which
the Group holds 51% of its equity interest) as lessee and Everhost
Limited (“Everhost”) as lessor.

Date: 13 April 2018

The term of the tenancy: 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2028 (Deed of
termination signed on 29 July 2022, details of which are set out below)
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Premises being leased: The building named “Patina” and situated at
18 Junction Road, Kowloon City, Hong Kong, excluding 30th Floor and
the flat roof together with 2 carparks, with a total floor area of
approximately 84,000 square feet (the “Patina Premises”) for setting up
and operating residential care home for the elderly, clinic, service
apartments, clubhouse and restaurant.

The Patina Premises will enable the Group to expand its business in
Hong Kong for the operation of an upscale community for the senior
with the concept of an “Integrated Senior Wellness Hub” to expand its
business coverage to active seniors who require a lower level of care
compared to traditional RCHE residents, while at the same time, widen
the breadth of its service offerings for this emerging market segment.

Basis of pricing: The rentals payable under the Patina Wellness
Tenancy Agreement are determined with reference to and taking into
account (i) prevailing market rents for comparable premises in the area
where the Patina Premises are situated; (ii) the location of the Patina
Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in the future.

Rental: Details of monthly rental for the Patina Premises (exclusive of
rates and management fees and all other outgoings) are set out as
follows:

(i) From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2022, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,000,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher;

(ii) From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,320,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher; and

(iii) From 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2028, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,691,200 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher.

Rent-free period: Everhost shall grant to Patina Wellness a rent-free
period of not more than 3 calendar months commencing from 1 April
2018 for carrying out renovation and decoration works within the Patina
Premises, provided that such rent-free period in respect of the 79
service apartments on 7/F to 29/F of the Patina Premises shall cease
on the date on which Patina Wellness commences business at that
portion of the Patina Premises.
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Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement, which are determined
based on the rental to be received by Everhost therefrom, are as
follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March

FELR: HEFHERARTHETHR
HFE LRIRBKSEAEE BRI A S
EEE - I

BE3AHLEE

HK$

BT
2019 20194 23,208,600
2020 20204 24,000,000
2021 20214 24,000,000
2022 20224 24,000,000
2023 20234 27,840,000
2024 20244 27,840,000
2025 2025%F 27,840,000
2026 20264 32,294,400
2027 20274 32,294,400
2028 20284 32,294,400

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to approximately HK$9,280,000.

At the time when the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement was entered
into, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was a substantial shareholder of Patina
Wellness. The late Mr. Tang Shing Bor, the father of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing,
was beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Everhost.
Accordingly, Everhost was an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and
therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. The
entering into of the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2018.

During the year under review, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was a substantial
shareholder of the Company until 30 September 2022 and an executive
director of the Company until 28 October 2022. Based on the relations
mentioned in the above paragraph, Everhost remained an associate of
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, and was a connected person of the Company at
issuer level until 28 October 2022.

As announced by the Company on 29 July 2022, Everhost and Patina
Wellness had executed a deed of termination to terminate the Patina
Wellness Tenancy agreement. Vacant possession of all parts of the
Patina Premises had been delivered by the tenant to the landlord on an
“as it” state and condition on 16 December 2022 in accordance with
the terms of the deed of termination and the Patina Wellness Tenancy
Agreement had been terminated.
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(B)

Master Management Service Agreement

A Master Management Service Agreement was entered into between
the Company and the Grantors (as referred to in the paragraph below)
in respect of the Company’s provision of management services to
manage and operate for the Grantors any one or more of the RCHEs,
senior care facilities, serviced apartments, hotels, guest houses,
restaurants, clubhouses and any other establishments (including
establishments under development) owned and/or operated by any of
the Grantors, either jointly or individually, from time to time (the
“Establishments”).

Grantors are referred to as Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, the late Mr. Tang Shing-
bor, Dr. Tang Yiu Pong and any other member of the Tang family and/
or any funds, fund managers, companies, joint ventures or other entities
controlled, or owned as to 30% or more, by the Tang Family and/or any
funds, fund managers, companies, joint ventures or other entities which
the Tang Family has a material interest and/or any associates of the
Tang Family, as defined under the Listing Rules. The Grantors, Mr. Tang
Yiu Sing and the late Mr. Tang Shing-bor were substantial shareholders
of the Company until 30 September 2022. The late Mr. Tang Shing-bor
is also the father of Dr. Tang Yiu Pong and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, both of
whom were the directors of the Company until 28 October 2022.
Consequently, the Grantors were regarded as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules until 28 October
2022 and therefore, the Master Management Service Agreement and
any transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.

Date: 24 November 2020
Term: 3 financial years from 5 March 2021

Subject matter: The Company may from time to time, during the term
of the Master Management Service Agreement, separately enter into
individual management service agreements with the Grantors on agreed
terms to manage and operate the relevant operations of the
Establishments for the Grantors, subject to certain conditions.
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The proposed scope of services to be provided by the Company under
the management service agreement includes, but not limited to,
preparing annual budgets, sourcing of operational supplies,
management of the respective operation staff, preparation and
implementation of sales and marketing plans and promotions,
overseeing the overall operations of the Establishments, maintaining the
quality and standard of the respective operations and generally
improving sales revenue and gross operating profits as a whole or such
other related matters regarding improving sales revenue and gross
operating profits that the parties therein shall agree from time to time.

Pricing: The management fees for the transactions contemplated
under the respective management service agreements shall comprise
of: (a) the basic management fees; (b) the marketing fees; and/or (c) the
incentive management fees (only applicable if there is gross operating
profits for the relevant Establishments).

The Company adopts the principle of cost plus a reasonable margin,
which is expected to be not less than 8%, for the management services
to be provided to both the Grantors and independent third party
customers and hence, in any event the terms and prices offered by the
Company to the Grantors will be no more favourable than those offered
to independent third parties for the same or similar type of services.
Also, the Company will take reference and benchmark of the pricing
and terms of management services provided to properties of sizes and
locations similar to that of the Establishments in order to assess the
fairness and reasonableness of the pricing of the basic management
fees charged by the Company. The Company considers that the “cost
plus” basis allows the Company to recover its cost with a reasonable
margin of not less than 8% which is a better benchmark than a fixed
percentage of revenue. The marketing fees shall be calculated based
on an one-off HK$4,000 for each residential care place established by
the Company. The standard rate of the incentive management fees
(subject to adjustments, to be agreed between the Company and the
Grantors, based on the different locations of the Establishments) shall
be calculated based on 2% to 8% of the gross operating profits of the
respective Establishments managed by the Company.

The Grantors may impose a separate license fee if the Establishments
are or will be operated under a brand or group owned by the Grantors
and/or if the Company makes use of any registered trademark or
goodwill of the Establishment in its operation of the Establishment. The
license fee may be based on nil to 2% of the gross operating profits.
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Annual Caps: The total management fees under all the management
service agreements for each financial year shall not exceed the following
annual caps:

(i) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2021: HK$4,800,000;

(ii) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2022: HK$36,100,000;
and

(i) for the financial year ending on 31 March 2023: HK$87,300,000.

The total amount of management fees for the year ended 31 March
2023 amounted to nil.

Through leveraging the Group’s brand and expertise to provide the
aforesaid management services to the Grantors will enable the Group
to replicate the business for various market segments at a faster pace.
The Group can also formulate similar asset light model to provide
management services to different property owners in Hong Kong and
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

The transactions contemplated under the Master Management Service
Agreement are of a recurrent nature and will occur on a regular and
continuing basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company. In order to regulate, inter alia, the relevant transactions
relating to various individual agreements between the Company and the
Grantors, and for the purpose of administrative convenience, the Master
Management Service Agreement offers flexibility for the entering into of
further individual agreement(s), if any, and/or renewal of various existing
individual agreements, which is considered beneficial to both the
Company and the Grantors.

Details of the Master Management Service Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 24 November 2020 and 26
January 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 17 February
2021.

After the Grantors, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and Dr. Tang Yiu Pong ceasing to
be substantial shareholders of the Company, and the resignation of Mr.
Tang Yiu Sing and Dr. Tang Yiu Pong as directors of the Company on
28 October 2022, the Master Management Service Agreement no
longer constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company reviewed and
confirmed that the CCTs had been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) according to the agreements governing such transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the CCTs disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transaction or non-exempted continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules during FY2023.

To the extent of the above transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company
had complied with the applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules during FY2023.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions for
FY2023 as disclosed in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements constituted discloseable non-exempted connected
transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction under
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the directors and/or
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company (other than pursuant to equity derivatives):

Name of director Capacity/nature of interest

EEREFETHRAERRSG - HER

DREF2EERKXR

20233 A31 B ARREER HKFEBITHA
BRANEISEEEE (ERREBEMNEST1EE
HREEE(TF5RBEEG))EXVE) FiES
HRARBESLBAEGIEB2RAEFEZE
e SR EIR T R BRI S AN A B KB AT 2 AR
TR REHFER AR T

RALQAFGREEO B THEERHN
HRE (RBRAITETARRI) -

Approximate
percentage*
of shareholding

Number of shares in the Company

AR B REN
EEHE 51 ERtE BRBEE BABE D
Mr. Chan Yip Keung Beneficial owner 888,000 0.09%

BREE®R ST A EmEAA

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company'’s issued shares as at 31 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following parties (other than the directors or chief
executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and

as the Company is aware:

Number of shares (L)

FERRREROREERS 2Em R

NN
IRF

M202833A31A UTEN(ARREERTE
TTRABRRIN RAR R B AR B ) A A
BRBEES M ERIFEBCIRZREFE 2
sECMAXRE AR RN SRR

Approximate

RGHE (L) percentage*

Beneficial Corporate Executor or Total of shareholding

Name of shareholder owner interest administrator interest (L) in the Company

BEBHTA IEA D B IRAERY

BREE LB BERERA AR ER HNEEA ERBEL) BABEDE

Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited 870,836,050 - - 870,836,050 96.45%
(Note 2) (Hf5E 2)

Chime Corporation Limited - 870,836,050 - 870,836,050 96.45%

2AR AT (Note 2) (FffzE 2)

Jong Yat Kit - - 870,836,050 870,836,050 96.45%

HAAR (Note 3) (Ffizt 3)

Wong Tak Wai - - 870,836,050 870,836,050 96.45%

HIEE (Note 3) (Ffizt 3)

Notes: ffEE -

1. The letter “L” represents long position in the shares of the Company. 1. F L REREARQBRDH LA -

2. Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCG Healthcare 2. Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited / £ %% fit B2 1% i B
Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Parasia Limited. Parasia RARNEZEMBAR  MERBERIZBRERAA
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chime Corporation Limited. Accordingly, A 3 Parasia Limited 2 & # & ° Parasia Limited /32
Chime Corporation Limited is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by PERARINZENB AR - At - RIBEFHF K
Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. BB EXVE - 2804 R A A 448 & K% Diamond

Ridge Holdings Limited %A &) & SRR (9 A fe s o

3. Chime Corporation Limited is owned as to 99.77% by the estate of Ms. Nina 3. 2PARARHENO L THEER TEBEENE
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Kung and 0.23% by the unadministered estate of Mr. Wang Teh Huei (together
with the estate of Ms. Nina Kung, the “Estates”). Mr. Jong Yat Kit and Mr. Wong
Tak Wai were appointed by the High Court of Hong Kong as the joint and several
administrators of each of the Estates and they are not personally interested in the
Estates. Mr. Jong Yat Kit and Mr. Wong Tak Wai are therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company'’s issued shares as at 31 March 2023.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person, other than the
directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On 29 August 2022, Century Fortress Limited, Great Canton Investments
Limited, Starcorp Limited and Smartbase Investments Limited as vendors (the
“Vendors”) and Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited as purchaser (the
“Purchaser”) entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”),
pursuant to which the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase, in aggregate, 506,974,000
sale shares (the “Sale Shares”), representing approximately 56.15% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the joint announcement
dated 29 August 2022 and the date of this report, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$451,206,860 (equivalent to HK$0.89 per Sale Share).
Completion of the SPA (the “Completion”) took place on 30 September 2022.

The Purchaser has become the controlling shareholder of the Company upon
Completion. Subsequent to the Completion, the Purchaser has an obligation
under the Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the "Takeovers Code”) and had
made a mandatory unconditional general offer to shareholders of the
Company to acquire all the issued shares of the Company (other than those
already owned or agreed to be acquired by the Purchaser and parties acting
in concert with the Purchaser) at a price of HK$0.89 per share, and to make a
comparable offer to the option holders to cancel all the outstanding share
options (other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by the
Purchaser and parties acting in concert with the Purchaser) (the “Offer”). The
Offer was closed on 28 October 2022. Upon the close of the Offer, the
Purchaser and parties acting in concert with them were interested in an
aggregate of 870,836,050 shares of the Company, representing approximately
96.45% of the then entire issued share capital of the Company.

Upon completion of the Offer, the requirement under the Listing Rules that a
prescribed minimum percentage of 25% of the Company’s issued shares are
to be held in public hands could not complied with by the Company (the
“minimum public float requirement”). The Company has applied to the Stock
Exchange, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a temporary waiver from
strict compliance with the minimum public float requirement for a period to 30
July 2023. Appropriate steps are being taken by the Company and the
Purchaser to restore the minimum required public float of not less than 25%
as soon as possible. However, given the recent market uncertainties and
volatility in capital markets, no definitive agreements have been entered into
with any of the potential placees yet as at the date of this report. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company regarding restoration of the
public float in the shares and resumption of trading in the shares as and when
appropriate in accordance with the Listing Rules.

B EXXHEEIN  R2023F3A31H ES(H
BaBR EX[EEREZTHRABRRY - HHE
B REH 2 EmEKE] —8) I BEFEETAL
RARARZ RO SABERG A BREES RS
ERGIS 336 18R E iR 2 R SA R ©

ERBRREBREAZIRFRE

M 202248 29 H -+ Century Fortress Limited -
Great Canton Investments Limited ~ Starcorp Limited
F Smartbase Investments Limited ( 1F & & 5 © [ &
7 1) #2 Diamond Ridge Holdings Limited ({fEAZ 75 -
[BEFDAIvESEH=(ESH=R) Bt 548
BHEREHE MEFERHREBEE S H
506,974,000 IR IHE Mk th ([HHEMRM 1) - MERER
AIB#A2022F 8 A20 AMEE A% AR ARE
HEE B 1TIR AR 4956.15% + 48 K {8 /451,206,860
BT (HERBREER%H0.89ET) - BEEHERN
2022 F9 A 30 BYEETER ([FEAK]) »

BHERTEMERARDTAERARE R4 -
BIERERETRAI(TRETAD  BFBETA
AAFRRERUBEARDRMBERTRD (BHRE
F—BITBATERBRRAES T RBEERIN) &S
AR 17 0.89 B TLHIEHE » IRIEAHIMEIEHE2EE
4 WHEBRERBAELAELERNELY Ut
HATAMAITERRE(BEARES —BITHALE
BAKREE FTREERN) (B - ZHER
2022610 A28 BE L - EME LR EFRE—
BT A TR A $£870,836,050 B AN A & B 17

Em HERARAEREZHDH#ITRAY
96.45% °

BUSERRE - ARBIAREEEST ETARRATIRTE 2 A
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, none of
directors of the Company was interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 28 October 2019, Pine Care Elderly Home Development Limited (“Pine
Care EHD”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and certain
subsidiaries of the Company as borrowers entered into a facilities agreement
(the “Facilities Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender, pursuant
to which certain loan facilities, comprising a term loan in an aggregate amount
of HK$350,000,000 have been granted to Pine Care EHD (in which
approximately 97.2% and 2.8% of the loan amount will be matured on 28
January 2025 and 28 February 2025, respectively).

The Facilities Agreement together with a revising banking facility letter issued
by the lender in June 2020 has, among other things, imposed a specific
performance covenant on Mr. Tang Yiu Sing to maintain as the largest single
shareholder of the Group as well as maintain control over the management
and business of the Group. Failure to comply with the aforesaid covenant by
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing will constitute an event of default, and the lender shall have
the right to declare the term loan has become immediately due and payable,
and any undrawn balance of the term loan shall automatically be cancelled
and no longer be available to Pine Care EHD to be cancelled and/or all or part
of outstanding amounts under this term loan, together with accrued interest
and all other sums payable to be immediately due and payable.

In light of the change of controlling shareholder as set out in the paragraph
headed “Change of controlling shareholder and sufficiency of public float”
above in this report, in December 2022, the Lender issued a revised banking
facility letter with the performance covenant amended to the effect that the
existing controlling shareholder of the Company namely, Chinachem Group,
shall maintain as the largest single shareholder of the Group as well as shall
maintain control over the management and business of the Group.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company and its associated
companies is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under
review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (consisting of the four independent non-executive
Directors of the Company) has reviewed with management of the Company
the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2023.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor to fill the
casual vacancy following the removal of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company on 13 April 2021 following the passing of a special resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on the same date. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2023 were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the
2023 AGM to seek shareholders’ approval on the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor until the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pine Care Group Limited

Choi Wun Hing Donald

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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pwc

To the Shareholders of Pine Care Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pine Care Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 147
to 239, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

ERHER
AMEREEEGHDLGEMGO(EEEHER)
ITE  AMERSEA TRENEELESR
& [ B A M RRA RN 5+
{E— St -

HPEE  RPIMESHNERERERTE RNEE
REFETERIREER -

ByH
REEEGHEAGRMGOCERG A ERTAD
(AT RMBIR &E%E YER
TFRIR MR ERERET

BRETSEIR
RRERTSASRBRMNERHE  RHEAH
FAMBRRNEFTZAEENSEH - ELEHRI
ERMETERESV T RE LB ABRFETRE
B - KT EHELEREHBUNER -

BAER R HER M BERES FEBAOT

o EERERTA

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEERRETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BIE Bl E A

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements
2RV B MR 4 %20

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of the Group’s goodwill
amounted to HK$33.8 million in the consolidated statement of
financial position, which arose from the acquisition of companies
principally engaged in the provision of elderly home care services.

20233 A31H  BEEERGAVBRARTOEEREE
/%33,800,000/87C - DELBWETIERFRHALEREEREN

NS

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

HMARERREMENET T 25

o Assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and the
judgement involved in management’s impairment
assessment of goodwiill;

FRERMGIRTIENEE LERBHHEREN Y
KEy 6 - SR ERE R E B B

o Understanding and evaluate management’s internal
controls and processes in determining the assumptions
adopted in the goodwill impairment assessment;

TR e BTk B TR fE A T P EURUE AT PR R AR AR O N ER R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continueq)

Key Audit Matter
BHRETEE

BAREETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAWETNNREBERTSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

BB BT ()

Management is required to perform a goodwill impairment
assessment at least on an annual basis. For the purpose of
performing impairment assessment, goodwill is allocated to the
cash generating units (“CGUs”). The recoverable amount of the
CGUs is based on fair value less costs of disposal calculations
relating to the CGU with reference to an external valuation
performed by a third party property valuer (“Valuer”) on the
underlying properties of the CGU. Management concluded that no
impairment provision was required on the Group’s goodwill at 31
March 2023.

ERRBAEZLEFETHERENE - UETRENETE - &
BNOBEERSEFEN([REEELEM]) - REEABMHA
WESEDERReELEMEENARBEREERAHE &£
DEZ=FWEMER ([EEM]) HRSEESMMNBRYEE
THISNEBIE(E - EIRER A - N2023F3A31 AR &E&E
e BT HRRE R -

We focused on this area as the goodwill impairment assessment
made by management requires management to exercise an
element of judgement and estimation, primarily related to the key
assumptions, such as unit price of the underlying properties of the
CGUs, used in determining the fair value of the underlying
properties which form the basis of the recoverable amount of the
CGUs.

HPSERRILEE  DEREEEFEHNBEREFHEEER
BIELHET R fhat  T2RBRNRREM - HINNETHEEME
AR E(RBRESELSUAIRESENEE)KERANES
EEBMAEYENERER -

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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o Obtaining from management the goodwill impairment
assessment and test the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations;

WER ERESHBREN Y  WARFENBEEREN

o Involving our internal valuation experts in the evaluation of
the appropriateness of the methodology and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in determining
the fair value of the underlying properties of the CGUs with
reference to market data;
HPMABEEER2ETHEE  HETREELE
CHEBYERAEMBA I ENEE T RBRRENSE
M

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

LR EMERE - e RFHM

o Evaluating the sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in
the revenue growth rates, the discount rates and the fair
value of the underlying properties on the recoverable
amount of the CGUs; and
AN EERE  BRRERERYEAANENS IR E
PURSEEENATRESENRRE &

o Assessing the disclosures on the impairment assessment
of goodwill, specifically the key assumptions that had the
most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the CGUSs.

AR AR ERE N RE CERHETREEEEMN
Al ESEAREAZENMARER

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions used in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supportable in light of available evidence, and appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements.

BEMATHRF - RMBERGEBRETEREANEREERSR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 37 A S e o (%)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Yu Lung Sun.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 June 2023

(If there is any inconsistency between English and Chinese versions of this independent
auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.)

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

wi G AR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 220233 H31HIFF/Z

REVENUE

Other income and gains, net

Amortisation

Depreciation

Staff costs

Multidisciplinary fees and related expenses

Property rental and related expenses

Food and beverage costs

Utility expenses

Supplies and consumables

Repair and maintenance

Hygienic and cleaning expenses

Other operating expenses

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of amount due from a
joint venture

Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Release of exchange reserve upon
disposal of a subsidiary

Finance costs

Share of loss of a joint venture

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Income tax expenses

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENTS

Basic and diluted (Hong Kong cents)

Wz

H AU A U
A

nE

8 THA
BHEEXEGER MR
MEEE MR

R KRR A
NAEERX

R KRR m

HERRE
BHERBRMX

Hib =2

W - BERRERE
eI —MA EEEFRRE

)RR

AR B AR EREE
e
15— RV 2 0 4 AR B 34

EATERAR
DME—HABREER

BRBiAT S 18

PRSTRFI X

FEER

AN &7 G
BREHEAR A
FEE R

BARERA
EESRER

EAR R #E GEAL)

Note
b

12
17

13

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
265,269 267,749
4,726 945
(806) (806)
(63,711) (57,247)
(115,919) (117,803)
(12,567) (15,304)
(9,436) (9,489)
(11,128) (10,232)
(9,642) (7,555)
(8,222) (7,618)
(2,772) (2,486)
(1,527) (1,461)
(15,372) (16,833)
- (5,814)
(5,404) (9,910)
(15,227) -
(268) -
(22,689) (10,477)
- (13,327)
(24,695) (17,668)
(3,086) (6,321)
(27,781) (23,989)
(27,781) (20,633)
- (3,356)
(27,781) (23,989)
(3.1) 2.3)

T B E 2 R A R A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 220233 H31HIFF/Z

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEEE (27,781) (23,989)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H2EW A (EE)
Other comprehensive loss that will not HrEREEBRAENHEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in B EMm 2 mEEE
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign IR R AL R BB INEETS
operations attributable to non-controlling EAEMEL ZEREM
interests and others = (17)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be  AJEERE /& B EH D EE BN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hip2mk A (EBi8)
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREBINEBEEANEL =5
operations - (18)
Release of exchange reserve to profit or loss HE B ARRRERELEER
upon disposal of a subsidiary B 268 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FEHM2ERA(HE)
FOR THE YEAR 268 (35)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEZEERAHE
FOR THE YEAR (27,513) (24,024)
Attributable to: AT 75 A -
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZ PN (27,513) (20,651)
Non-controlling interests IR = = (3,373)
(27,513) (24,024)

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

f B B SR D 2R

As at 31 March 2023 R2023%3H31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment in a joint venture

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Goodwill

Investment in insurance contract

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Deferred tax assets

Due from a joint venture

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Tax recoverable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Assets held for sale

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FRBEE

ME - BB Rtk

BIVEE
N—HEELENKRE
BNFA - ke REMREREIR

HE
IR A DI E
BAREH BN S REE

BENAEE
e —fR A ERERIA

FRBEELER
RBEE

B 5 MR
AU E TR IA
BNA - RE REMEREIA
RERALEEY
BB ERER
FHEHENEE

AR

RBRE

B BN R

HAO R FOR R A B A
—HRZMERRER
FERRITRER
HEAE

eI IR

mEE EEE
REBAEFE

HEERRBDAR

Note
b

14
16
17

19
20
21

22
30
17

18

19
23

38

24
25
26
27
15

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
997,786 931,190
1,481 2,287
17,226 14,444
33,833 33,833
3,488 3,371
9,710 24,937
5,812 4,621
- 4,376
1,069,336 1,019,059
10,057 7,762
952 1,051
4,520 3,101
23,399 29,083
38,928 40,997
- 28,854
1,108,264 1,088,910
3,088 1,272
22,933 29,066
20,000 -
134,402 125,102
39,300 33,837
4,003 7,024
223,726 196,301
(184,798) (155,304)
884,538 892,609
Bt 2 AR AR 2 W

2023 F 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

0 B IR Do 2 (#8)

As at 31 March 2023 R2023%3H31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITIER

Lease liabilities HEARE

Other payables and accruals Eith &~ I R FERHE A
Deferred tax liabilities REFIREE

Total non-current liabilities ERBBELTE

Liabilities directly associated with assets B EEENEE

held for sale EEEENEE

Total liabilities aEEE

Net assets BEFE

EQUITY R

Equity attributable to owners BAREB AELER
of the parent

Issued capital BEITIRA

Reserves s

Non-controlling interests FEIERIE T

Total equity WS AR ER

Choi Wun Hing, Donald
BRE
Director

EF

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Note
B 5

27
15
25
31

38

28
30

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
455,177 458,505
251,935 199,168
5,430 5,982
11,408 12,420
723,950 676,075
- 33,049
947,676 905,425
160,588 183,485
9,029 9,029
151,559 173,851
160,588 182,880
- 605
160,588 183,485

Chan Yip Keung

[CE S

Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
fo 7 B i S B

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #Z202343A31HIFF/Z

Note
ik

At 1 April 2022 R2022%F4A18

Loss for the year FEFR

Other comprenensive income £ E 12 EIA
for the year

Total comprehensive loss ERPERRLE
for the year
Share options expenses BRERR
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) & — B A7 (Hi338)
Transfer of share options reserve BEIER AR RERE 82

upon the lapse of share options

At 31 March 2023 202353 A31H

T B A A R A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

% 0 HE £ 52 B R (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 220233 H31HIFF/Z

At 1 April 2021

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive loss
for the year
Grant of share options

At 31 March 2022

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

R0 F4A18

ERER

FREMREER

EREEBELE

R202%3A318

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAAER AR
Retaned
Share Exchange profts/ Non-
Issued premium Merger Other  fluctuation  (ccumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserves reserve osses) Totel interests equity
BEf i g REER) R
A ABE  AKRE  ELRE yHE  (ZEER) &t BE  ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TERL TR TR TEn  TEn TR TR
(Note 28)
Mzt 28)
9,09 148,770 33,798 2432 (250) 6430 200,209 3978 204,187
- - - - - (20633 (20,633 (3,356) (23,989)
- - - - (18) - (18) (17) (39)
- - - - (18) (20633 (20651) (8373 (24,024)
- - - 3,322 - - 3,322 - 3,322
9,09 148,770 33,798 5754 (268) (14203 182,880 605 183,485




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maBlameR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 220233 H31HIFF/Z

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
COVID-19 related rent concession
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation
Gain on derecognition of lease
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of
a subsidiary
Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract
Change in provision for long service payments, net
Share option expenses
Share of loss of a joint venture
Impairment on assets held for sale
Impairment on amount due from a joint venture
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Interest received

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings paid
Interest on loan from a fellow subsidiary paid
Interest elements of lease payments

Net cash from operating activities

Note

=
=
&4

REFHFTERERE
BRI 1R
FLTRPIRIREH R
FIBRRA
FBUA
AT ARSHARESH R
ME - BERREBITE
EREEENE
g
BURRERE & et
& —FIff B X AR R B
S
R HNRFRREBEE

—_
N

© 0 0 0O O O

RGN TR EZE T

B R

DME—HAELEER 17
RFHENEERE
el A B EFIERE
BRAAEFABANSREE

B Z U RE I

BNFUR - mEe REMEY
FRIRIE N

EHEMNFRE M (Rd)

Hith e SR R ERT B A
OBL) /48

ReEmERE

BERNEBMEH

B S
FHRRITESRENFR
—RRRENMBRRENERFIR
HENFWFEEH

RERBAISHREFE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
(24,695) (17,668)
22,689 10,477
(33) -
(3,910) -
17,324 16,473
46,387 40,774
806 806
(4) -
268 -
(117) (110)
(552) 538
5,221 3,322
- 13,327
- 5,814
5,404 9,910
15,227 63
84,015 83,726
(2,295) (1,054)
(4,201) (558)
2,042 (1,154)
(7,859) 16,654
71,702 97,614
(8,211) (5,471)
33 -
(20,707) (8,898)
(36) -
(8,172) (6,575)
34,609 76,670
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

o Bl (i B 3 ()

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 220233 H31HIFF/Z

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Increase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Provision of funding in relation to disposal of
a subsidiary
Disposal of a subsidiary
Increase in an amount due from a joint venture

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
New bank loans

Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Repayment of bank loans

Principal portion of lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances of a subsidiary
reclassified as assets held for sale

Bank overdrafts

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REFDRBRERE
BEDE BEIREEE

B EFABZEDN
SRVEEEM
HE—FMEARE S BHE

HE—RHMEAR
EW —R& & (b IR

RERBMARSFE
BMETHAERERE
HraRTE N
—HREHBARER
ERRITER
HENRATED

RETHMAHRLFE

RERALSENAL FE
FNRERASEED
ExEBHPE

FREERASEEY

RERBEEEWERIN

Re RRTHER

BN ERFEEENEER
—RBARNES R
RITEES

RITEX

Note

=r
=
&4

38
27

23

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
(28,039) (39,137)
= (19,188)
(4,800) -
(325) -
(1,028) (72)
(34,192) (58,397)
142,000 158,131
20,000 -
(143,090 (177,459)
(32,398) (19,017)
(13,488) (38,345)
(13,071) (20,072)
29,408 49,687
= (207)
16,337 29,408
23,399 29,083
= 325
(7,062) -
16,337 29,408




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it e B ik

31 March 2023 202343H31H

21

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Pine Care Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street, Tsz
Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of senior care services.

Chime Corporation Limited, the ultimate parent undertaking of the
Group, is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$184.8 million. Included in its current liabilities were mainly
lease liabilities of HK$39.3 million, loan from a fellow subsidiary of
HK$20.0 million and interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$134.4
million which included revolving bank loan facilities of HK$16.9 million
and a bank loan of HK$56.0 million which is not contractually due within
twelve months from 31 March 2023 but classified as a current liability
due to the bank’s overriding rights to demand repayment. Undrawn
facilities amounted to HK$52.9 million as at 31 March 2023.

21
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 4 it i ()

31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuec)

156

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) have given careful consideration of the liquidity
and performance of the Group, and capital expenditure plans and the
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern. The
Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projection prepared by
management which covers a period of not less than twelve months
from the date of the financial statement. The Directors have taken into
account of the following considerations in assessing the sufficiency of
working capital requirements for the next twelve months:

1. the cashflows generated from its operations;

2. the successful roll over of the revolving bank loan facilities of
HK$16.9 million with similar terms and that the loan of HK$56.0
million will be paid according to the contractual repayment
schedule notwithstanding the rights to demand clause in these
facilities;

3. the availability of new banking facilities and unutilised credit
facilities of the Group which may be drawn as and when needed;

4. the ability of the Group to comply with the bank loan covenants
in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2023; and

5. the confirmation from Chime Corporation Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Group’s major shareholders, on its
intention to provide financial support for the continuing operations
of the Group so as to enable the Group to meet all its liabilities
and obligations as and when they fall due and to enable the
Group to continue its business for at least twelve months from
31 March 2023.

Based on the cash flow projections and taking into account reasonably
possible changes to the cash flow assumptions in the cash flow
projections, the Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2023. Accordingly, the
Directors of the Company consider it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2.1 RBEE )

RGBRESTBREE  RAHAEERS
BRANBBERFELLER  ARAES
(BERDEFEZRAEENRDER K
BRERFASE - UREEE A HEAY
BERF BEECENEEERRREAY
BiRx AR AR+ @A HE AR E
EReRETR - EERFAERKT @A
EEESERNAREEREFRATER
N

1. HELHMFERERE

2. MR LUEERERBITERRE
160E BB UKE6.0BEEITLH
ERARBANERBBRIMN &%
ZERMA TR ESKEE G

3. AEEAHRARMBRITRERARDA
EEREANEREREN

4, AEBE BH202343831H KK
+ o EARNETRITERZHNEET
&

5 AEEIZERIMHSEIERAFZHE
BAREREEEALNEENRFELE
B  AEREEAENS—
FIEMAEREL  WEAREEENE
20233 A31HEBFEZL+ZEANR
BEHEGES o

BIEREREBARTREER S RETEA
AHBESREBRENAETLET EFR
AAEEERANEELESHTER2023F
3A31 AR ARK+ @A BB IEELT -
Bt ARFIEERAIRBELELLERR
REUBHREBEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 ¢ it e ()

31 March 2023 202343H31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment in
insurance contract which has been measured at cash surrender value
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

(@) Amendments to standards effective in the
current accounting period

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

Revised Accounting
Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations
Amendments to Annual Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

Improvements Project 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Narrow-scope amendments
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

The adoption of these amendments to standards does not have
any significant change to the accounting policies or any
significant effect on the results and financial position of the
Group.

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 4 it i ()

31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

New standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group

The following new standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation have been published which are mandatory for the

Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023

and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 @ Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 @ Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

HKFRS 17 ™ Insurance Contracts

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial

(Revised) @ Statements — Classification by

the Borrower of a Term Loan

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 ()

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 ™ Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 (0 Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single

transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 @

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

m Effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2023

@ Effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2024

® Effective date to be determined

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 ¢ it e ()

31 March 2023 202343H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

New standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the

(b)

impact of these new standard, amendments to standards and

interpretation and does not expect that they would have any

significant impact on its results and financial position.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted for the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements, which have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated, are set out below:

(@

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

U]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which controls is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note
3(0)).

Intra-group balances, transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 4 it i ()

31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

U]

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 3(n)(iii)).

Joint venture

Investments in joint arrangements are classified either as
joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined them to be a joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

(i)  Joint venture (Continued)
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. For equity
accounting purpose, accounting policies of the joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business
o equity interests issued by the Group

. fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in

the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 3(n)
(iii)). The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see Note 3(j)).

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets, less

their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line

method over their estimated useful lives at annual rates as

follows:

Land and buildings, Over the lease term
including right-of-use assets

Furniture, fixtures and other 14%-30%

equipment

20%-33%

Over the shorter of lease term
and 10%-20%

Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings and renovation
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and available for intended
use.
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable. Lease payments
to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions. The Group determines the incremental
borrowing rate by using recent third-party financing received with
adjustments specific to the term of the leases.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-

(d)

()

value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an

expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a

lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor

is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased

assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position based on their nature.

Intangible assets

U]

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 20. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments (note 7).

Goodwill impairment is described in note 3(n)(ii).

Licences

Purchased licences are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 8 years.
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

(f)

U]

(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognises trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, deposits and borrowings on the
date on which they are originated. All other financial
instruments are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date on which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability (unless it is trade and
other receivables without a significant financing
component) is measured initially at fair value plus, in the
case of an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of financial
assets or liabilities carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit
or loss. Trade and other receivables without a significant
financing component are initially measured at transaction
price.

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade payable and accruals are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as

at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Trade and other receivables, including balances due from
group companies are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost. All other financial assets are classified and

measured at fair values.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair
values. Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
profit or loss. Trade and other payables, including
balances due to group companies, interest-bearing
borrowings and convertible bonds are classified as
financial liabilities at amortised cost. The Group does not

have financial liability measured at FVTPL.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

(iii)

(iv)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial
asset. The Group enters into transactions whereby it
transfers assets recognised on its consolidated statement
of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In such
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the
Group’s trading activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on
hand, demand deposits with banks, and short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group.

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises different types of revenue, as follows:

(i) Revenue from the rendering of senior care services and
provision of health care services is recognised when the
services are rendered over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis as customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits provided by the Group.

(ii) Revenue from the sale of senior care related goods is
recognised at a point in time when the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers.

The period between the transfer of promised goods and
services to the customers and payments by customers
usually is within one year, as a result, there is no financing
component which requires adjustment of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

If the payments by customers exceed the services rendered, a
contract liability is recognised as receipts in advance on the
consolidated statement of financial position. If the services
rendered exceed the payments by customers and unconditional
rights to contract consideration to date, a contract asset is
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i

0)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively. Current tax is the
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available. Additional
income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the entity
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met: (i) In the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or (i) In the
case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(1) the same taxable entity; or

) different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar. The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Translation of foreign currency (Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair values are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Related parties
i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

2) has significant influence over the Group; or

3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Related parties (Continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third parties.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets

(n)

U]

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for lifetime
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables. For
bank balances, and deposits and other receivables for
which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowances
are measured as 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are
the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)

U]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs and presentation of ECLs in the
consolidated statement of financial position

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
They are measured as follows:

financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive);

financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows;

undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group if the commitment is
drawn down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive; and

financial guarantee contracts: the expected
payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts
that the Group expects to recover.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(n)

U]

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs and presentation of ECLs in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the
loss allowance is charged to profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use
calculation. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

. right-of-use assets;

o other intangible assets;

° investment in a joint venture; and

o investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

° Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use calculation. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)
. Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

o Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), who are the
executive directors of the Company for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(P)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of reporting
period.

(i)  Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when they are settled.

3

2

(P)

(@)

DETBERBE #)

BRERIRERE

7R E MAR B F AR RN
BT METHREE NS BEAEF
B WAEHA NG - EER
2 RS AR T E 0 HL Ay B TR
o

HEBRHREEEA  AREAETE
EMFRX R EFHR A o WEER
sORHA AT B EE - REEH AR
BIEH AR MR EEHER
HABE - BN R A A AL
ERIRRSD - AR FRERKERARKEM
ELRBREAEREFEELINELER
T TERBER/IRAE  ELENE
T AT BEMEARAR RIBR SN

’E®A

) EEEZES
REZANFRNES FRER
iR BRERSHA SHES
BRI 4R 4 AR 75 T 22 A 10 4F R A i 5
B (R -

(i) FEALFE
EAARREERERGMESE
REZESHEEE BE5ES
LT SRAATRS - XATEAIMTE
MR AERRAE -

fEALET M B ER BN 121E A
NEE - WiREERRANM
SRR -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R

181



00O

~
~

(D)

182

Qo

v
-

P

el

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 4 it i ()

31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
() Employee benéefits (Continued)

(iii)

Pension plans
Pension plans are classified into defined benefit and
defined contribution plans.

Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income so as to spread the regular cost
over the future service lives of employees in accordance
with the advice of the actuaries who carry out a valuation
of the plans. The pension obligation is measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows using
the interest rates determined by reference to market yields
at the end of reporting period based on high quality
corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the
estimated term of benefit obligations. All actuarial gains
and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they
occur, in other comprehensive income.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year incurred.

Pension costs are charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within staff costs.

The pension plans are generally funded by the relevant
group companies by payments from employees for
contributory plans.

(n Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants are deducted in reporting the related expenses, when
appropriate.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Investment in insurance contract

The Group invests in a key management insurance contract,
which contain both investment and insurance elements. The life
insurance contracts are initially recognised at the amount of
premium paid, and subsequently measured at each reporting
date at its cash surrender value. Changes to the cash surrender
value at each reporting date will be recognised in profit or loss as
“other income and gains”. In the event of death of the insured
person, the surrender of the policies, or the policies mature, the
investment will be derecognised and any resulting gains/losses
will be recognised in profit or loss.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets and investment property that are carried
at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group) but
not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date
of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are of a disposal group)
are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale or of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options
and incentive shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total
amount expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At each financial position date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options and incentive shares that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to employee share-
based compensation reserve.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying

values of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(a

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. For the purpose of performing impairment
assessment, goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units.
The recoverable amount of the cash generating units is the
higher of value-in-use calculations which are based on
discounted future cash flows and fair value less costs of disposal
calculations relating to the cash generating units with reference
to the external valuation performed by a third party property
valuer on the underlying properties of the cash generating units.
The Group is required to make estimates and judgements on the
fair value of the underlying properties in determining the
recoverable amount of the cash generating units. Further details
are given in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is an indication that an asset (including the right-of-use
assets) may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. For details, refer to Note 22.

Amount due from a joint venture

The measurement of ECL of amount due from a joint venture is
measured as either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, through the management’s critical assessment
on the recoverable amounts based on cash flows from underlying
assets, the actual and expected changes in business
performance and general market default rate. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.
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5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s businesses. The Group’s exposure to

these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices

used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
joint venture, and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a
defined credit policy in place with general credit terms ranging
from O to 30 days in respect of goods and services provided.
The exposure to credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk from
customers receivables as the customers’ bases are widely
dispersed, except for a single external customer which accounts
for approximately 94.7% (2022: 82.3%) of the total trade
receivables.

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables was
determined using the simplified approach based on individual
assessment of each customer. Expected credit loss allowance
was estimated based on the assessment of probability of default,
recovery rate, exposure at default, the historical credit loss
experience, historical payment pattern and adjusted for forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.

The Group also assessed the loss allowance on deposits and
other receivables by individual assessment on 12 months’
expected loss basis as there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. These assets are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account past experiences, forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors and other factors. As at 31 March
2023 and 2022, the loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables was immaterial.
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94.7% (2022 : 82.3%) °

B 2RKSENEREEEERREEER
AERZBPOERFHEH T AR
EeoEBMEERREREEREBERZOLA
T mEE - gHRR  BEEREER
8 BANFEN  TREBLER
FHRTIE IS A FHER B IR A

AEE IS B AR - Z12@ A8
HAEIB EERT (IR & M H A FEMGR AR
BIERE - TR 8 B HERURE
BRRBIEBREEN - 2S5 EES BT
HHEFINEEER TEEBAL
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

Amount due from a joint venture is continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the counter party, taking into
account past experiences, forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors and other factors. During the year ended
31 March 2023, an impairment of amount due from a joint
venture of HK$5,404,000 (2022: HK$9,910,000) was recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly placed with good credit
quality financial institutions so the credit risk is considered to be
low. No loss allowance had been provided under general ECL
assessment. The exposure to credit risks is closely monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group carries out regular review to
minimise exposure to credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, due from a joint venture and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position.

5

SR bR e ()

(@)

EERR @)
AEEFBIEHFEELEEREER
Bl —HEERERE  EPEERT
K5 RBGERZ R EAMEZBER
EMEER - B E2023F3A31HILF
EHIABK —HEECERERE
5,404,000 7T (20224 : 9,910,000
TT) e

RelReEENIBEFHNEREER
RIFNEREE  SEERAREEAR
1K - BLERE —RIEMEEEBG
REBRE - AREBERIEREE
R o ANEEHETTE Mg AR ERE
EERRB -

RREERBEGEMBRANEANES
FEWTRIE ~ e K E A FEURIR - EUR
—HEEREFRARRE RS ERB/Y
HAREE -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5 BI¥RERERE@®
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REEERMEE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient EEMNRDESEREEREERTEN
cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of e FERAENOCRECZEREREE
committed credit facilities and its compliance with lending EEESNHEBTERZENEBN - K
covenants. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance EENEEZASBFERBERERE
between the continuity of funding and the flexibility through use SHEHEEEEMN 2 BT - ok
of interest bearing borrowings. As disclosed in note 2.1, certain H2APTEE  EEEEREUE TREMN
measures have been taken by the Directors to manage the EEAEBATARARESE ST - R
liquidity position faced by the Group. As at 31 March 2023, the 2023F3A31H AKEBREAHIE
Group has available unutilised borrowing facilities of TR E 49 552,936,000 JT (2022 4F -
approximately HK$52,936,000 (2022: HK$10,500,000). Details 10,500,000/ 70 ) » SRITHE R BEH L
of bank borrowings are set out in note 27. The following table MizE27 - TRIIRANEBHIESTE SR
shows the remaining contractual maturities (excluding BERREHARNE T AR EE R (G
classification impact of repayment on demand clause) of the BRIRESREBERDEZE) - IiEE
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities at the end of the SHXRBRBRERE(BREBELOF
reporting period, which are based on contractual undiscounted ol (T 2) AR ¥E & B R &9 BN ER A
cash flows (including interest payments computed using REAEHF BN EH -
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period):
At 31 March 2023
1202353 A31A
Carrying
Total amount in
contractual the statement
Within Between Between Over undiscounted  of financial
1year 1and2years 2and5years 5years cash flows position
BHREE RUBRRR
—FR -BZf —EEfE BRI RERELE THEELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx ThEx TEx TEx TEx TEn
Trade payables BoERZE 3,088 = = = 3,088 3,088
Lease liabilities REAE 49,301 47,790 125,206 109,768 332,065 291,235
Other payables and acoruals HhERFERETER 20,787 - - - 20,787 20,787
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —HRZNBARER 20,626 - - - 20,626 20,000
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T B ER1TE 159,574 62,869 403,470 45,190 671,103 589,579
253,376 110,659 528,676 154,958 1,047,669 924,689
188 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5

(b)

()

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

SR bR e ()
REBEEERE &)

(b)

At 31 March 2022
R2022%3A31H

Carrying
Total amount in
contractual  the statement
Within Between Between Over  undiscounted of financial
iyear 1and2years  2andb years 5 years cash flows position
BNRER  REBRAR
—5R —B2f “ERF BRI HENELE THRESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR T T T
Trade payables B HEMNTIE 1,272 - - - 1272 1272
Lease liabilities BEEE 45,057 33,122 92,346 124,153 204,678 233,006
Other payables and acoruals HhERFERETER 28,167 - - - 28,167 28,167
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 52 BITE 128,370 44,067 353,403 93,466 619,306 583,607
202,866 77,189 445,749 217,619 943,423 846,051
Price risk (c) MErERE

The Group is exposed to equity investments price risk because
certain financial assets of the Group are classified in the
statement of financial position as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

At 31 March 2023, if market value of the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss had decreased/increased by
10%, with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2023 would have been HK$971,000 (At 31
March 2022: HK$2,494,000) higher/lower. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based on a reasonable expectation of
possible valuation volatility over the next 12 months.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to
the Group’s bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate or the best lending rate. The Group
mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest
rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The Group has
not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

(d)

MR ALEE T2 REENTBARRE
TOBRRBRAREFABRGNEHE
B SAREHEESREERER -

M2023F3A31 8 @ WAEEZAR
Bt ABENEREENTERRD
hn10% - mAT A B el #E ZEF T
B AHE20283F3A31THILEFERN
TR A BB AG1E h0, R 4> 971,000 7T (7
202243 A 31 H : 2,494,000 JT ) °
BURED T IR B A IETE IR K121
Arlge IR ERESMERE -

PIESEN S

REBATASEZ M X ER T EEAKE
BEBRITRZEREREEEERAE
SHERRITERAR - AEEERTEH
EURDERI RN E B N EBEIRITRE
VAP R o 7N 52 [ 3 4 452 PR AR AAT ) =
1= HRA SR A R @ o

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5 BI¥RERERE@®
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) FI=m= Bz
Apart from the foregoing, the Group has no other significant B _EaiE ol - N5 G A A AU
income-generating financial assets or interest-bearing financial WEATREENFRERAE - K&
liabilities. The Group’s revenue, expenses and cash flows are B A AZRREREAB ETZ
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. TSR REFZE -
Effective interest rates analysis BERAZRD M
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing BEHEMARNSREENTESRBE
financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective mMs @ FTRERNEVHEHROBER
interest rates at the end of the reporting period: &
Total Effective interest rate
FEE G BRFIZE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000 % %
Interest rate risk I 2= 2 B FExT FHET
Floating rates: SFEFE
Cash at banks Tm%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ 23,399 29,083 0.00 0.00
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEER 589,579 583,607 2.73-5.88 1.07-3.50

As at 31 March 2023, if the interest rates on borrowings had
been 75 basis point higher/lower, which was considered
reasonably possible by the management, with all other variables
held constant, the loss after tax for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$3.7 million (2022: HK$3.7 million) as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after taxation and accumulated losses that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s loss after taxation and accumulated losses is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

mzozaisﬁleﬂ B WERFEFIRE
M%Tﬁaé@fm#nu//mwsm
ma— C MEATE A BB TE - BIF
RIBR B 1% 5 18 B SR 1T 15 3R ORI B 7 S 3
m/om A g RS TE BB T
(20224 : B7ABBTT) °

BRSREDTRERBENEZEH R
WEHREL  YEDARENFELAE
I T A A7 S 5 B PR 50 A 5% B8 T e )

TR TA  BAREENBRTIL
BERZFTEREENREZE - g4

EERREARIEERZB R EIEITAE
TEAFMEAMNRERENERRRME -
HAEBERBRBEBIER 2 EBNY
25 AE BT RSB EF S AR I
AWFEZE - Zo TR 2022F 48
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

(f)

Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly conducted in Hong Kong.
Therefore, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign
currency risk, and hence the Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the
Company and benefits for other stakeholders of the Group, and
to support the Group’s stability and growth, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholders
return, taking into consideration the future of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or new debt financing. The Group made no changes
to its capital management objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year. The capital of the Group comprises equity and
borrowings in consolidated statement of financial position.

SR bR e ()

()

(f)

SN LR
REBOEHEENERLT - Ellt -
AEBYWMEAINERR - FAEEY
BONELEPTR -

AEeEE
FAEREBAANERE BARRAL
ERHEEENLS - fETEBRERR

KFERERMREERE  EERKADF
BERE RO N AR EE AN &S
Mg - WFFAEBNITE KGR -

REEES N E ma REEREARR
B UHERKEENEE RBERE R -
BEREERARBMARKREARYE -
RITRIARAENEES - FRAEERER
E FHRABARIRBRRBERER

@ o
=

AEERELEBREHEEWAER
BARER - A THEBSGABRERERE
REBAAERN FREARE - MR
RIREEA BUIHRAFTOES R
& o HZE2023F 20223 A31 A1
FE ASETEHHERNERHE -
SR Sk AR VB A (AT 5B 2 o

FR - AEENERNGELEEE - K
KENEABIEREWBARRRAE

@ BB o

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
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31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5 BKEKREE®

() Capital management (Continued)

(f)

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 27)
Loan from a fellow subsidiary (note 26)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debts

Total assets

Gearing ratio

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

sHERITER (RE27)
—FRRKE QR ER (HE26)
B RERREEEY

FaE

BEMRR

AERELE

BT (#)

RBEMRNEERB/LENOT

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT T
589,579 583,607
20,000 -
(23,399) (29,083)
586,180 554,524
1,108,264 1,088,910
52.9% 50.9%
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6

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6 W& Hittw AR FEE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBEWEESITIT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T
Revenue from contracts with customers ~ &F &8
Rendering of senior care services RELERE R REZERRS 233,657 237,276
Sale of senior care related goods THELE A E m 31,612 30,473
265,269 267,749
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) o iFl R E R
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FiET
Timing of revenue recognition: W as FERR ) RF )
Goods transferred at a point in time BERNE—REER 31,612 30,473
Services transferred over time PR BE R EI8E 233,657 237,276
Total revenue from contracts with customers & /P& #1482 265,269 267,749
M EEEEA MR A

2023 F 3R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6

Wz - HAbUA K s 58 )

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEESHWE &)
(i)  Performance obligations iy RBHRER

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Rendering of senior care services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered in which the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group.

Sale of senior care related goods

The performance obligation is satisfied when the Group delivers
the goods to the customers and the control of the goods is
transferred to the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied (excluding those related to the contracts with an
original expected duration of one year or less) as at 31 March are
as follows:

BB ERSRERERE R

Amounts expected to be recognised

as revenue of rendering of senior REEERGRENSHE
care services:

Within one year —FR

After one year —F1&

As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
those unsatisfied contracts which have an original expected
duration of one year or less is not disclosed.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

194 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BRASBEROEENERBRNT

e L EL & REEEEIRY
ROBEERRERBREREET - B
By 22 P [ B W B R £ P AN 5% [ £2 (1 O )
HELRER A E iR
EHOBEEEAEBEREPZNE MR
BEEVEHIEER TEPRETT

M3ASTH  "EEFBEHEFECK
BRI D ARBL) XS ERETEL
T(TREERBEHHEME—FUAT
A KMERE)

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT TET
110,384 112,781
220,767 -
331,151 112,781

WMAEBMBHREEAF WA ET
AAREDEERBHHB R —FHA
THRBHENNZZEHE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 ¢ it e ()

31 March 2023 202343H31H

6

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised as
revenue after one year related to senior care services, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within three years.
All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be

6 Ui - HAW AR RS FEE @)

BEEEHWE @)

iy BHREEE)
TEEER —FRERABREZ DEEEF
BRENRINRFERERTERE
MEEEEREER HBEOEEHER
—FRET - nEEERBRBLOEENA
BEMR SHERSHBIHEN —FRNE
RERZE WEZSETBEITER

recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed 8-

above do not include variable consideration.

Other income and gains, net

Other income

Bank interest income

Rental income

COVID-19 related rent concession

Gains

Change in cash surrender value of
insurance contract

Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Others

HAW A R IS F 58
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Hebyg A
RITHF B A 33 -
WA 666 628
FRERESHEERS RS 3,910 -
4,609 628
Y
RBREHNERRSEELES
117 110
BAREFABSHESREE
NREEE = (63)
HA - 270
117 317
4,726 945
M EEEEA MR A

2023 F 3R
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31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

7

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the provision of senior care services,
including the sale of related goods to deliver such services. Since this is
the only operating segment of the Group, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue was derived primarily from its operations in Hong
Kong during the year and the non-current assets of the Group were
mainly located in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of HK$111,501,000 was derived from the Hong Kong
Government under the Enhanced Bought Place Scheme (“EBPS”)
(2022: HK$110,509,000), which amounted to more than 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

11\1% SI;IL ﬁ*’l’
REEMS  ARBEEF-—ET2REED
B MRtk s R REEZRY (BEH

EHEERMRHIERS) - AR AR E
Bl — e 8 MERIE T EED
DT o

FA-AEENRBETERBERFTENL
&+ M 20234F 22022 F3 A 31 BAREEH

ERBEEEBURES -
BEHE-BREXEREFNEHN

REZE2023F3 831 B IEFE » 111,501,000
IR ES T B BB BT R E BAr st (2
=BT ) E 4 (2022 4 110,509,000
TR S E I Z 6 10% ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 ¢ it e ()

31 March 2023 202343H31H

8

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of goods and consumables sold

Amortisation

Depreciation on owned assets

Depreciation on right-of-use assets — land

Depreciation on right-of-use
assets — buildings

Less: Amount capitalised

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Staff costs:
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions

Provision for long service payments

Share option expenses
Directors’ remuneration

Net of:

Government grants of Employment Support

Scheme
Other government grants®

Impairment of amount due from a joint venture
Impairment of assets classified as held for sale
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss*

8 KREAIEE

TE {4 SR

BEEEMMBRERKA
i

BREEENE
EREEE — THMFE
EREEE — BFOINE

W BEAMEERE

ZER R B
— BZR%
— FEBREIRT

BT :
TERFS
RRETEIfH R
REBRIS I 5R B 18
BRI S
EEF

AR -
[RFEZE ] 5 &I BUT 7 B)

HAb AT 8
B — & &R RIRIE

DR EHENEERNE
BAREFABRENEREE

Change in cash surrender value of RBEQHRIRA &
insurance contract BEZE)

Gain on derecognition of lease BB RS W

Expenses relating to variable lease payments HEARFAHESED
depending on the turnover not included AEHENRBEENAX
in lease liabilities (BFEEmEnT)

# Various government grants have been received for the welfare of the #

elderly in the Group’s elderly home care centres. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

* The amount for the year ended 31 March 2023 of HK$15,227,000 was *
disclosed separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, while
the amount for the year ended 31 March 2022 of HK$63,000 was
included in other income and gains, net in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

AEEBBABRIENG(GEA)ATE

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$000
FHExT FHIT
19,350 17,850
806 806
17,324 16,473
18,644 18,644
42,177 34,960
78,145 70,077
(14,434) (12,830)
63,711 57,247
1,395 1,434
380 381
126,821 121,771
3,821 4,341
(552) 538
1,521 968
3,126 2,374
134,737 129,992
(7,948) -
(10,870) (12,189)
115,919 117,803
5,404 9,910
- 5,814
15,227 63
(117) (110)
4) -
976 2,111

ERAEELEREREBKRE ARG
) o BHEA %SRBI R AW R G

BEE-

#H F2023F3A318 It F E W & &
15,227,000 LB ER A Bm R P EBH
FOMEE2022F3A31THIEFENSE
63,000 TCE st AdR A 1B R P O E M A

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under such regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of
this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits

are taxed at 16.5%.

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Under/(over)provision in prior years
Deferred (note 31)

Total tax charge for the year

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

9 FRiSHRxX

EBFNESHERFARBBEEZ BT ER
T334 F B 16.5% (2022 4F : 16.5%) B B & &1
R EAEE—EWBARRI - ZA
RAIAGERERANTGHMRFIMNELE - B
RS AR S  5Z 682 B & 2,000,000 %
7L (2022 £ : 2,000,000 7T ) HY FE 2R B o FI

128.25% M B R BT - #R T R m A AR

16.5% HOFH RBIF -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

BE — &%
FRZ 4,709 5,594
BEFEREIR(HBREEE) 580 (54)
IRIE (B E31) (2,203) 781
FARIERZ B 3,086 6,321
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

9

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continuea) 9

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the

statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority

of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

rates, are as follows:

Loss before taxation
Share of loss of a joint venture

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax loss not recognised
Tax loss utilised from previous
periods
Tax effect of two-tiered profits
tax regime
Tax reduction
Under/(over) provision in prior years

Others

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

B AT 1R
Dih—HAELEEE

RERR R EH IR
BARBUA
AR
RERZHIGEIER
BESRZESRRBER

FERMEN 2 R E

T

BEFERETRS
(HEFERE)

Al

BAREBEERBEFAED
IR X

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$561,000 (At 31
March 2022: HK$2,384,000) in respect of losses amounting to
HK$3,403,000 (At 31 March 2022: HK$11,352,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income due to uncertainty in utilising the unused
tax losses, of which, HK$nil (At 31 March 2022: HK$5,191,000) will
expire up to and including 2026 and HK$nil will expire up to and
including 2027 (At 31 March 2022: HK$2,759,000).

FriS®im = (@)

AR RE A HE R AR AEE
BREMNEEH R EERRBBAEBLY
BIERY  RIRERBRFENBIER SN
HWERMT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(24,695) (17,668)
- 13,327
(24,695) (4,341)
(4,075) (951)
(1,331) (18)
8,275 6,512

= 1,214
(19) (164)
(165) (165)
(180) (170)
580 (54)

1 117

3,086 6,321

HRNERARBARBERBOTETE A%
[ 8 5t 3,403,000 7T (742022 4F 3 A31 8 -
11,352,000 70 ) B ET B ERIBE LRI I & &=
561,00078 78 (2022463 A 31 H : 2,384,000
EIT) ARSI AR R ERTA - HPT
7 0 (202243 A31H : 5,191,000/ 7t )
1P 2026 FF (B IEZF) BIH - MEBTHR
2027 F (B FE#Z F ) (R2022F3A318
2,759,000 7T) 281 -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions
Share option expenses

we

HAb &

¥ra o EREEREWEN
RIS EEIHR
BRI

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees and pension scheme contributions paid to independent

non-executive directors during the year were as follows:

2023

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai

Mr. Wong Kam Pui

Mr. Wong Kit Loong

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

200 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 F

MERLLE
ikl
B L

10 EERFEITHAEH N

BIE ETRAI - BB D FEH 5 383(1)@) -
O OROEARAF(HBEESFSER)
BB HBEECEFNEEREBTRAEH
B R -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
320 320

720 720

18 18

2,068 1,316
2,806 2,054
3,126 2,374

(@ BUFIITES
FRZNFBULFATEENRSE RR
R st BIgRIT :

Share option

Fee expense Total

wEe BRERX st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT FTHERT FHET
80 55 135

80 55 135

80 55 135

80 55 135

320 220 540




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 e % Pt ()

31 March 2023 202343H31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (Continued)

2022 2022 F

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony BriEn s
Mr. Lam Cheung Wai MEREE
Mr. Wong Kam Pui =B E
Mr. Wong Kit Loong S e

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).

10

EERFETHAEEHM @)
(@ BAFHITEEH)

Share option

Fee expense Total

e ERERX Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
80 35 115

80 35 115

80 35 115

80 35 115

320 140 460

FABEEN TBLIENTESHEA
(20224 : &) o

T B A A R A
2023 F 3§
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A 5 e A Pt ()

31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 ESRFETHRAEHM =
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) BITEE FHTEEREE
the chief executive THAE

2023 2023 &

Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing* BRASTE,
Mr. Chan Yip Keung BRER S E
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing?* BREGES
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching* BB A

Non-executive director: FHITESE -
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong? o i
Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald® 2872 6 5 4 *
Mr. Wong Hung Han" oLk E"
Mr. Tsang Tin For" DR E
Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein” HRER A
Ms. Hui Wai Man" HEHELT

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 ¢ it e ()

31 March 2023 202343H31H

10

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive (Continued)

2022

Executive directors:
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing
Mr. Chan Yip Keung
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Non-executive director:
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

" Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald, Mr. Wong Hung Han, Mr. Tsang Tin
For, Mr. Wu Tat Ming Damein and Ms. Hui Wai Man were
appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 7 October

2022.

# Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Yeung Ka Wing, Mr. Cheng Wai Ching and
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong, resigned as directors of the Company with

10 EERFETHRAEFHFMN @)

(b) HMITES FHITEERTE
THAE @)
Salaries,
allowances Pension Share
and benefits scheme option
Fees inkind  contributions expenses Total
e EMK BRe
e EWiEs RS BEREMAX wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TR FAT FHET
20224
WiTES
B ks - - - 153 153
BRE R AE - 720 18 511 1,249
BREKE - - - 256 256
BB A - - - 256 256
- 720 18 1,176 1,914
EHTES
BREHEL - - - - -
- 720 18 1,176 1,914

effect from 28 October 2022.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

" EREGE - Toh®RE - YREL
£ HERAERTERLTESRT
RARNRESE B202F10A7H
HEAERY ©

A REBAELHEARAES 8
2022410 A28 B#EARL °

FR IEEZFFTETRABRER
BB B AT B A 228

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R 203
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

11

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 EEESHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year include one director FRNRAEEaTHMEEBRIE —BE=E (2022
(2022: one director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note Fr—ZESR) HFMFEIHIN XX
10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the non-director, 10 FA - FEEHNRSHFENES DT
highest paid employees are as follows: BT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREMEN 3,695 3,757
Pension scheme contributions RIKSEHEIfR 72 72
Share option expenses ERERS 885 475
4,652 4,304
The number of the non-director, highest paid employees whose HMEBER T SEZIFEETZHEE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: mR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T = 1,500,000 7 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T % 2,000,000 77T 1 -
4 4

During the year, no performance related bonus was paid or payable by
the Group to any of the directors or any of the non-director, highest
paid individuals, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or any of the non-director, highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office nor has any director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FH - AREBESNHENERNERERE
MEEE  RSFMATWERBREIEL
AEERENENESERENIES &S
HIA LIS RR S INAREE R
MAR LR HAERRERE - TRE[E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

12

13

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

FHERTTIERA L
HER R EEE

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings
Interest elements of lease payments
Interest on loan from a fellow subsidiary

B
o BEEARMERE

Total interest expense
Less: Interest capitalised

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing
costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable
to the entity’s general borrowings during the year, in this case 3.53%
(2022: 1.57%).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on the
loss for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$27,781,000 (2022: HK$20,633,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 902,880,000 (2022: 902,880,000)
in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 because the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares during 2023 as the
share options of the Company were anti-dilutive.

)
I ES PN el

12

=]

o

13

/B DN
R ADHIAT -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
20,707 8,898
8,172 6,575
36 -
28,915 16,473
(6,226) (4,996)
22,689 10,477

BT TERAMENERKNANERN LR A
FEREARZE BB E RO INETSFRER
LR T £ 3.53% (20224 : 1.57%) °

ARARERERFAARGER
p]

BRERAEBSENEARBLBESFEEA
JE {5 E B 1827,781,00078 JT (20224 :
20,633,000/ 70 ) & A 31T WA hNAEF
9%7902,880,0000% (20224 : 902,880,000% )
FTHE o

A S 52 [ A 2028 (A AN B BB AR A B I
SE B R LB - = 2028 F &
2022F 3 A31 AIEFELEE M5 M TR
EAREBSBEELRE -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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S 05 A B v (7))

31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2023 028F3F31A
At 1 Apri 2022: P02E4F18:
Cost 8

Acoumulated depreciation  £;H7E

Nt carmying amount BEFE

Additons e

Depreciation provided ERAERRE
during the year

Transfer &

Derecognition RERR

At31 March 2023 netof  72023E3A318
accumulated depreciaion IR E347E

At 31 March 2023; R2023%3A318
Cost A

Accumulated depreciaion  Z3tH7E

Nt carrying amount KETE

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14

M BENRE @)

Right-of-use asset Owned asset
RREEE BEEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and other Motor  Construction
Land Buldings Sub-total Buldings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total Total
i %ER
1 BT gt BT i s HipHe RE RRIR 15 a)
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEL TER TEL TEL TEL TER TEL FEL TEL TER
(note 15) (note 15)
(H15) (H15)
31 March 2022 02F38318
At 1 April 2021: RoRIE4 1R
Cost A 598,810 107,738 706,548 148,968 107,848 48,286 1967 5,299 312,358 1,018,906
Accumulated depreciation 2347 95,174) [44.641) (139.815) (6,366) (59.289) [40073) 7o1) - (10429 (246.243)
Net carrying amount EEYE 503,636 63,007 566,733 142,602 48,560 8213 1,256 5299 205,930 772,663
Adaltions WE - 204,663 204,663 - 801 862 - 55,230 56,893 261,556
Depreciation provided FRAERRE
during the year (18644) (34,960) (53,604) 4.99) 8619) (2466) (39) - 16473) [70077)
Transfer &4 - - - - 5,936 - - (5,936) - -
Transfer to assets BYRREHEN
held for sale (note 38) BE(W33s) - (17,713 {17,713 - (16,630) - - - (16,630) (34343)
Bxchange realignment ERRE - 104 704 - 687 - - - 687 1,391
At31 March 2022, netof ~ R2022E3A31R -
accumulated depreciaion TR E5HTE 484,99 215,791 700,783 187,606 30,73 6,609 864 54,503 230,407 931,190
At 31 March 2022: RoE3ASIA:
Cost A 598,810 287,019 885,829 148,968 93412 49,148 1,957 54,593 348,078 1,233907
Accumulated depreciation  E3HE (113818) 71,228) (185,046) (11,362) 2677) (12539 (1093) - (117671) (302,717)
Net carrying amount FEFE 484992 215,791 700,783 137,606 30,785 6,609 864 54,593 230407 931,190

At 31 March 20283, the Group’s land and buildings with a total carrying
amount of HK$598,959,000 (2022: HK$617,313,000) was pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27(b)).

MR2023F3A3IH A"EBERARLESR
598,959,000/ 7T (20224F : 617,313,000/ 7T)
ZTHREFETFRE AEBRRTFAEE
B—ARITEE (MisE27(b) °

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

15

208

LEASES 15 #HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings
used in its operations. Leases of land and buildings generally have lease
terms between two and fifty-five years, except for some with lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets, including buildings, outside the Group. Extension and
termination options are included in a number of building leases across
the Group. The majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

AEBREEBLEMBZZ AL IET
FEHAHEARY - L REBFHHEHEDR -
BNF_ER+0F HEEHR12EAHK
AT R/ SEBREEsETHEERIN - —
BMmE  AERETHAAREBEIAIALEE
EaEHEEE(BREET) AEEZEE
FHEBBRMRKILERRE - FHMAH
DIEM T & | DER R E T AN E (T FFE
HA)ITHE -

(@) Lease liabilities

(a)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

HESE

HEBBENREERFAZEHNT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Opening carrying amount FHEREE 233,005 76,080
New leases e 2,894 193,372
Modifications of leases HEBET 91,920 11,291
Interest elements of lease payments HENTOF BB 8,172 6,575
Payments (b (40,570) (25,592)
COVID-19 related rent concession FRERESREBESHE (3,910) -
Derecognition BUBT#ER (276) -
Exchange realignment P& 5 F K = 1,149
Reclass to liabilities directly associated BN EAEBEHEN
with assets held for sale BEEEFEBNAE = (29,870)
Closing carrying amount FEREEME 291,235 233,005
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BIHAES 7> 39,300 33,837
Non-current portion JERNEFER > 251,935 199,168

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 5(b) to

the financial statements.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

15 LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (b)

are as follows:

Interest elements of lease payments

(included in finance costs)

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets

Less: Amount capitalised

COVID-19 related rent concession

Gain on derecognition of lease

Expenses relating to variable lease
payments depending on the turnover

not included in lease liabilities

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

The total cash outflow for leases in the year is HK$41,546,000

(2022: HK$29,388,000).

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2022, net of accumulated amortisation

Amortisation provided during the year

Cost at 31 March 2023, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 March 2023:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

15 #HE#»®»

AREBEREEBA B

REZNEREREENSENT

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
HENKHFEHD
(FrARMERKA) 8,172 6,575
EREEENES L 60,821 53,604
W AR b &HE (14,434) (12,830)
FHUERESREERS RS (3,910) -
EUBEREE WS 4) -
BT AREAED
BN AN
(RTEEEMTE) 976 2,111
RIBE NER KB 51,621 49,460

FRHEENIRE ML B35 A 41,546,000

77T (2022 4F : 29,388,000 7T) °

16 BFEE

Licences
i
HK$’000
FET
202343 H31H
R20224E3 A31 B R 2022F4 518 ¢
7R 15,464
REHEGH (13,177)
BRAFE 2,287
R2022F 4 51 HRUMZ - 0Bk REH#H 2,287
FRE RS (806)
MR20234F 3 A 31 HMRA « 0Bk 25TH# 1,481
7202343318 :
A 15,464
RETHE (13,983)
BREFE 1,481
M EEEEA MR A

2023 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2021, net of accumulated amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

Cost at 31 March 2022, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 March 2022:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

16 EREEE®)

20224 3H31H

R2021F3A31 HR 20215418
PR
RETH#H
REFE

R2021F 4 A1 BROPCA - HIBR RAH#E
F RS

MR2022F 3 A 31 HMRKA « 0Bk 25H# 65
MR20224E3 A318 :

BRAR

Rt

FREDFE

Licences
TEER
HK$’000
FET

15,464
(12,371)

3,093

3,093
(806)

2,287

15,464
(13,177)

2,287



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM R—EEELERE KR —R
A JOINT VENTURE BELENE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Cost of investment in a joint venture R—EEEDELRERK 21,726 21,726
Share of losses MEEE (21,726) (21,726)
Due from a joint venture N —MEEDERIE
Beginning of year FH) 4,376 21,976
Impairment B (5,404) (9,910)
Share of losses PEEE = (7,762)
Net advance to joint venture AEETERNFEE 1,028 72
End of the year FR - 4,376
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: REESERPEFBNOT
Particulars Place of Percentage
of issued registration Nature of Measurement ~ Ownership of Voting Profit  Principal
Company name shares held and business  relationship method interest power sharing  activities
B’E EE REE
NAER BRITROFE EEBE BHEEE TEEE RERRER ARl RN EEEHR
Patina Wellness Limited HK$42,600,000 Hong Kong Joint venture Equity method 51% 50% 51%  Investment
holding
ARELERAR 42,600,000 X REh% Eak REBR

The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the

Company.

LR - A ERERERARRMERE ©

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM 17

A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Summarised statement of financial position

Assets EE
Non-current assets IERBEE
Current assets MEEE
Total assets WEE
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities MEAE
Total liabilities FEE= R
Net liabilities &EFE

Reconciliations of the summarised financial information presented to the
carrying amounts of the investment in the joint venture are as follows:

Net (liabilities)/assets at beginning of the year — E¥#) (B &), & EFE

Loss for the year FEEE

Net liabilities at end of the year FRMWEEFE

Shared by the Group REE DL

Offset against due from a joint venture HIHER— a2 ERIE

Interests in a joint venture R—EEEPENER
212 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

R—BEghxRE K-~

SEMERE )

R REE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR T
S 222,596
335 7,312
335 229,908
(47,368) (103,182)
(47,368) (245,127)
(47,033) (15,219)
BEIPHERMEENS E O ERERE
TEOEERNT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR T
(15,219) 10,912
(31,814) (26,131)
(47,033) (15,219
51% 51%
- (7,762)
- 7,762




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE/DUE FROM 17
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income

Loss before taxation MR A BT 18
Taxation BiE
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEBREEBBERE

loss for the year

Share by the Group of loss and REBYEFEBEREE
total comprehensive loss for the year kR

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the joint venture.

Due from a joint venture

As at 31 March 2022, the amount due from a joint venture of
HK$4,376,000 included in the Group’s non-current assets was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. During the year, an
impairment of HK$5,404,000 has been provided.

R—EEELERE FER—F

SEDLERE @)
FEWNEREE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

(31,814) (26,131)

(31,814) (26,131)

- (13,327)

PERRREECEMBRRMEINS
WHAEEESE X HOFETHE
EREHBE -

W —BEERER

H2022F3H318 - aJrJ\Zl&E@éFiﬁEbﬁéE‘J
JE U — A & 1 FRIE 4,376,000 78 7T B K
A RERBIEBREE - FR  DEERE
5,404,000 7T °

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

214

Trade receivables

B 5 R RIR

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,

is as follows:

Within one month
One to two months
Two to three months
Over three months

—fEAR

—=mEA
mZE=1{&A
HB=18A

The financial impact of expected credit losses for trade receivables
under HKFRS 9 is insignificant for the years ended 31 March 2023 and

2022.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are mainly denominated in

HK$ and approximately their fair value.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

18

g 5 BUWGRIR
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
10,057 7,762

RMEDR - BHRUFRBEZREREH RN

BEREGHNERROITIOT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
4,247 2,958
3,352 3,155
2,450 1,001

8 648
10,057 7,762

HE2023F 20223 A1 HILFE - &
B IR E AR O SR E B TR AR

EEBENMBTELTEX -

g5
HAREEE -

EM IR REEE ZAB T E - &
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19
RECEIVABLES
Prepayments (Note) TEAT I (B )
Deposits b
Other receivables H fth B WK IE
Current portion included in prepayments, BERER 7 (T ATER I
other receivables and other assets Bt RFa R EE)
Non-current portion FERNEREL 7
Note:

The financial impact of expected credit losses on financial assets
included in the above balances is insignificant for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts. As
at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables are mainly
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

BANFHE - B RERYTIE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
2,778 1,009
18,454 15,648
514 888
21,746 17,545
(4,520) (3,101)
17,226 14,444

GEX

HZE2023F % 2022F3 A31HILFE » 5t A
FAEBNSREENTEREEBBENIE
FEWTEK -

il A SRFTE B A B NP A HR I A0 RE 8%
B FE U kB M BA B A B o R 2023 F &
202243 A31H » BEBELTEAKRK -

e R EMERFANERET ZE T
B BEARERS -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

20 GOODWILL
Cost AR
Accumulated impairment ZERE
Net carrying amount BREFE

216

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
business combinations is allocated to the cash-generating unit of senior
care services operated by Gericare Centre with a carrying amount of
goodwill of HK$31,300,000 and to the cash-generating unit of senior
care services operated by Hinta Enterprises with a carrying amount of
goodwill of HK$2,533,000 as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, for the cash-
generating units of Gericare Centre and Hinta Enterprises, the
management has determined the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units based on the fair value less cost of disposal calculation
with reference to the external valuation report issued by independent
property valuer on the underlying properties of the cash-generating
units.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

20 HE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
33,833 33,833
33,833 33,833
B E R

FOREBIR M S - R 202343 431 H K% 2022
F3A31B  BREBKEHAESZEAED
REREEEZERLAKEREEERBEE
AR M8 431,300,000 T IR & EEE 7 -
NERATEMEEREEEREHERR
{B/42,533,000/ 8 TCH IR S EA BN - LUETT
AR

Bl 2202343 A381H Kk2022463 A31H IE
FE - pREEZDLORBREENRSE
EEBENmME  BERECSSZBIYEMGER
RIREELEMNBBYEEHNIEGEE
WE - BERSEEBEMNRAAERLEK
A EETRECEEBUN AW EDEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

20 GOODWILL (continued) 20 BEw®w)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) BEFHERR &)
Detailed parameters of the underlying properties in the cash-generating RiEFEZ RN RIB A IR E 4 B ME
units of Gericare Centre and Hinta Enterprises are as follows: FAMERNFHA2E0T -
2023
Fair value of Relationship of
the underlying Valuation Unobservable unobservable
properties Techniques inputs inputs to fair value
HENEZ FUBR FUBEGAZE
ARE HERDS BAHE HARBENEB
HK$’000 Unit price
FTERT BE#
Gericare Centre REEZRLD 342,500 Direct HK$13,014 psfto  The higher the
— Residential care - ZERE (2022: 363,460)  comparison HK$33,450 psf unit price,
home for the elderly BHELE (2022: HK$14,040 psf the higher the
to HK$28,890 psf) fair value
BRHER13014ETE BUEKES
BFARIB450ET  AREER
(2022 :
BEAR14,0408 T2
B 5 R28,800% T)
Hinta Enterprises EARLE 93,900 Direct HK$10,560 psfto The higher the
— Residential care - ZERE (2022: 99,700)  comparison HK$18,180 psf unit price,
home for the elderly HELE (2022: HK$11,250 psf  the higher the
to HK$18,757 psf)  fair value
BF5R10560ETE BUEKES
B¥FR18,1808T AREHES
(2022 :
BFAR11,250B8TF
¥ 5R18,757 8 T)

Based on management’s assessment, the recoverable amount of the

cash-generating units exceeded the respective carrying amounts.

Up to the date of this report there were no reasonably possible changes

in any of the key assumptions mentioned above that would have

caused the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of Gericare

Centre and Hinta Enterprises to be less than its carrying value.

BETEENTG ReEEBMMATWE
SHBBEEREE -

HEARERY  LEAETERIMES
BU RS BEREEEPOLRBEREE
R eEABMMATNE S EENEREE -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 905 e A B vk ()

31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

21 INVESTMENT IN INSURANCE CONTRACT 21
Insurance asset RBEE
At 1 April R4A1H
Change in cash surrender value of REAHNRRACEBEEZS

insurance contract

At 31 March MH3A31H

Notes:

(@) The Group entered into a life insurance policy with an insurance company
to insure an executive director. Under the policy, the Group is the
beneficiary and the policy holder. The carrying value of the life insurance
contract represented the cash surrender value of the insurance contract.
This insurance contract is denominated in United States Dollars.

(b) The insurance contract was pledged as security for the Group’s bank
loans as at 31 March 2023, as further detailed in note 27(c) to the financial
statements.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

RERBENNIRE

PR -

()

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
3,371 3,261
117 110
3,488 3,371

AEEE-BRRARTLBRRE - R
B—2R1TE% - REZRE  ARERE
BEARREREA - AGRBRADOIREE
ERRAENNERRELER - ZRREKHN
ETRtE ©

M 202343 A31 A * (R & K E B HKIRIE
RAEERTERNER  E—FHBERN
BTSSR FR M TE 27(0) ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

(@)

Fair value hierarchy

22

BAREFAESNEREE

@@ RDREER

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIWSAEBEEBRTENAAENE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: ZE4
Assets measured at fair value: BRARBEIENEE
As at 31 March 2023: A2023F3H311 :
Fair value measurement using
BRANETBZSH
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTEHE EXFUBR
EEMEHE BABE AR
(E—-#4) (B=R) (=) @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TER TER THET
Unlisted equity investment FEMRERE = - - -
Unlisted convertible bonds ¥k EiARRES - - 9,710 9,710
- - 9,710 9,710
Assets measured at fair value: BARBERENEE
As at 31 March 2022: R202243A318 :
Fair value measurement using
BRAAREHE22H
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EDNGIE 53 EANAEE
EEMSRE W ABR LN ¢
(B—H) (F=H) (B=H) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT TET TET
Unlisted equity investment ELmiRERE - - 15,448 15,448
Unlisted convertible bonds LR ESR - - 9,489 9,489
- - 24,937 24,937

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value measurements
between level 1 and level 2 and no transfer into or out of level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (year ended 31
March 2022: Nil).

FR MEREEREREENS £
—HREE R AN A E B EE
B BFREBAF=AREF=AEL

(BiE=2022F3A31 HIEFE ¢

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 905 e A B vk ()

31 March 2023  2023%#3/31H

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022:

As at 1 April 2021

Acquisitions

Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022

Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 March 2023

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Financial

assets at

fair value

through

profit or loss

RARETA

BRemEE

HK$’000

FExT

Mm202144 18 -

B 25,000

BAREFAEZNERERE

NREZEE) (63)

R2022%F 3 431 HK20229F4A1H 24,937
BAREFAERNEREEAAESZS)

(15,227)

M20234 3 A31H 9,710

22

BAREBEFABENEREE®)

(b) 1A KR AT EEREH A B
ARETE E=R)
TRFIREE 2023 6 [ 20224 3 A 31
FLEFEE=FERTANET :



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22 A AEITAEENESREE®)

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(c) Valuation techniques, inputs and relationships (c)
to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements (see (b) above) for the valuation techniques
adopted:

Description Fair value at  Valuation
31 March 2023  technique Unobservable inputs
it 20233 A31H
KARE  AERE TABERAUE
HK$'000
TET

DR EGERM - WARIER
A
TREDE=RAREBAREAT
ABREAER T EER (A GE
BATHSE EX () -

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair value

TIRRBAUERAAENHY

Unlisted convertible bonds 9,710  Monte Carlo Risk-free rate 3.933%  Anincrease/decrease in the risk-free rate
FEmTRRES (2022:9,489)  Simulation ~ EEBFIR (2022: by 1% would decrease/increase the
Method 1.843%) fair value by HK$20,000/HK$20,000

RibFEREE

respectively (2022: An increase/
decrease in the risk-free rate by 1%
would decrease/increase the fair value
by HK$114,000/ HK$73,000
respectively)

TEERFREM/ HD 1% RAEES
BUH D /4 10120,000 % T,/ 20,0008 7t
(2022 % : fmEBAIREM,HD 1%
DAREASBIRD /#10114,000 %
7./73,000587T)

Volatility 41.15%  Anincrease/decrease in the volatility by
RiE (2022: 5% would increase/decrease the fair
89.234%) value by HK$10,000/HK$10,000

For the investment in unlisted equity securities, the Group
assessed the fair value as zero as at 31 March 2023 since the
Group considered the chance of recovering the investment is
remote based on latest development of the underlying company,
hence fair value loss of HK$15.5 million was recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

respectively (2022: An increase/
decrease in the volatility by 5% would
increase/ decrease the fair value by
HK$74,000/HK$131,000 respectively)

fRIER I, HD 5%  ARERSE
#1564 10,000%7T,/10,00038 7T
(2022% : fEREBAIREM,FD5%
RABEIS RIS 74,000 35
7t,/131,00038 70

HIELTRAFLRREMS - AEER
20233 A1 HIhAARBEAET - T)
AR AEERABIREAEE A ST
& - WEIHRE S BT B - MR E
E2023F3AZIALFERRAAE
EB155 B8 °

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F ;|

221



00O

(D)

~
~

Qo

.
~_e’

el
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24

222

Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand

Reconciliation to consolidated statement
of cash flows

The above figures reconcile to the amount of
cash shown in the consolidated statement of
cash flows at the end of the financial year
as follows:

Balance as above

Bank overdraft (note 27)

Balance per consolidated statement of
cash flows

23

RBEE
RITRFRERE

HESHSRERNER

Lt SRR B B R
FARLRERTIIRN
ReBRYHROT

EERIN
BITIES (KFE27)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are mainly

denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value.

TRADE PAYABLES

24

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within one month

—EAR

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have

payment terms of 30 days.

The carrying amounts of trade payables are mainly denominated in HK$

and approximate their fair value.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BEeRhBRESEEY

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
23,399 29,083
23,399 29,083
(7,062) -
16,337 29,083

R IRTTEIR SR E A RITF A R0
B RMEF B - RITEBRFRREERIF
BT BB KRR SR ERTT o

RekReEBYNREETENETE
WEHENRERE -

B BNRE
RREMA - BSEA RORREE AN
EIRE AT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
3,088 1,272

B RNFEAHNE - ENFE—RA30
H e

BHRENFENEEETZEETAE I
HENAERSE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

25 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 HhENRIERETER
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
2023 2022 &
3H31H 3H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Other payables H it e~ hE 7,220 13,870
Accruals et ER 13,567 14,297
Contract liabilities (note) AXaE (M) 646 899
Provision for reinstatement cost BB A B 1,500 -
Long service payment RRBE 5,430 5,982
28,363 35,048
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARSEENDD (22,933) (29,066)
Non-current portion SEMBNE 5,430 5,982
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average payment HMWEMNZEBETANE  EHNZHAE—F
terms of one to three months. =f@A -
The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals are mainly HEmENRERETEANEREEZE
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair value. JURHE - WEEQAREEE -
Note: Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance as M : sFAFVENEEERNEBRKER
at beginning of the year is HK$899,000 (2022: HK$952,000). 899,000 7T, (2022 4F : 952,000 7T ) °
26 LOAN FROM A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY 26 —ERZANBRARER
Loan from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest-bearing at HIBOR —HRZRMBRRERAEER - REBE
and repayable within 1 year. TRZEFEF ERER—FANER -
T B E 2 R A R A 223
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00O

~
~

(D)

224

el

Qo

v
-

P

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 905 e A B vk ()

31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

27 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27 FHESRITER
2023 2022
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) HK$’000 rate (%) HK$’000
BEEERIZE (%) F#ET EIRFE (%) FET
Current B
Bank borrowings — secured IRITER — HIEH 2.73-5.88 127,340 1.07-3.50 125,102
Bank overdraft — unsecured RITHEX — WK 5.38-5.63 7,062 N/A 73 -
134,402 125,102
Non-current ERE
Bank borrowings — secured IRITER — BEA 2.73-5.63 455,177 1.07-3.50 458,505
589,579 583,607
Notes: MT%E .

(a) The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

(b) The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a mortgage over certain
of the Group’s land and buildings, which had an aggregate carrying
amount as at 31 March 2023 of approximately HK$598,959,000 (2022:
HK$617,313,000) (note 14).

(c) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a pledge over the
Group’s investment in insurance contract with a carrying amount as at 31
March 2023 of HK$3,488,000 (2022: HK$3,371,000) (note 21).

(d) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are jointly guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REBERITERABITAE

7N 2 B Y SR 17 18 3LA BR E 48 {5 7R 2023 FF
3A31H # A598,959,000/8 Jt (20224 :
617,313,000 470 ) 2 AN & B E T + i R EF
VEHEAR (BI7E14) ©

AR B H) T IRAT A BR E (B 70 2023 F
3 A 31 H733,488,000/87T (2022 4F : 3,371,000
AT) Z A REIRGR & AR EEIR (HE21) ©

AEENETRITEFBARANE THE
RAVFKFEER o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

27 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27 FFESITER@
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) WisE : ()
()  The amounts payable of the interest-bearing bank borrowings and © FTERITERRBEINERNRESTOT ¢
overdraft are analysed as follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and overdraft:  FHERITERRIBES ¢
Within one year or on demand —FERFIRER(EE 134,402 125,102
In the second year F_F 40,199 151,779
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-EhF(RIEEREMSE) 373,113 303,559
Beyond five years BAAF 41,865 3,167
589,579 583,607
28 SHARE CAPITAL 28 M7
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000 & &R HE1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 8 LRy E A 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET
902,880,000 ordinary shares of 902,880,000 Iz & A&
HK$0.01 each 0.01 B 7TH) I AR 9,029 9,029

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

current and prior years.

ARFRARAEE RBEFE L RED -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W

2023 F 3R
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31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

29

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the directors, including independent non-executive directors, executives
or officers of the Group, full-time or part-time employees of the Group,
and advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such
other persons who, in the sole opinion of the directors, will contribute or
have contributed to the Group. The Scheme became effective on 23
January 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue of the Company immediately following
completion of the Company’s initial public offering, i.e. 86,400,000
shares. The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

29

B ST &l
RARRBEEBRESE(T5E]) - BEEE
HERSHEER/RAEENZRAMARER
W UL RBERKX S ALEEH
REERELEBNZESERS MBI
Hitn h NEBRFHEFIFEOEBFER - 578
MEERSEBDRES (BREBIIENTE
) AEETHRABLBARE AEEE
Bk kBES REN ZhA HER R
F DHEBkESRRALBSRBEHAE
EELERMOBEEMAL - 5HEIH2017F
1RA23ARRAERN  BRIESITEEHIIEE &
Al E AREFBRTF -

RIR T BT B 5 B 0 BB IR AE FTS IR B9 AR 19
BLREATESBBEEARAGGERAME
ERKENERAB D EITRMHAEN10%
B186,400,000 & % 13 o B 1T AR & 5T &1 5 H
BERITE 2 FTERITEREREM AT 8 T LA
BITHRMNEE LRTEBBEAARTRE
BTN EI30% » M+ —EAHR - 1R
Brt B NBRET RSN EERSMmERT
WRMHE R ERARRIEE BARAF B 8IT
BRI EI1% o EAIFBE 1% ERR A BERRAE R
E—HRE - BRERERASEREAE

MESZ  ARAEBTHRABSEERR S
HAT B AR L EIRE AT CE Ik
WMITESHE - O BEEAMAARBEE
BESB I IENTEERE T ABHEAR Y
BRERLRE - PMEMR @A BABBALQ T
TEEETROM0I%KEBEZRELE
BARARRGEENE) aRsa 88T &
RIRRA S F LR -

RARAZNE A BT ZRBAREER - &K
HERENZOATREREZE AE21AR
E@ e BRENBRETEHRESE T I
RETHBHKMAL  ARENBREZY
BHEA+HEZBEm
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29

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors, but
must be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The Group granted share options under its share option scheme during
the year ended 31 March 2022. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The fair value of the options granted is measured at grant
date using the binomial option pricing model.

The grant of the Share Options to the Grantees is primarily to recognise
and acknowledge their contributions that have been made to the
Group, and to motivate them to optimise their future performance and
efficiency to the Group (in particular, those consultants among the
Grantees who have been providing their expertise to the Group in the
areas of corporate finance, capital market/strategic investor
management and the real estate market), which are conducive to the
strategic planning and long-term development of the senior care
business of, as well as value-creation for, the Group.

On 2 September 2021, the Company offered to grant share options (the
“Share Options”) to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,100,000 new
ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company to certain eligible employees and participants (the
“Grantees”) under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 23 January 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”), at exercise price of
HK$1.10 per Share with validity period from 2 September 2021 to 1
September 2031 (both dates inclusive). The Share Options can be
exercised at anytime after the expiration of 18 months from the date of
grant, i.e. 1 March 2023. The fair value of the Share Options at the
grant date was estimated at approximately HK$8,543,000, with (i)
approximately HK$3,384,000 for directors, chief executive and
controlling shareholder of the Company; (ii) approximately
HK$2,489,000 for employees of the Group; and (iii) approximately
HK$2,670,000 for the consultants to the Company. The fair value is
determined using inputs including share price of HK$1.07 per Share,
exercise price of HK$1.10 per Share, volatility of 48.67%, risk-free rate
of 1.00% and dividend yield of 0%.

29

BRAERTE (2
EFETERETER  EETESERT
JERmEONRNARIROREREZNASY
BERFTIRTIE (A2 RN N EEBHAR
Bz AR AR S B 2B (e + i)
ARG BEE -

PR B IR T A AR R S BOR
RE LIRRAEER -

HZE2022F3A31HILFE  REBEBRERE
MRIEST B L ERE - EE RERE THRR
EMREHANRBHN AL ERRAER B
HERENARERBRHBHER - BHE

TEERE -

FARARTERENIZENERNRE
EREHAKEELNER - LHBKREE
{ERKEARE B RE RARER CLEZARA
THEA-ERTEERROERE AN
W5/ REREEEEREHETSAEN
HEAMR)  AINREEEEBNRIER S
REEHRR  YAREEAIEEE-

R2021FQ9A2H » AR AIREA R AR
2017 %1 A 23 BiRM &) B Ak i w3 ([ B AR 4
FEDRETEEREE RSEE(EEAD
REFTERE(ERE]D  URBEAQA
A& AN 4 ££19,100,000 A% & A% EI1E 0.01 78 7T
g (TR ) « FTEEAERRM 1.10
T B EI B 20219 A2H 203149
B1B(BEEREMAB) - BRREREL B8
#1818 A Eim % (BN2023F 3 A1 H ) ka
T - ERHERENFLBHOAR
55T 47/48,543,00078 7T + £ () 473,384,000
BIRTARRES - THAHRIERRE
(i 492,489,000 L T AEEEE ¢ K (jii) 4
2,670,000 8T T ARAFIEERE - BEAAE
(55 A A 3 A\ SR R IE R EZ R AR D 1.07 758
TC ITEEER110BTT - HIR48.67% » &
[E B F 2 1.00% &I B R 0% °

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R

227



00O

~
~

(D)

228

el

Qo

v
-

P

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 905 e A B vk ()

31 March 2023~ 202343/31H

29 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the shares outstanding on which options are granted as at 31

March 2023 under the scheme are as follows. All these share options

were lapsed on 28 October 2022:

At the beginning of the year FH)

Granted during the year FREL
Lapsed during the year FRKK
At the end of the year FR

The Group recognised a total expense of approximately HK$5,221,000
during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$3,322,000) in relation
to share options granted by the Company in which, as to (i)
approximately HK$2,068,000 (2022: HK$1,316,000) was included in
the directors’ remuneration; (i) approximately HK$1,521,000 (2022:

HK$968,000) was included in staff costs; and (iii) approximately
HK$1,632,000 (2022: HK$1,038,000) was included in legal and

professional expenses.

30 RESERVES
(@ Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(b) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the

reorganisation of the Group in the prior years.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

29 BERFESTE ()
20233 A31H « sFEIETE R B HERE
HEARITEROFBOT - ZEERED
R2022F 10 A28 HKM ¢
2023 2022
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options
SRERE [sbdidibe
FHITEE BREHE FHTEE 2 B
HK$1.1 19,100,000 N/A -
1.1%7T TEA
N/A - HK$1.1 19,100,000
TEA 11787
HK$1.1 (19,100,000) N/A -
1.1%87T iE A
- - HKS$1.1 19,100,000
1.1%87T
REBREE2023F3A31BILFERAR
B Y B AR RE T 5R 48 A 2 495,221,000 7T
(20224F : 3,322,000/ 7T) - H A ()472,068,000
77T (2022 4F ¢ 1,316,000/ 7T) B Rt AEFH
B+ (i) #71,521,0007% 7T (20224 : 968,000
To)BAFAB IR K (i) 891,632,000 7T
(20224F : 1,038,000 7T) B AERE REE
Fi o
30 f&#E
(@ A~&EH

ARERE A RBEFEORES AR
HEDRYBRENGAHRSDED
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31 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

REF AP BHRRRERD

BENAEE

NERE MR KRR

BEHIAAE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

as follows:

At 1 April 2021
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2023

R2021%F4 818
R rmkEER
N E TR E

MH2022F 3 A31H K
2022F 4 A1 H

REREEERERTA
BRI T 18

R 202343831 H

31

IEFERT I8
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
5,812 4,621
(11,408) (12,420)
(5,596) (7,799)

RER - BEHABELAENESHNOT

Depreciation

allowance

in excess

of related
Tax losses depreciation Total

ERE
BIEEE BBHEBIRNE A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH#ET FAET FAET
4,228 (11,246) (7,018)
(434) (847) (781)
3,794 (11,593) (7,799)
128 2,075 2,203
3,922 (9,518) (5,596)
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32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@ Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$94,814,000 and
HK$94,814,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for land and buildings (2022: HK$204,663,000 and HK$204,663,000,
respectively) and non-cash additions to other payables and
accruals and right-of-use assets of HK$1,500,000 and
HK$1,500,000, respectively, in respect of provision on
reinstatement cost (2022: Nil).

32 &#Ee

(@

BangRME

FEFRERS

FRN - AEEFR LI RIEFORELT
ZERAEEERHERBBNIERSIEN
% Bl 594,814,000/ 7T % 94,814,000
7 70 (20224 1 204,663,000 T &
204,663,000 7T) * LA RBHEEK A
Hih R IE R ETERARERREEE
#IIEIR £ 38 hn 9 Bl 41,500,000 7% 7T &
1,500,000 4 7T (2022 & : ) -

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)) BEEBEENEENEER
activities
Interest-bearing
bank
borrowings Loan from
Lease (excluding bank a fellow
liabilities overdraft) subsidiary
TTERITER I EE
HEEE (FEERTEX) Fff B X R E XK
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHAT FHT FAT
At 31 March 2021 H202143H31H 76,080 602,935 -
Changes from financing cash flows @& IR &K=& H) (19,017) (19,328) -
Other changes: Hfth 5
New leases and modifications HHEER
of leases HEBET 204,663 - -
Interest expense B 6,575 - -
Exchange realignment b i X 1,149 — _
Transfer to liabilities held for sales EREFEHEMNEE (29,870) - -
Interest elements of lease payments & < Z 9 F 8.2 (6,575) - -
At 31 March 2022 MH2022F 3 A31H 233,005 583,607 -
Changes from financing cash flows @& IR &K &% (32,398) (1,090) 20,000
Other changes: Hin&s)
New leases and modifications HEEN
of leases HEEET 94,814 - -
Interest expense ISR 8,172 - -
COVID-19 related rent concession AU Ak 755 = 7% 18 78
HeRE (3,910) - =
Derecognition of lease BUEREREE (276) - -
Interest elements of lease payments 8 & {5z B2 5 (8,172) = =
At 31 March 2023 202343 A31H 291,235 582,517 20,000

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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34

35

36

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

34 EEIKH
EERFUERASEMNGTERITERZASE

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s interest-bearing

bank borrowings are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital and other commitments as at the

end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

— Trade receivables

— Financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables

— Due from a joint venture

— Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals

Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

35
ERTAYE AR -
ERN NG
36
ZRBERAIIENERMTA
— IR
— FtAZE R R REKIES
TRMEE
— Bl —EaEtEHE
- BeRReEEY

BAAERABENERMEE

RBERAIENSREE
B Z N TR
SEARAC BN AR
EETERNERAE
—HRRMEBRRER
FHRERITRER

HE&E

EEENF BN B HREME27

7y
REEHK  AEEEAE TIEE R MR

o
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBRE T
- 6,011

ERIA

BERRZEN SR TANKREENT

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR T
10,057 7,762
18,968 16,536
- 4,376
23,399 29,083
52,424 57,757
9,710 24,937
62,134 82,694
3,088 1,272
20,787 28,167
20,000 -
589,579 583,607
291,235 233,005
924,689 846,051
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37

38

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties:

Rental payment to a company RIATIZE AR IR R 5 2
controlled by former controlling NAEEfN 2 E
shareholders

Rental payment to a company MR AR RAE 6 2 A &)
controlled by controlling Y zEE
shareholder

Property management fee payment A3 A% A% B %l 2 /2 &)
to a company controlled by YTRZMEEEER
controlling shareholder

Interest expenses to a company MR AR RAE 6 2 A &)
controlled by controlling SR ZFBFE
shareholder

Note:

0] The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed by the

relevant parties.

(ii) The fees were determined at rates mutually agreed by the relevant

parties.

(b)  The compensation of key management personnel of the Group

for the year represented the directors’ emoluments as disclosed
in note 10 to the financial statements.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group owned 51% equity interest in Pine Care Yada Elderly
Services Limited (“Pine Care Yada HK”) which has set up a wholly
owned subsidiary in Zhejiang Province of the PRC (“Yada PRC”) to
operate Pine Care Yada (Wuzhen) Elderly Centre to provide elderly care
home services.

In March 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Yada International (HK) Limited (“Yada HK”) to purchase 49% of
Pine Care Yada HK for a cash consideration of HK$100, subject to
certain conditions precedent which include the disposal of 100%
interests in Yada PRC from Pine Care Yada HK to Yada HK or its
related entities for RMB1 and the provision of funding by the Group to
Yada PRC of HK$4.8 million. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
relating to Yada PRC are classified as assets/liabilities held for sale for
the year ended 31 March 2022. The disposal was completed in April
2022.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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38

B AR5
(a) MHBREREMMIDFAFROZHIN -
AEEEBER T ETUATIRS
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FiaE FET FAET
(i) - 283
[0} 1,960 -
(i) 375 -
(ii) 36 -
5 -
(i) LB ERRTENLLRETE -
(i) EBERREESERBENLEREE
(b) AEETFTBEEABRFEANFIEY
HMEMF10FMEEZESISE -
HE—EHBQRE

AEBEFEENEREEEERBERAF (R
RIEEEE]) 1% RS - ANPEINTER
YEREWMBRAB(HERE]) - E2ENE
HeE(SE) BEPOIARH R ZH R -

202263 A » AN E A EREEE(HS)
ERAB([HESEDITUEEHZE BB
SRE100BTHEENRIEETH49% 2
FRAE T RGN RIERRIEESBMIE
ERSYHBEERLEREFRRE100%E =
BB ARBA TR AEERHETRIEHE
©48BBEHEITL - Bt - HiEPBIE E2022
FIABILFENHEBEERBENEA
FHEREELE,/BE HEFEN2022F4
AR o
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38 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

39

38

Details of the Group’s loss on disposal of Yada PRC for the year ended

31 March 2023 were set out as follows:

Net liabilities disposed of:

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal
Provision of funding

Less: proceeds from disposal

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal
of a subsidiary

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

B R
A%

M3 - W R
ReRALSEN

HEE

BE
HARENFOR R B B

FRERRE R
HEERRBREL RS

B EEIRMASHIA

HE—RBHBAR @
REZE2023F3A31AILFE  AEBEE
HeEP B EEFEBD T

HK$’000
TET

28,5629
325

28,854

(3,179)
(29,870)
(33,049)

(605)
(268)
4,800

L — B L R AR IR TR SR

39

On 12 April 2023, Besting Holdings Limited (an indirectly wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company) entered into lease agreements, as tenant,

with a third party in respect of the continued leasing of two of the elderly

home centres which the Group operates, with an aggregate amount of

base rent payable of approximately HK$87.5 million. The lease

agreements were related to the renewal of existing leases, which

expired in February 2023. In the opinion of the Directors, the renewal of

the lease agreements is considered an adjusting event. Therefore, right-

of-use assets of HK$77.6 million were recognised by the Group as

modifications of leases in the consolidated statement of financial

position as at 31 March 2023.

(268)

EHREBH

R2028F 4128 AEEEABR A AI(AK
AREEE2ERBAR) (FRHEF)RBE=F
REEHEAEELENMELRER ST L
HEwHE BNEAHSBENGTSEEE
T MEREHEETREROEH MEE
HHBR2023F2AfEm - EFERE - BF]
HEREABRAAREE - At - AEER
20234 3 A 31 AMERE B ISk & P R E
AREEET7T6EEELATEISL »

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
2023 F R
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

234

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

Total non-current asset

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from a subsidiary

Total current assets

Net assets

Equity
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

* Less than HK$1,000

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FRBEE
R EARNERE

FERBEERRE

RBEE
RekReEEY
& e — e Y a8 22 B 08

MBE LR
BEFR

i d
EEITRA

e (M)

i Sttt

40 AR AEFEAR R

ARERHRERROPBEARRREHDOT

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
—* -
—* —
19 12
158,758 158,763
158,777 158,775
158,777 158,775
9,029 9,029
149,748 149,746
158,777 158,775
A 1,000 7T
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

4

40 R BBBEARR IR @)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: ME -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARNRBERELT -
Share premium Retained
account profits Total
B RER REEF Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT
At 1 April 2021 and 1 April 2022 R2021F4 418K
2022F 4 A1H 148,770 976 149,746
Profit and total comprehensive income FEHMNEEEWALLLE
for the year - 2 2
At 31 March 2023 202343 A31H 148,770 978 149,748
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41 #t/EBIISHR
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the RIS HMERF2023F 6 A21 HEE S H#
board of directors on 21 June 2023. RRETIE -
T B 2 R A R A

2023 F 3R
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42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES 42 BEMBARIMNER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RAFFEWBATIBEBWOT -
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR, [EX:¢h) ERREM
DEER EE S EERE BEAEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE R
Pine Care Health Initiative British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands (the “BVI")
RERTES E REER
((RBEXES])
Prime Health Holdings Limited  Hong Kong HK$98,418,468 - 100 Investment holding
FRIRER AR AT EE 08,418,468 /57T REZR
Pine Care Elderly Home Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited and provision of
management
services
MiREERERARAT &R 40,000,000 77T RE R KR4t
B IR
Pacific First Limited Hong Kong HK$1,070 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
REFFRRT o 1,070/7T R REER RS
Besting Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$120,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
BEEEBRAT 0 120,0007% 7T R REEERS
Hinta Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
(“Hinta Enterprises”) services
BRCEERAR BE 10,000 7T REUREERRS
(MERE%E])
Fitbest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
HEER AT &R 500,000 77T REUREERRY
236 PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec)

EREMBARNEER @)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR 28T A E e
DNRARE =ESiE EERA ERZBAL TEER
Direct Indirect
B &
Masswell Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
Limited services
BEEERBERDA B 10,000/87C REREEERS
Gericare Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of senior care
(“Gericare Centre”) services
REEEZPOERAT o 100% 7T RUREELRS
(MREZEEFRL]D)
Fitgarden Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
BEREFR AR i 2,500,000 7T MERE
Mainfield Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property investment
RIBER A A B 28T MERE
Chun Fai Development Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited
BEFRERRA o 100,000/ 7T MERE
Grant Smart Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited
BRZRARRA B 10,000 % 7T MERE
Wellfield Properties Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Development
BRI EERER A A B 10,0007 7T MERE
Ruby International Hong Kong HK$5 - 100 Property investment
Investment Limited
(“Ruby International”)
NERERRERRAA & 5T MERE
(MrEaEER])
i e N A 237
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42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec)

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary

42

Percentage of equity

EREMNMBARNEER @)

Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AR 2RAT NS} 2
DNRARE —E 3k EERAK EEADL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE &
Manchester Rehabilitation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of rehabilitation
Services Limited and physiotherapy
services
SR ERRS i 18T REERERYE
BRAR AR RS
Witmart Design & Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of repair and
Construction Co. Limited maintenance services
B R EEIRE 5 28T REBIERRERS
BRAT
Fully Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
mRE R AR BE 10,000 7T MERE
Pine Care Elite Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
R EERR QA i 10,000 7T R REER RS
Pine Care Elegance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
R EE B IR A A 6 10,0007 7T REER
Grand Prosper Holdings BVI USs$3 - 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited
HBELHS KE REER
One Affinity Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERTES 17T REER
Lorient Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 - 100 Property investment
HBELHS 1%7T MERE
Tsuen Wan Elderly Care Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of senior care
Services Limited services
EEEERBABRRF i 10,000 % 7T REREERRS

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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42 INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec)

42 BFREAMBATNER @)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary Percentage of equity
Company name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARL 28T ARG
DNRARE =ESiE EERA EEADL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE &
Pine Care Point Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
Nyl NG| B 100787T R REERRS
Pine Care Yada Elderly Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Services Limited
RERIEEEEZREERRR BB 14,000,000 7T REER
Zhejiang Pine Care Yada the People’s HK$12,000,000 - - Provision of senior care
Elderly Services Limited* Republic of China services
(the “PRC")/
Mainland China
IR KEEEERS hEARKEME 12,000,000 7T REUREERRYE
BRAR (T+E1,/
B A RE
Giant Success International Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Property investment
Holdings Limited
(“Giant Success”)
REEREBRARAF B 1,000 7T MERE
(IZ1&1)
Elegant Dear Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of senior care
services
HERBR AT & 18T REUREERRS
# Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under the PRC law. # REPEEEAMRIIEBERE - RER

Disposed during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BHE -

ERNTEERRUFAXEELEATE
B AEEEEFEEZAK B OB

NAE) BRERR

A ELA B A B A

Bl ERBNIUE -

Bt 2 AR AR 2 W
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

RERE

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3IBLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FET FHET
Revenue &= 265,269 267,749 245,706 217,363 186,782
(Loss)/profit before tax from REFELEEBH
continuing operations B AT (E518), A (24,695) (17,668) 10,682 17,122 15,150
Income tax expense Frig i (3,086) (6,321) (7,468) (3,546) (1,690)
(Loss)/profit for the year from R EFHEL & EEH
continuing operations FE(BB),/ 5 (27,781) (23,989) 3,214 13,576 13,460
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FHR),ER (27,781) (23,989) 3,214 13,576 13,460
Attributable to: FE4L :
Equity holders of the Company Z2A B##EH A (27,781) (20,633) 5,860 13,584 13,435
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M A - (3,356) (2,646) ®8) 25
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION A B FE SRS
As at 31 March
MR3A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET FAT FHET FAT
Non-current assets SEmMBIEE 1,069,336 1,019,059 831,536 896,850 787,906
Current assets RENEE 38,928 40,997 95,498 46,528 56,840
Current liabilities REBEE 223,726 196,301 135,633 455,978 76,061
Total assets less current BEERTBARG
liabilities 884,538 892,609 791,401 487,400 768,685
Non-current liabilities EnHEE 947,676 905,425 587,214 280,749 561,604
Equity attributable to equity AARERIFEANE
holders of the Company IRz 160,588 182,880 200,209 200,253 200,208
Non-controlling interests FEPERR i A - 605 3,978 6,398 6,873
Total equity AR 160,588 183,485 204,187 206,651 207,081
Net debt FER 586,180 554,524 553,248 571,484 542,637
Gearing ratio EEAELE 53% 51% 60% 61% 64%
Note: Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank Mzt : BEBGBLRIVIZDFEE G5 BRTERNBRIRS
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing MRS EBYBRUREE BRHEENIIERDE
current assets and non-current assets). E)HE -
PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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